








AGENDA ITEM # 4 a&b 

 
Executive Summary 

August 6, 2015 
 
 
 

Agenda Subject: a.  Mayor’s Proclamation recognizing Jessica Huber  
                   b.  Mayor’s Proclamation recognizing Teddy Roosevelt Chapter   
                        Order of DeMolay 
 

  

Background:  Both of the above items are Mayoral Proclamations.  Mayor Fielder will 
have the Proclamations at the council meeting. 
 
Origination:  Mayor Fielder  

 
Recommendation:  N/A 

 
Attachments:    N/A 

 
Prepared by:  Debbie Haile TRMC, City Secretary    



 
 

 
 

MINUTES 
DEVELOPMENT TOUR 

and 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 

Pat Bryson Municipal Hall 
201 North Brushy Street ~ Leander, Texas 

Thursday ~ July 16, 2015 at 5:15 PM    

 
   5:15 pm – South San Gabriel River Park Property Tour 
 
   Council will leave from Pat Bryson at 5:15 and reconvene at 7:00 pm for Regular City Council Meeting 
   (No action will be taken by City Council during the tour) 
 
   Council left Pat Bryson Hall at 5:15 pm 
   Council returned to Pat Bryson Hall at 6:40 pm 
 
   7:00 pm 
  
  1.  Open meeting, Invocation, Pledges of Allegiance  
       Mayor Fielder opened the meeting at 7:00 pm and welcomed those in attendance. 
       Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette delivered the invocation 
 
  2.  Roll Call 

          All present 
 
     3.  Staff Comments: Steve Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director – recap of Liberty Fest 
          Steve Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director gave a recap of Liberty Fest 
 
     4.  Citizen Comments:  Three (3) minutes allowed per speaker  

       Please turn in speaker request form before the meeting begins. 
 
       Michael Childers  2611 Running Wyld – President of Williamson County Amateur Radio Club  
       thanked the Council for the use of Devine Lake Park for their Field Day  
        
  5.  Recognition of Leander Fire Department Technical Rescue Team 
       Chief Gardner, Fire Chief recognized the members of the Technical Rescue Team 
       Marty Herrin Chief of the Williamson County Hazmat Team thanked the team and presented 

them with a signed picture of appreciation 

   
 
 
  6.  Approval of the minutes: July 2, 2015 
 
  7.  Subdivision Case #14-TOD-CP-014: Leander Tract Concept Plan and Designation of Transect  
       Zones for 11.2 acres, more or less, generally located to the north of Mel Mathis Avenue and  

       Mayor  –  Christopher Fielder       Place 4 – Ron Abruzzese 
       Place 1 – Andrea Navarrette (Mayor Pro Tem)            Place 5 – Jeff Seiler  
       Place 2 – Michelle Stephenson                                     Place 6 – Troy Hill  
       Place 3 – Shanan Shepherd                                          City Manager – Kent Cagle 
 

CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION 

1                                                                                 



 
 

       RM 2243 on both the west and east sides, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
 
 
 
  8.  Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision Infrastructure Improvements for Pecan Creek  
       Phase 3 
 
  9.  Agreement for Architectural and Engineering Services for Fire Station #4 
 
10.  Agreement for Construction Manager at Risk Services for Fire Station #4 
 
11.  A Resolution of the City of Leander, Texas Granting Consent to the Annexation and Exclusion of  
       Land by Leander Municipal Utility Districts No. 1, 2, and 3 
 

  12.  Consider renaming a portion of Quarry Ridge to Quarry Loop, generally located to the southwest of the 
intersection of Crystal Falls Parkway and First View, Leander, Williamson and Travis Counties, Texas 

 
13.  Consider the Release and Termination of a Public Utility Easement within the Palmera Ridge  
        Development  
 
14.  Consider the Possible Release and Termination of a Drainage Easement within the JSL Commercial  
       Investments Property  
 
       Motion made by Council Member Shepherd to approve the consent agenda.  Second by Mayor  
       Pro Tem Navarrette. Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

         
   
 

 
15.  Second public hearing on the proposed annexation of a certain area of land, known as the  
       Bradley tract, 126.098 acres, more or less, tract of land located north of the South San Gabriel  
       River and east of Ronald Reagan Blvd. in Williamson County, Texas 
       No speakers 
 
16.  Second public hearing on the proposed annexation of a certain area of land, known as the  
       Ironwood tract, 13.8481 acres, more or less, generally located at the southeast corner of SH 29  
       and Ronald Reagan Blvd. in Williamson County, Texas      
       No speakers 

 

  

  
17.  Public Hearing on Zoning and Subdivision Cases 14-Z-014, 14-CP-007 & 14-PP-008: rezoning and 
       approval of the Woodview Village Concept Plan and Preliminary Plat of 20.679 acres, more or less,  
       generally located to the southwest of the intersection of East Woodview Drive and Raider Way from  
       Interim Zoning SFS-2-B, Single Family Suburban and Interim Zoning SFR-1-B, Single Family Rural  
       to PUD, Planned Unit Development, Leander, Williamson County, Texas  
       Applicant: Darren Webber on behalf of DeWette Partners, LTD      
       Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 
        Rod Madden, representative for the owner explained the request 
        Brad Whittington with Whittington Group gave a presentation 
 
       Action on Zoning and Subdivision Cases 14-Z-014, 14-CP-007 & 14-PP-008: rezoning and 
       approval of the Woodview Village Concept Plan and Preliminary Plat of 20.679 acres, more or less,  
       generally located to the southwest of the intersection of East Woodview Drive and Raider Way from  
       Interim Zoning SFS-2-B, Single Family Suburban and Interim Zoning SFR-1-B, Single Family Rural  
       to PUD, Planned Unit Development, Leander, Williamson County, Texas  
 

PUBLIC HEARING: ACTION 

PUBLIC HEARING 

2                                                                                 



 
 

       Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette  to deny.  Second by Council Member Shepherd. 
       Motion passes to deny with Council Member Stephenson voting against the denial. 
 
 

  
 
 

   8.  Consider Award of Construction Contract for the City of Leander Street Rehabilitation 2015 Project 
     Pat Womack, Director of Public Works explained 
 
     Motion made by Council Member Stephenson to approve.  Second by Council Member Seiler. 
     Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 

19.  Consider Interlocal Agreement between the City of Leander and Williamson County to rehabilitate 
        County Road 290  
        Pat Womack, Director of Public Works explained 
 

     Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to approve with a not to exceed $35,993.00. 
     Second by Council Member Hill.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
20.  Consider Award of Construction Contract for Ronald Reagan Waterline North, Phase 2 Project to  
        Aaron Concrete Contractors, LP for $1,214,279.00  
        Wayne Watts, City Engineer explained 
 

     Motion made by Council Member Stephenson to approve.  Second by Council Member Seiler. 
     Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
21.  Consider Task Order KFA-30 with K. Friese & Associates, Inc., for professional services for Kauffman  
       Loop Elevated Storage Tank Design, Bidding, and Construction Phase Services 
        Wayne Watts, City Engineer explained 
 

     Motion made by Council Member Shepherd to approve.  Second by Council Member  
     Stephenson. Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
22.  Consider Task Order STE-2 with Smith Turrieta Engineering, Inc., for Professional Services for Design  
       and Bidding Phases for the CR 269 and Hero Way 12-Inch Water Line Improvements Project 
       Wayne Watts, City Engineer explained 
 

     Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to approve.  Second by Council Member Shepherd. 
     Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

  
23.  Consider Dedication of Right-of-Way from Leander Independent School District (LISD) for the Municipal  
       Drive Roadway Improvements.   
       Wayne Watts, City Engineer explained 
 

     Motion made by Council Member Seiler to approve.  Second by Council Member Hill. 
     Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
24.  Council Members Closing Statements 
       Council Members gave their closing statements 
 
25.  Adjournment 
        With there being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:00 pm. 
 
 
        Attest: 
 
__________________________________                          ________________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, TRMC, City Secretary      

REGULAR AGENDA 

3                                                                                 



  AGENDA ITEM # 7 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
August, 6, 2015 

 
 
Council Agenda Subject:  A Resolution Of The City Of Leander, Texas, (“City”) 
Approving The Interlocal Cooperation Contract DPS, Reprographics & 
Distribution Services With The Texas Department Of Public Safety And 
Authorizing The City Manager To Execute The Contract  
 
 
  
Background:  The Texas Department of Public Safety (TDPS) stocks forms, manuals, 
gunshot  residue kit, and supplies for the Intoxilyzer Breath Testing Program and the 
Laboratory Alcohol and Drug Testing Program for all Texas cities, counties and state 
Department of Public Safety operations. This is being done to control uniformity of 
procedures, consistency of paper work and supplies of the Breath Testing Program and the 
Laboratory Alcohol and Drug Testing Program thus strengthening our position in court  
should the need arise. Buy approval of this Interlocal Cooperation Contract, the Leander 
Police Department will be able to take advantage of cost savings due to the TDPS buying 
these supplies in greater volume.  
 
Origination:  Greg Minton, Chief of Police 
 
Financial Consideration:  None 
 
Recommendation:   Staff recommends the approval of the inter-local agreement without 
any modifications. 
 
Attachments:   Interlocal Agreement 

 
Prepared by:  Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



RESOLUTION NO.    
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, (“CITY”) 
APPROVING THE INTERLOCAL COOPERATION CONTRACT DPS, 
REPROGRAPHICS & DISTRIBUTION SERVICES WITH THE TEXAS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE CONTRACT  

 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LEANDER, TEXAS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  The City Council of the City of Leander hereby approves the Interlocal 
Cooperation Contract DPS, Reprographics & Distribution Services with the Texas 
Department of Public Safety and authorizes the City Manager to execute the Agreement.   
 
 SECTION 2.  This resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption. 

 
 SECTION 3.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this resolution 
is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov't. Code. 

 
Resolved this the    day of ________, 2015. 

 
 
 

ATTEST: CITY OF LEANDER:  
 
 
 
 

Debbie Haile, City Secretary Mr. Christopher Fielder, Mayor 
 
 
 
 

Resolution #    
TWDB Flood Protection Planning Grant 
February 25, 2015 

Page  1 of 2  



 

Resolution #    
TWDB Flood Protection Planning Grant 
February 25, 2015 

Page  2 of 2  



INTERLOCAL COOPERATION CONTRACT
DPS, REPROGRAPHICS & DISTRIBUTION SERYICES

P.O. BOX 15999
AUSTTN, TEXAS 781 6l-5999

THE STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF TRAVIS

THIS CONTRACT is entered into by and between the Texas Department of Public Safety and the

local government agency shown below as the Contract Parties, pursuant to the authority granted and in

,o'npl-iurr." with the provisions of "The Interlocal Cooperation Contract Act," Government Code, Chapter

791, andin furtherance of the responsibilities of the Texas Department of Public Safety as provided in

Government Code, ChaPter 411.

CONTRACTING PARTIES

The Receiving Agency: Leander Pollce DePartme

Complete Address: 705 Leander Drive Leander, TX 78641

Zlp CodeStreet Address

The Performing Agency: Texas Department of Public Safety

II. STATEMENT OF SERVICE TO BE PEMORMED:

City and State

The Texas Department of Public Safety will provide, in accordance with the procedures set forth

in Departmeni rules, certain forms, manuals, gunshot residue kit, and supplies for the Receiving

agency to use in the Breath Testing and Laboratory Alcohol and Drug Testing Program. The

p,i.por" and objective ofthis Contract is to control and establish uniform procedures, paperwork

and supplies used in the above mentioned programs.

BASIS FOR CALCULATING COSTS:

Cost shall be in accordance with the attached documerf (revised price sheet).

PAYMENT FOR SUPPLTES:

Receiving Agency shall submit full payment to the Departrnent of Public Safety at the time of
order. Payment shall be made from the Receiving Agency's current revenues.

TERMS OF CONTRACT:

This Contract shall become effective September l,2Ol3 and shall terminate onAugust 31,2015.

III.

IV.

V.



THE, UNDERSIGNED CONTRACTING PARTIES bind rhemselves to the faithful performances of this

Contract. It is mutually understood that this Contract shall be effective if signed by a person authorized

to do so according to the normal operating procedure of said party. If the goveming body of a party is

required to upproi* this Contract, it shatt not become effective until approved by-tle ggv"rlrg body of

that party. In itrat event, this Contract shall be executed by the duly authorized official(s) of the parly as

"rp.lrr.d 
in the approving resolution or order of the goveming body of said par{ Y, a copy of which shall

be attached to this Contract.

By:

RECEIVING AGENCY

Leander Police DePartment

Gncv

Authorized Signature

City Manager Kent Cagle

f)ate: 08/06/15

PERFORMING AGENCY

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
Name of AgencY

Authorized Signature

Title

Date:

By:

Title



AGENDA ITEM # 8 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

August 6, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for Borho Phase 4 
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Borho Phase 4 have 
been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All documentation 
required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including record drawings, 
statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed in the State 
of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files of the 
improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term Maintenance 
Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City Council 
acceptance, as anticipated, on August 6, 2015, which will provide warranty and maintenance 
coverage for the infrastructure improvements through August 6, 2017.  The Engineering 
Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements approximately 30 days 
prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any defects in materials, 
workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Borho Phase 4. 
   
Attachments:  Location Map, Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, Maintenance Bond, Affidavits 
of All Bills Paid, and Final Pay Estimates. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 

























AGENDA ITEM # 9 

 
Executive Summary 

 
August 6, 2015 

 
 
Subject: Consideration of the First Amendment to the Land Development Agreement between 
the City of Leander and Leander Independent School District. 
 
Background: On June 4, 2015 the City Council authorized staff to work with LISD to draft an 
amendment to the Land Development Agreement to allow LISD to utilize black, vinyl-coated, 
chain-link fencing in lieu of decorative wrought iron fencing anywhere fencing is required on an 
LISD site.  The attached amendment implements that direction. 
 
Financial Consideration: None 
  
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the amendment 
 
Attachments: First Amendment to the Land Development Agreement 
 
Prepared by: Tom Yantis, Assistant City Manager 
 
7/29/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
LAND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 
 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO LAND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this 
“Amendment”) is made by and between the CITY OF LEANDER (“City”) and LEANDER 
INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT (“District”), on the date of the last to sign below. 

 
RECITALS: 

A. City and District entered into that certain Land Development Agreement dated 
October 18, 2007 (the “Agreement”).   

B.  City and District desire to amend the Agreement.   

C. All capitalized terms used in this Amendment shall have the meanings given to 
them in the Agreement, unless otherwise defined herein. 

AGREEMENT: 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants herein 
contained, City and District hereby amend the Agreement as follows: 

1. A new paragraph 3.18 is added to the Agreement as follows: 

3.18  Fencing.  Notwithstanding Article VI, Section 7-b-4 of the City’s Composite 
Zoning Ordinance (as such may be amended from time to time), or other City ordinances 
requiring a certain type or material of fencing, the District shall be entitled to use vinyl 
coated chain link fence for all fencing needs (including without limitation, perimeter 
fences, detention/water quality ponds, and playfield fences).  The color of such fencing 
shall be black, unless a different color is approved in writing by the City Manager or his 
designee.  

2. This Amendment shall be effective immediately, and shall also apply to any of the 
District’s projects currently under construction (including Camacho Elementary and Glenn High 
School.) 

3. Except as modified by this Amendment, the Agreement shall remain in full force 
and effect.   
 



 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, City and District have executed and delivered this 

Amendment to be Effective on the date of the last to sign. 

 
    CITY: 
 
    CITY OF LEANDER 
       
 
 
    By: ___________________________ _________________ 
     Christopher Fielder, Mayor  Date 
 
 
    DISTRICT: 
 
    LEANDER INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
      
    By: ___________________________ _________________ 
     Will Streit, Board President  Date 
 
 
 



  AGENDA ITEM # 10 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
August 06, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Comprehensive Plan Amendment Case 15-CPA-005: Hold a 

public hearing and consider action on a comprehensive plan 
amendment requesting to add a Community Center Node located at 
the intersection of S US 183 and County Glen to the Future Land 
Use Plan.  In addition, the request includes changing the land use 
mix to include 50% commercial uses within this proposed node; 
Leander, Williamson County, Texas.   

 
Background: A Comprehensive Plan Amendment is required for the applicant to 

request a change to the Future Land Use Plan.  This request is the 
final step in the Comprehensive Plan Amendment process.   

 
Origination: Applicant: James Knight on behalf of Robert Knight, Trustee. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: The Planning & Zoning Commission unanimously recommended 

denial at the July 23, 2015 meeting. 
 
Attachments: 1.  Planning Analysis 
 2.  Current Node Plan 
 3.  Proposed Node Plan 
 4.  Letter of Intent 
 5. Ordinance 
 6. Minutes–Planning & Zoning Commission July 23, 2015 
 
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 07/28/2015 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT  

CASE 15-CPA-005 
 

FUTURE LAND USE PLAN AMENDMENT 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Origination: Applicant: James Knight on behalf of Robert Knight 
 
Proposal: The applicant is proposing to amend the Future Land Use Plan by adding a 

Community Center Node located at the intersection of S US 183 and 
County Glen to the Future Land Use Plan.  In addition, the request 
includes changing the land use mix to include 50% commercial uses 
within this proposed node; Leander, Williamson County, Texas.   

 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, AICP, GISP   
 Planner   
    
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Provide Opportunities for coordinated, well-planned growth and development that are 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 Provide for the coordinated and diverse growth and physical expansion of the City of 

Leander. 
  

 

ANALYSIS: 
The Future Land Use Plan and Map were adopted by the City Council on August 7, 2014.  These 
documents serve as a guide for staff, the Planning & Zoning Commission, and City Council in 
determining appropriate zoning districts and land use concept plans for properties within the City 
Limits and ETJ.  The guiding principal of the Future Land Use Plan is the protection of the value 
of single-family neighborhoods through the concentration of mixed use activity centers at major 
transportation intersections.  This principle provides for the separation of incompatible uses 
while also providing easy access for pedestrians, bicyclists and motorists to areas of retail and 
commercial development that serve the neighborhood, community and regional needs. 
 
The Future Land Use Map calls for nodes to be located at the intersections of arterial and 
collector class roadways.  The plan calls for a higher concentration of mixed use activity center 
within these nodes in order to discourage strip commercial development.  The applicant is 
proposing to locate a Community Center Node at the intersection of S. US 183 and County Glen.  
 

 



Attachment # 1                 

Each node provides several categories of land use with the intent to integrate land uses that make 
efficient use of the infrastructure systems, while protecting sensitive land and providing a system 
of open space and parks.  The plan encourages mixed use development in the activity center in 
order to provide services to neighborhoods as well as the community.   
 
The Community Center Node is intended to be located at the intersections of arterial streets or 
arterials and major collectors.  These nodes are approximately one half mile in diameter and 
incorporate approximately 125 acres.  These areas are intended for commercial, retail and office 
uses that primarily serve residents within the community.  These areas are also intended for 
medium density multi-family and high density single-family housing.  Development within the 
Community Center Node should be integrated through internal streets and should provide 
pedestrian and bicycle connections to adjacent residential neighborhoods. The applicant is also 
requesting to reapportion the percentages of target land use mixes to permit 50% of the node to 
be comprised of commercial uses. 
 
The Future Land Use Plan provides for Community Center Nodes to be comprised of target land 
use mixes as illustrated in Chart 1. 
 
Chart 1: 

 
 
The applicant’s request to increase the Community Commercial/Retail target land use mix for 
the Community Center Node from thirty percent (30%) to fifty percent (50%) would necessitate 
the reduction in other target land use mixes that are provided within this node. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends denial of the proposed request to provide an additional Community Center 
Node at the intersection of S. US 183 and County Glen.  The proposed node would be located at 
the intersection of an arterial and residential collector class street, and the Future Land Use Plan 

30% 

15% 

20% 

35% 

Community Center - Target Land Use 
Mix 

Community
Commercial/Retail

Office

Multi-Family

High Density Single-
Family

 



Attachment # 1                 

calls for these nodes to be located at the intersection of arterial and collector class streets.  
However, County Glen is not built to collector class standards and would be inadequate to 
support a Community Center Node.  Additionally, the proposed location of this node would be 
too close in proximity to an existing Community Center Node, which is located at Crystal Falls 
Pkwy and S. US 183.  These nodes are intended to serve the neighborhood by providing a 
mixture of uses that serve as a transition between the neighborhood and the center of the node, 
and this proposal would instead decrease the transitional area between residential and 
commercial class uses.  The proposed intersection of roadways as stated in the Future Land Use 
Plan are the appropriate locations for mixed use development with the highest density 
concentrated at the center of the node, and the placement of the Community Center Node at the 
intersection of an arterial and residential collector class streets would be inappropriate.  

 



EA
ST

 S
T

C13

WOODVIEW DR

183A TOLL RD

RM 2243

S 
W

ES
T D

R

W SOUTH ST

LEANDER DR

CR
 26

9

SONNY DR

OLD 2243 WEST

E SOUTH ST

S US 183

MUNICIPAL DR

ME
L M

AT
HI

S A
VE

MCCARTHUR DR

CR
270

HAZELWOOD ST

HO
RI

ZO
N 

PA
RK

 B
LV

D

W BROADE ST

HERO WAY

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

N 
US

 18
3

S BAGDAD
RD

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

S BAGDAD RD

SONNY DR

S 
US

 18
3

HORIZON
PARK

BLV D

HERO WAY

N 
US

 18
3

HO
RI

ZO
N 

PA
RK

 B
LV

D

S U
S 1

83
S 

US
 18

3

S BAGDAD RD

S 
US

 18
3

S 
US

 18
3

S BAGDAD RD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 400

Feet

COMP PLAN 15-CPA-005

Attachment #2
S. US 183 & County Glen
Current Future Land Use Plan

CITY MAPË

Toll Road
Arterial
Collector
Arterial
Collector

City Limits
Industrial
Neighborhood Center Node
Community Center Node
Town Center Node

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



WOODVIEW DR
S 

W
ES

T D
R

OSAGE DR

LEANDER DR

SONNY DR

S US 183

MUNICIPAL DR

MCCARTHUR DR

HAZELWOOD ST

HO
RI

ZO
N 

PA
RK

 B
LV

DE SONNY DR

S BAGDAD RD

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

SONNY DR

S US 183

S 
BA

GD
AD

 R
D

S 
US

 18
3

S 
US

 18
3

HORIZON
PARK

BL V D

HO
RI

ZO
N 

PA
RK

 B
LV

D

S BAGDAD RD

S U
S 1

83
S US 183

S BAGDAD RD

S BAGDAD RD

S 
US

 18
3

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 400

Feet

COMP PLAN 15-CPA-005

Attachment #3
S. US 183 & County Glen
Proposed Future Land Use Plan

CITY MAPË

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Toll Road
Arterial
Collector
Arterial
Collector

City Limits
Industrial
Town Center Node
Neighborhood Center Node
Community Center Node
Proposed Node



KNIGHT REAL ESTATE CORPORATION 
 

307  EAST SECOND STREET 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 78701 

 

512/472-1800 FAX 512/472-1999 
www.k n igh t r ea l es t a t e . co m  

 
 
 
June 25, 2015 
 
City of Leander Planning Department 
104 North Brushy Street 
P.O. Box 319 
Leander, Texas 78646-0319 
 

Re:   Letter of Intent for Amendment of the Comprehensive Plan of 13.59 
Acre Knight Tract R031782 

 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
On behalf of Robert Knight, Trustee, we are submitting this Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment application for your consideration. The owners have owned this property for 
over 30 years and are seeking the rezoning of their property in order to facilitate a sale for 
development. 
 
The property is currently shown on the Comprehensive Plan as a residential district, and 
owners are seeking to reclassify this property as a Community Center Node in order to 
accommodate more appropriate commercial uses consistent with its location fronting on 
US 183 N on the west and the railroad tracks on the east.  We are also requesting that the 
percentage of commercial be increased to 50% in this node to accommodate this 
development with the commercial that already exists. 
 
I appreciate the opportunity to submit this application.  If there are any questions, 
comments or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me.  Thank you. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
James Knight, CCIM, CPM 
 
 

rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 4



Amending Ordinance 14-044-00 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE PLAN SET FORTH IN THE 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS; 
FINDING AND DETERMINING THAT THE MEETING AT WHICH 
THIS ORDINANCE IS PASSED IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS 
REQUIRED BY LAW. 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary and reasonable for the public health, safety, morals, and 

welfare of the City of Leander, Texas, a Texas home rule municipality, (herein the “City”) to 
provide for and maintain a comprehensive plan for the City in accordance with the City Charter and 
Chapters 211 and 213 of the Texas Local Government Code;  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the Future Land Use Plan set forth in the 

Comprehensive Plan by Ordinance No. 14-044-00; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the adoption of the amendments to the Future Land 

Use Plan herein promote the public health, safety, morals, and welfare and provide for the orderly 
development of the City; and 
 
  WHEREAS, after review, inquiry and the opportunity for citizen participation at one or 
more public hearings and review and recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Commission, the 
City Council approves the amendments to the Comprehensive Plan hereinafter set forth;      

  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Section 1.   Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and 
are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 

 
Section 2. Comprehensive Plan.  The City Council hereby adopts the amendment to 

the Future Land Use Plan that is attached hereto as Exhibit A.  The Future Land Plan, as 
amended, shall be kept in the office of the City Secretary and shall be available for public 
inspection during normal office hours.  Zoning uses, as amended from time to time at the request 
of the landowner or on motion of the City, shall be amended to be made consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan, as amended.  The City may amend the Comprehensive Plan in the 
discretion of the City Council in accordance with the City Charter and state law to plan for the 
changing plans of the City. 

 
Section 3. Amendment of Conflicting Ordinances.  The City of Leander Future 

Land Use Plan previously adopted by Ordinance No. 14-044-00 is hereby amended to the extent 
of any conflict with Exhibit A. The City of Leander Comprehensive Plan, all ordinances and 
parts of ordinances, and all resolutions and parts of resolutions in conflict with this Ordinance are 
amended to the extent of such conflict.  In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between this 



Ordinance and any other code, ordinance, or plan of the City, the terms and provisions of this 
Ordinance shall govern. 
 
 Section 4.   Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in force and effect from and after 
its passage on the date shown below. 
 
 Section 5.   Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice 
of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, 
Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on this 6th day of August, 2015. 
       
ATTEST:      THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
_________________________   _________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary     Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

 2 



WOODVIEW DR
S 

W
ES

T D
R

OSAGE DR

LEANDER DR

SONNY DR

S US 183

MUNICIPAL DR

MCCARTHUR DR

HAZELWOOD ST

HO
RI

ZO
N 

PA
RK

 B
LV

DE SONNY DR

S BAGDAD RD

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

SONNY DR

S US 183

S 
BA

GD
AD

 R
D

S 
US

 18
3

S 
US

 18
3

HORIZON
PARK

BL V D

HO
RI

ZO
N 

PA
RK

 B
LV

D

S BAGDAD RD

S U
S 1

83
S US 183

S BAGDAD RD

S BAGDAD RD

S 
US

 18
3

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 400

Feet

COMP PLAN 15-CPA-005

Exhibit A
S. US 183 & County Glen
Future Land Use Plan

CITY MAPË

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Toll Road
Arterial
Collector
Arterial
Collector

City Limits
Industrial
Town Center Node
Neighborhood Center Node
Community Center Node
Proposed Node





  AGENDA ITEM # 11 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
August 06, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 15-Z-015: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of a parcel of land located to the south of the 
intersection of US 183 and the Union Pacific Railroad, and to the 
north of the southern city limits; 13.590 acres more or less; WCAD 
Parcel R031782.  Currently, the property is zoned SFU-2-B (Single 
Family Urban).  The applicant is proposing to zone the property to 
GC-5-D (General Commercial), Leander, Williamson County, 
Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: James Knight on behalf of Robert Knight, Trustee. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: The Planning & Zoning Commission recommendation will be 

available at the meeting. 
 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3.   Aerial Map 
 4. Proposed Zoning Map 
 5.   Letter of Intent 
 6.  Ordinance 
 7.  Minutes–Planning & Zoning Commission July 23, 2015 
 
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 07/10/2015 
 



Attachment # 1           

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 15-Z-015 

Leander Commercial 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Robert Knight 
 
Current Zoning: SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban) 
     
Proposed Zoning: GC-5-D (General Commercial) 
 
Size and Location: The property is generally located south of the intersection of US 183 and 

Union Pacific Railroad and is 13.590 acres more or less. 
 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, AICP, GISP   
 Planner      
   
 
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH  GC-3-C 
SFC-2-B 

Developed Commercial 
Established Single Family Neighborhood (Horizon Park) 

EAST SFC-2-B Established Single Family Neighborhood (Horizon Park) 

SOUTH OCL Vacant Property 

WEST GC-3-C 
Developed Commercially Zoned Property: Texas Pawn & 
Jewlery, Inspection Station, Zero Gravity 
Undeveloped Commercially Zoned Property 

 
 
 
 
 
 
   

1 
 



Attachment # 1           

     

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

USE COMPONENTS:   
SFU – SINGLE FAMILY URBAN:   

Features:  7,200 sq. ft. lot min.; 1,200 sq. ft. living area min. 
Intent:  Development of single-family detached dwellings on moderate urban standard sized lots 

and for other compatible and complimentary uses. The purpose of this component is to provide 
regulations to maintain and protect the City's single-family residences and neighborhoods in 
areas with moderate lot sizes.  Such components are generally intended to offer variety in 
housing opportunities and in the fabric of the neighborhoods. 

 
GC – GENERAL COMMERCIAL:   

Features:  Any use in LC plus bar, nightclub, entertainment venues, hospital, hotel, liquor store, 
office/warehouse, vehicle and equipment sales, leasing and repair, furniture sales, pet shop, 
wholesale activities less than 3,500 sq. ft. 

Intent:  Development of small to large scale commercial, retail, and commercial service uses 
located in high traffic areas.  Access to this component should be provided by an arterial street.  
The heaviest concentration of this component should be located at intersections of arterial 
streets. 

 
 

SITE COMPONENT: 
TYPE 5 (non-residential only):   
Features:  Accessory buildings; drive-thru service; outdoor fueling and washing of vehicles; 

overhead service doors; maximum outdoor display and storage; outdoor entertainment venues 
and animal boarding. 

Intent:  
(1) The Type 5 site component is intended to be utilized with developments that have intense outdoor 

site requirements and a need to utilize the outdoor site area for maximum outdoor display, storage 
and / or accessory buildings.   

(2) This component is intended only for industrial or the heaviest commercial uses and may be 
combined only with GC, HC or HI use components.   

(3) This site component is not intended for retail or office development not requiring the available 
limits of outdoor storage and accessory buildings or adjacent to residential neighborhoods where 
not adequately buffered from residential uses.   

(4) This site component is discouraged along major thoroughfares and is intended to be utilized 
within industrial park developments. 

 
 

ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS: 
TYPE D (non-residential only):   

Features:  35% masonry (60% street facing); metal siding for remainder not facing a street; 2 or 
more architectural features. 

Intent:   
(1) This architectural component is intended only for industrial warehouse, heavy commercial service 

and other similar applications and shall be utilized only with GC, HC or HI use components.  
(2) This component is not intended to be utilized with the majority of GC districts.   

2 
 



Attachment # 1           

(3) This component is not intended for retail or office development or adjacent to residential 
neighborhoods where not adequately buffered from residential uses.   

(4) This site component is discouraged along major thoroughfares and is intended to be utilized 
within industrial park development.   

 
 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 

The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Provide Opportunities for coordinated, well-planned growth and development that are 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Strive for a fiscal balance of land uses that will create a positive impact upon the City of 

Leander’s budget and overall tax base. 
 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
The applicant is requesting to rezone the property from SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban) to GC-
5-D (General Commercial).  The properties to the northeast are established single family homes 
of the Horizon Park Subdivision, and the properties to the northwest are developed commercial 
properties.  The properties to the immediate east are also established single family homes of the 
Horizon Park Subdivision, and the properties to the immediate west are also developed 
commercial properties. The property adjacent and to south of this parcel is outside the City limits 
and is vacant. 
 
The applicant is requesting to rezone the property from SFU-2-B to GC-5-D.  This case is 
associated with an application to amend the City’s Comprehensive Plan to site a Community 
Center Node at the intersection of County Glen and S US 183 (Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
case 15-CPA-005). 
 
The present Use Component of SFU only permits residential uses, and the applicant is seeking to 
rezone the property to a GC Use Component. The intent statements of the GC Use Component 
note that it should be located along arterial streets with the heaviest concentration being located 
at intersections of arterial streets. This use component permits new vehicle and major equipment 
sales, retail sales of goods and services, office / warehouse including painting and plumbing, 
manufactured housing sales, and bars and night clubs.   
 
The property’s current Site Component is Type 2; which is intended to be utilized primarily for 
residential developments or non-residential developments that are adjacent to a residential 
district. The Type 5 site component requested by the applicant is intended to be utilized with 
developments that have intense outdoor site requirements and need to utilize the outdoor site area 
for maximum outdoor display, storage, and accessory buildings. Table 1 below briefly 
summarizes the site standards for the Type 2 and Type 5 Site Component. 
 

3 
 



Attachment # 1           

Table 1: 
Site Standards Type 2 Type 5 

Outdoor Display and Storage Not Permitted Unlimited 

Entertainment Venues and 
Outdoor Facilities Not Permitted Permitted 

Use of Overhead 
Commercial Service Doors Not Permitted Permitted 

Outdoor Fueling Not Permitted Permitted 
Outdoor Animal Boarding Not Permitted Permitted 
Outdoor Container Storage Not Permitted Permitted 

 
The property currently is paired with the Type B Architectural Component; which requires four 
architectural features and 85% masonry on the first floor of buildings and 50% masonry on each 
story thereafter.  The applicant is requesting the Type D Architectural Component; which 
requires two different architectural features and only requires masonry on building walls when 
there are street facing walls.  This architectural component is intended only for industrial 
warehouse, heavy commercial service and other similar applications.  The component is not 
intended to be utilized with the majority of GC districts and is not intended for retail or office 
development or when adjacent to residential neighborhoods.  This site component is discouraged 
along major thoroughfares and is intended to be utilized within industrial park development. 
When the building is considered to have street facing walls; the Type D Architectural 
Component requires 35% masonry on all walls of all stories and at least 60% masonry for any 
street facing wall.  The remaining exterior wall surfaces are permitted to use wood planking, 
cementious-fiber planking or panels, or painted metal siding. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff recommends denial of the applicant’s requested GC-5-D district.  The requested district 
would be inappropriately sited as it is not located at the intersection of arterial streets, where the 
majority of the GC Use Component is intended to be located. Additionally, the Type 5 site 
component is intended to be paired with properties being utilized for heavy commercial and 
industrial operations.  This portion of S. US 183 does not presently have a Type 5 Site 
Component, and would set a precedent for allowing extensive outdoor storage and potential 
extensive outdoor facilities along this portion of the corridor. Moreover, the Type D site 
component as noted by the intent statements of the Composite Zoning Ordinance is intended to 
be utilized specifically with industrial parks and areas.  S. US 183 is a major thoroughfare into 
the City of Leander, and the Type D Site Component would not provide enough architectural 
character and quality at one of the primary gateways into the City.     
 
 

4 
 



! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

PLEASANTHILLESTATES

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 3

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 6

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 8

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 7
COUNTY GLEN,SEC 5 COUNTY GLEN,SEC 1

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 2
HIGHWAYVILLAGE

ELDORADOVILLAGE

HERNANDO'S HIDEAWAY

HORIZONPARK, SEC 1

HORIZONPARK, SEC 4
HORIZONPARK, SEC 5

HORIZONPARK, SEC 7

HORIZONPARK, SEC 3

HORIZONPARK, SEC 6

HORIZONPARK, SEC 2

PLEASANT
HILL
ES

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 4

2A

5D
3A

4C

4C

3A

4C

4C

4C

1A

2A

5D

S US 183

UNION ST

S W
ES

T D
R

COUNTY GLEN

LONE OAK DR

PRESIDIO DR

SIOUX TRL

BRENTWOOD DR

KILLARNEY DR

MCCARTHUR DR

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

GOLDEN GATE DR

STANFORD DR

LIMERICK LN

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

HORIZON PARK BLVD

HERNANDOS LOOP

GL
AS

S 
DR

GLEN VALLEY LN

KATHLEEN LN

GARRISON DR

MARIN CV

TIP
PE

RA
RY

 D
R

GRANT CT

TYRONE DR

WASHINGTON SQUARE DR

LEANDER DR

BATES DR

LOMBARD DR

INVERNESS ST
HI

GH
 C

HA
PA

RR
AL

 D
R

KW
AI

 C
V

CANNERY CV

SO
NO

MA
 CV

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±

0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-015  Attachment #2 Current Zoning Map - Leander Commercial

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



S US 183

UNION ST

S W
ES

T D
R

OSAGE DR

HO
RI

ZO
N 

PA
RK

 B
LV

D

COUNTY GLEN

SUSAN LN

SIOUX TRL

GL
AS

S 
DR

EM
ER

AL
D 

ISL
E D

R

MCCARTHUR DR

APACHE TRL

SEMINOLE RD

LONE OAK DR

LEANDER DR
CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

BLOCK HOUSE DR

GOLDEN GATE DR

PRESIDIO DR

TYRONE DR

BRENTWOOD DR

KILLARNEY DR

AUTREY DR

RI
VE

R 
OA

K 
DR

KATHLEEN LN

LIMERICK LN STANFORD DR

BEVERLY LN

MI
R 

WO
OD

S D
R

GLEN VALLEY LN

LA
UR

EL
 G

LE
N 

BL
VD

HI
GH

 C
HA

PA
RR

AL
 D

R

ARAPAHO TRL

CH
ER

OK
EE

 LN

WASHINGTON SQUARE DR

ASHBURY DR
HERNANDOS LOOP

FALL CREEK DR

LOS VISTA DR

MARIN CV

GARRISON DR

TIP
PE

RA
RY

 D
R

GRANT CT

CALLE ST

BONITA VERDE DR

BATES DR

JACQUELINE DR

LOMBARD DR
FAIRFIELD LOOP

WICKLOW DR

HYDE CV

BEVERLY CV

PHILLIP CV

TRACY CV

HUNTERS POINT CT

KATHLEEN CV

KW
AI 

CV

ERIN CIR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-Z-015 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Leander Commercial

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !
! !

! !
! !

! !
!
!

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !
! !

! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !
! !

! !! !

! !
! !

! !
! !

! !
! !

! !

CRYSTALCROSSINGPH 1

RIDGEWOODNORTH

RIDGEWOODSOUTHPH 1

OAKRIDGE,SEC4

OAKRIDGE,SEC2

OAKRIDGE,SEC1

PLEASANTHILLESTATES

LEANDERHEIGHTS, SEC 3

LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 1

MAGNOLIA CREEK

MASON CREEK.SEC 1

MASON CREEK.SEC 4

MASON CREEK.SEC 5

LEANDER
HS

TIMBERLINE WEST,SEC 1

BOULDERS AT
CRYSTAL FALLS,PH I

BOULDERS AT
CRYSTAL FALLS,PH II

BOULDERS AT
CRYSTAL FALLS,PH III

WOODS AT 
WHITESTONE, SEC 1

BAGDAD COMM
PARK, SEC 1

RIDGEOAKS,SEC 1

TIMBERLINEWEST, SEC 2

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 3

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 6

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 8

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 7
COUNTY GLEN,SEC 5 COUNTY GLEN,SEC 1

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 2
HIGHWAYVILLAGE

ELDORADOVILLAGE

HERNANDO'S HIDEAWAY

HIGHCHAPARRAL

HORIZONPARK, SEC 1

HORIZONPARK, SEC 4
HORIZONPARK, SEC 5

HORIZONPARK, SEC 7

HORIZONPARK, SEC 3

HORIZONPARK, SEC 6

HORIZONPARK, SEC 2

PLEASANT
HILL
ES

RIDGEWOODSOUTHPH 2COUNTY GLEN,SEC 4

3B

5D

2A

4C

3B

3B3B

5C

3B

3B

5D

3B

3B

3B

3B

5D

3B

3B

3A

3B

3B

3B

4C

3B

3B

5D

4C

3B

5D

3B3B

2A
3A

4C

4C

5C

1B

4C

2A

4C

1A

5D

2A2A

S U
S 

18
3

S B
AG

DA
D 

RD

UNION ST

S W
ES

T D
R

OSAGE DR BLOCK HOUSE DR

COUNTY GLEN

SUSAN LN
HO

RI
ZO

N 
PA

RK
 B

LV
D

APACHE TRL

GL
AS

S 
DR

SIOUX TRL

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

SU
MA

C 
LN

LEANDER DR

LOS VISTA DR
DU

BL
IN

 D
R

SEMINOLE RD

MCCARTHUR DR
N BELL BLVD

BY
FIE

LD
 D

R

PEAR LN

IR
EL

AN
D 

DR

CYPRESS LN

POPLAR LN

LONE OAK DR

PRESIDIO DR

GOLDEN GATE DR

BONITA VERDE DR

FA
LL

 C
RE

EK
 D

R

RI
VE

R 
OA

K 
DR

GL
EN

 FI
EL

D 
DR

WOODS LN

PEACH TREE LN

TYRONE DR

BRENTWOOD DR

BO
IS 

DA
RC

 LN

TE
JA

S T
RL

LA
UR

EL
 G

LE
N 

BL
VD

AUTREY DR

HI
GH

 C
HA

PA
RR

AL
 D

R

LO
NE

 W
OL

F D
R

MO
CK

IN
GB

IR
D 

LN

COUNTY CORK LN

SPRING HOLLOW DR

S B
LO

CK
 H

OU
SE

 DR

CL
AU

DI
A 

DR HUTTON LN

LIMERICK LN

KATHLEEN LN

MI
R 

W
OO

DS
 D

R

BEVERLY LN

GLEN VALLEY LN

RUBY ISLE DR

S WALKER DR

ST
AP

LE
FO

RD
 D

R

ARAPAHO TRL

WASHINGTON SQUARE DR

SP
OTT

ED
 EA

GLE
 DR

SHAMROCK DR

ST
 G

EN
EV

IEV
E 

DR

MERITAGE BLVD

CR
EE

K R
UN

 DR

HERNANDOS LOOP

SP
Y C

V

TIE
RR

A A
LT

O 
ST

RIVER CREST

BLUELINE DR

GARRISON DR
MARIN CV

GRANT CT

BIRCH BROOK DR

WI
LL

OW
 C

RE
EK

 D
R

ARMSTRONG DR

CALLE ST

MOUNTAIN RIDGE DR

MO
SS

 C
RE

EK
 D

R

JACQUELINE DR
BATES DR

WICKLOW DR

LOMBARD DR

MOSER RIVER DR

WOODFORD DR

CA
RT

O 
ST

BEVERLY CVCYNTHIA CT

PHILLIP CV

ADENA LN

TRACY CV

KATHLEEN CV

CANNERY CV

MI
LT

ON
 C

V

HUNT CIR

ERIN CIR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±

0 200
Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-015  Attachment #4 Proposed Zoning Map - Leander Commercial

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Proposed GC-5-D



msiwek
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 5

msiwek
Typewritten Text



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO # 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING OF A PARCEL OF LAND FROM 
SFU-2-B (SINGLE-FAMILY URBAN) TO GC-5-D (GENERAL 
COMMERCIAL); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING 
FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following tract of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property.”  That certain portion of a parcel of land being 13.59 acres, more or 
less, generally located to the south of the intersection of US 183 and the Union Pacific Railroad, 
Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “A”, legally 
described as 13.59 acres out of the S. J. Dover Survey, Abstract No. 168; identified by tax 
identification numbers R031782; more particularly described in document number 1983001681 
recorded in the Williamson County Official Public Records. 
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban) to GC-5-D (General Commercial) 
as shown in Exhibit “A”.  
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
  



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 6th day of August, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 20th day of August, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !
! !

! !
! !

! !
!
!

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !
! !

! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !
! !

! !! !

! !
! !

! !
! !

! !
! !

! !

CRYSTALCROSSINGPH 1

RIDGEWOODNORTH

RIDGEWOODSOUTHPH 1

OAKRIDGE,SEC4

OAKRIDGE,SEC2

OAKRIDGE,SEC1

PLEASANTHILLESTATES

LEANDERHEIGHTS, SEC 3

LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 1

MAGNOLIA CREEK

MASON CREEK.SEC 1

MASON CREEK.SEC 4

MASON CREEK.SEC 5

LEANDER
HS

TIMBERLINE WEST,SEC 1

BOULDERS AT
CRYSTAL FALLS,PH I

BOULDERS AT
CRYSTAL FALLS,PH II

BOULDERS AT
CRYSTAL FALLS,PH IIIWOODS AT 

WHITESTONE, SEC 1

BAGDAD COMM
PARK, SEC 1

RIDGEOAKS,SEC 1

TIMBERLINEWEST, SEC 2

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 3

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 6

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 8

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 7
COUNTY GLEN,SEC 5 COUNTY GLEN,SEC 1

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 2
HIGHWAYVILLAGE

ELDORADOVILLAGE

HERNANDO'S HIDEAWAY

HIGHCHAPARRAL

HORIZONPARK, SEC 1

HORIZONPARK, SEC 4
HORIZONPARK, SEC 5

HORIZONPARK, SEC 7

HORIZONPARK, SEC 3

HORIZONPARK, SEC 6

HORIZONPARK, SEC 2

PLEASANT
HILL
ES

RIDGEWOODSOUTHPH 2COUNTY GLEN,SEC 4

3B

5D

2A

4C

3B

3B3B

5C

3B

3B

5D

3B

3B

3B

3B

5D

3B

3B

3A

3B

3B

3B

4C

3B

3B

5D

4C

3B

5D

3B3B

2A
3A

4C

4C

5C

1B

4C

2A

4C

1A

5D

2A2A

S 
US

 18
3

S 
BA

GD
AD

 R
D

UNION ST

S 
W

ES
T 

DR

OSAGE DR BLOCK HOUSE DR

COUNTY GLEN

SUSAN LN
HO

RI
ZO

N 
PA

RK
 B

LV
D

APACHE TRL

GL
AS

S 
DR

SIOUX TRL

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

SU
MA

C 
LN

LEANDER DR

LOS VISTA DR
DU

BL
IN

 D
R

SEMINOLE RD

MCCARTHUR DR
N BELL BLVD

BY
FIE

LD
 D

R

PEAR LN

IR
EL

AN
D 

DR

CYPRESS LN

POPLAR LN

LONE OAK DR

PRESIDIO DR

GOLDEN GATE DR

BONITA VERDE DR

FA
LL

 C
RE

EK
 D

R

RI
VE

R 
OA

K 
DR

GL
EN

 FI
EL

D 
DR

WOODS LN

PEACH TREE LN

TYRONE DR

BRENTWOOD DR

BO
IS

 D
AR

C 
LN

TE
JA

S 
TR

L

LA
UR

EL
 G

LE
N 

BL
VD

AUTREY DR

HI
GH

 C
HA

PA
RR

AL
 D

R

LO
NE

 W
OLF

 DR
MO

CK
IN

GB
IR

D 
LN

COUNTY CORK LN

SPRING HOLLOW DR

S B
LO

CK
 H

OU
SE

 D
R

CL
AU

DI
A 

DR HUTTON LN

LIMERICK LN

KATHLEEN LN

MI
R 

W
OO

DS
 D

R

BEVERLY LN

GLEN VALLEY LN

RUBY ISLE DR

S WALKER DR

ST
AP

LE
FO

RD
 D

R

ARAPAHO TRL

WASHINGTON SQUARE DR

SP
OTT

ED
 EA

GLE
 DR

SHAMROCK DR

ST
 G

EN
EV

IE
VE

 D
R

MERITAGE BLVD

CR
EE

K R
UN

 DR

HERNANDOS LOOP

SP
Y 

CV

TIE
RR

A 
AL

TO
 S

T

RIVER CREST

BLUELINE DR

GARRISON DR
MARIN CV

GRANT CT

BIRCH BROOK DR

W
ILL

OW
 C

RE
EK

 D
R

ARMSTRONG DR

CALLE ST

MOUNTAIN RIDGE DR

MO
SS

 C
RE

EK
 D

R

JACQUELINE DR
BATES DR

WICKLOW DR

LOMBARD DR

MOSER RIVER DR

WOODFORD DR

CA
RT

O 
ST

BEVERLY CVCYNTHIA CT

PHILLIP CV

ADENA LN

TRACY CV

KATHLEEN CV

CANNERY CV

MI
LT

ON
 C

V

HUNT CIR

ERIN CIR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±

0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-015  Exhibit A Zoning Map - Leander Commercial

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

GC-5-D





  AGENDA ITEM # 12 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
August 06, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Comprehensive Plan Amendment Case 15-CPA-006: Hold a 

public hearing and consider action on a comprehensive plan 
amendment requesting to add a Community Center Node located at 
the intersection of Ronald W. Reagan Blvd and the future 
Gabriel’s Horn Road to the Future Land Use Plan; Leander, 
Williamson County, Texas.   

 
Background: A Comprehensive Plan Amendment is required for the applicant to 

request a change to the Future Land Use Plan.  This request is the 
final step in the Comprehensive Plan Amendment process.   

 
Origination: Applicant: Jones & Carter, Inc on behalf of Pamela Christianson. 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: The Planning & Zoning Commission unanimously recommended 

approval of the staff recommendation to approve a Neighborhood 
Center Node instead of the requested Community Center Node at 
the July 23, 2015 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.  Planning Analysis 
 2.  Current Node Plan 
 3.  Proposed Node Plan 
 4.  Staff Proposed Node Plan  
 5.  Letter of Intent 
 6. Ordinance 
 7. Minutes–Planning & Zoning Commission July 23, 2015 
 
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 07/28/2015 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT  

CASE 15-CPA-006 
 

FUTURE LAND USE PLAN AMENDMENT 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Origination: Applicant: Jones & Carter, Inc on behalf of Pamela Christianson. 
 
Proposal: The applicant is proposing to add a Community Center Node located at the 

intersection of Ronald W. Reagan Blvd and the future Gabriel’s Horn 
Road to the Future Land Use Plan, Leander, Williamson County, Texas.   

 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner   
    
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Provide Opportunities for coordinated, well-planned growth and development that are 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 Provide for the coordinated and diverse growth and physical expansion of the City of 

Leander. 
  

 

ANALYSIS: 
The Future Land Use Plan and Map were adopted by the City Council on August 7, 2014.  These 
documents serve as a guide for staff, the Planning & Zoning Commission, and City Council in 
determining appropriate zoning districts and land use concept plans for properties within the City 
Limits and ETJ.  The guiding principal of the Future Land Use Plan is the protection of the value 
of single-family neighborhoods through the concentration of mixed use activity centers at major 
transportation intersections.  This principle provides for the separation of incompatible uses 
while also providing easy access for pedestrians, bicyclists and motorists to areas of retail and 
commercial development that serve the neighborhood, community and regional needs. 
 
The Future Land Use Map calls for nodes located at the intersections of arterial and collector 
class roadways.  The plan calls for a higher concentration of mixed use activity center within 
these nodes in order to discourage strip commercial development.  The applicant is proposing to 
locate a Community Center Node at the intersection of Ronald W. Reagan Blvd and the future 
Gabriel’s Horn Road.  There is a Neighborhood Center Node located at the future intersection of 
E San Gabriel Pkwy and Ronald W. Reagan Blvd and a Community Center Node located at the 
intersection of future intersection of Arterial 1 and Ronald W. Reagan Blvd. 
 

1 
 



Attachment # 1                 

Each node provides several categories of land use with the intent to integrate land uses that make 
efficient use of the infrastructure systems while protecting sensitive land and providing a system 
of open space and parks.  The plan encourages mixed use development in the activity center in 
order to provide services to neighborhoods as well as the community.   
 
The Neighborhood Center Node is intended 
to be located at the intersection of collector 
streets and are approximately one quarter 
mile in diameter incorporating 
approximately 30 acres.  These areas are 
intended for neighborhood scale 
commercial, retail and office uses that serve 
the immediately adjacent neighborhoods.  
These areas are also intended for higher 
density single-family, two-family and other 
compatible housing types including 
townhouses and condominiums.  The 
exhibit to the right identifies the proposed 
mix of land uses within a Neighborhood 
Center Node. 
 
 
The Community Center Node is intended to be located at the intersections of arterial streets or 
arterials and major collectors.  These nodes are approximately one half mile in diameter and 
incorporate approximately 125 acres.  
These areas are intended for commercial, 
retail and office uses that primarily serve 
residents within the community.  These 
areas are also intended for medium density 
multi-family and high density single-family 
housing.  Development within both the 
Neighborhood Center and Community 
Center Nodes should be integrated through 
internal streets and should provide 
pedestrian and bicycle connections to 
adjacent residential neighborhoods. The 
exhibit to the right identifies the proposed 
mix of land uses within a Community 
Center Node. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2 
 

40% 

10% 

50% 

Neighborhood Center  
Target Land Use Mix 

Neighborhood
Commercial/Ret
ail

Office

High Density
Single-Family

30% 

15% 

20% 

35% 

Community Center  
Target Land Use Mix 

Regional
Commercial/Retail

Office

Multi-Family

High Density Single-
Family



Attachment # 1                 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends denial of the proposed request to add a Community Center Node and approval 
of a Neighborhood Center Node at this location.  The proposed uses associated with this 
development are LC-2-B (Local Commercial) and SFC-2-B (Single-Family Compact), which are 
compatible with the Neighborhood Center Node.  In addition, the proposed Community Center 
Node is located in close proximity to an existing Community Center Node to the north.  There is 
no demand for an additional Community Center Node at this location.  The approval of a 
Neighborhood Center Node would be compatible with the zoning proposal based on the size of 
the node and the proposed land uses.   
 

3 
 



2B

2B2B

2B

2B2B 2B2B 2B 2B
2B

2B2B 2B2B 2B 2B
2B2B

2B2B 2B2B 2B2B2B

2B

2B2B 2B

2B

2B2B 2B 2B2B

A1

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

GABRIELS H ORN RD
RONALD W

 REAGAN BLVD

VIA DE SIEN

NA BLVD

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

CR 268

RI
DG

E 
VI

EW
 D

R

MO
NT

AL
CI

NO
 L

N

BRADLEY RANCH RD

CR 274

ARREZO LN

CORTONA LN
FLORENZ LN

LA GROTTA LN

SAN MATTEO ST

ROSADI CV

SANTA MARIA ST

FOSINI CV

UM
BE

R L
N

PARK PLACE DR

GABRIELS LOOP

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 400

Feet

COMP PLAN 15-CPA-006

Attachment #2
Ronald Reagan Blvd & Gabriel's Horn Rd
Current Future Land Use Plan

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Toll Road
Arterial
Collector
Arterial
Collector

City Limits

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



2B

2B

2B

2B 2B2B 2B2B2B2B 2B2B 2B
2B

2B 2B2B
2B

2B

2B

A1

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

GABRIELS HORN RD

W SH 29

RO
NA

LD
W

RE
AG

AN
BL

VD

VIA D E SIENNA BLVD

KAUFFMAN LOOP
KA

UF
FM

AN
 LO

OP
KAUFF MAN LO

OP

W SH 29

CR
 26

7

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

CR 268

RI
DG

E 
VI

EW
 D

R

LA
KE

 S
ID

E 
DR

PA
RK

 P
LA

CE
 D

R

MO
NT

AL
CI

NO
 L

N

BRADLEY RANCH RD

PENNA LN

OA
K 

PL
AZ

A 
DR

OA
K 

ME
AD

OW
 D

R

CR 274

WATERFORD LN

ARREZO LN

CORTONA LN

GROSSETO LN

LA GROTTA LN

MAGONA TRL

GABRIELS LOOP

SANTA MARIA ST

WEST VIEW DR

FOSINI CV

MA
RT

IN
O 

TR
L

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 400

Feet

COMP PLAN 15-CPA-006

Attachment #3
Ronald Reagan Blvd & Gabriel's Horn Rd
Proposed Future Land Use Plan

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Toll Road
Arterial
Collector
Arterial
Collector

City Limits

Neighborhood 
Center Node

Proposed
Community
Center Node

Town
Center Node

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Community
Center Node



2B2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B2B
2B 2B

2B

2B 2B

2B 2B

2B
2B

2B
2B

2B2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B2B2B2B
2B

2B 2B2B 2B

2B

2B2B

2B2B 2B

2B

2B

2B

A1

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

GABRIE LS HORN RD

RONALD W
 REAGAN BLVD

VIA DE SIENNA BLVD

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

CR 268

RI
DG

E 
VI

EW
 D

R

KAUFFMAN LOOP

LA
KE

 S
ID

E 
DR

W SH 29

PARK PLACE DR

MO
NT

AL
CI

NO
 L

N

VISTA HEIGHTS DR DRVW

BRADLEY RANCH RD

PENNA LN

OAK PLAZA DR

OA
K 

ME
AD

OW
 D

R

CR 274

WATERFORD LN

ARREZO LN

CORTONA LN

GROSSETO LN

LA GROTTA LN

BONNET BLVD

MAGONA TRL

ROSADI CV

GABRIELS LOOP

SANTA MARIA ST

WEST VIEW DR

FOSINI CV

RUFFINO LN

OAK PLAZA CV

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 400

Feet

COMP PLAN 15-CPA-006

Attachment #4
Ronald Reagan Blvd & Gabriel's Horn Rd
Staff Proposed Future Land Use Plan

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Toll Road
Arterial
Collector
Arterial
Collector

Neighborhood 
Center Node

Community
Center Node

Proposed
Neighborhood 
Center Node

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.





Amending Ordinance 14-044-00 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE PLAN SET FORTH IN THE 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS; 
FINDING AND DETERMINING THAT THE MEETING AT WHICH 
THIS ORDINANCE IS PASSED IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS 
REQUIRED BY LAW. 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary and reasonable for the public health, safety, morals, and 

welfare of the City of Leander, Texas, a Texas home rule municipality, (herein the “City”) to 
provide for and maintain a comprehensive plan for the City in accordance with the City Charter and 
Chapters 211 and 213 of the Texas Local Government Code;  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the Future Land Use Plan set forth in the 

Comprehensive Plan by Ordinance No. 14-044-00; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the adoption of the amendments to the Future Land 

Use Plan herein promote the public health, safety, morals, and welfare and provide for the orderly 
development of the City; and 
 
  WHEREAS, after review, inquiry and the opportunity for citizen participation at one or 
more public hearings and review and recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Commission, the 
City Council approves the amendments to the Comprehensive Plan hereinafter set forth;      

  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Section 1.   Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and 
are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 

 
Section 2. Comprehensive Plan.  The City Council hereby adopts the amendment to 

the Future Land Use Plan that is attached hereto as Exhibit A.  The Future Land Plan, as 
amended, shall be kept in the office of the City Secretary and shall be available for public 
inspection during normal office hours.  Zoning uses, as amended from time to time at the request 
of the landowner or on motion of the City, shall be amended to be made consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan, as amended.  The City may amend the Comprehensive Plan in the 
discretion of the City Council in accordance with the City Charter and state law to plan for the 
changing plans of the City. 

 
Section 3. Amendment of Conflicting Ordinances.  The City of Leander Future 

Land Use Plan previously adopted by Ordinance No. 14-044-00 is hereby amended to the extent 
of any conflict with Exhibit A. The City of Leander Comprehensive Plan, all ordinances and 
parts of ordinances, and all resolutions and parts of resolutions in conflict with this Ordinance are 
amended to the extent of such conflict.  In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between this 



Ordinance and any other code, ordinance, or plan of the City, the terms and provisions of this 
Ordinance shall govern. 
 
 Section 4.   Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in force and effect from and after 
its passage on the date shown below. 
 
 Section 5.   Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice 
of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, 
Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on this 6th day of August, 2015. 
       
ATTEST:      THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
_________________________   _________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary     Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

 2 



2B

2B

2B

2B 2B2B 2B2B2B2B 2B2B 2B
2B

2B 2B2B
2B

2B

2B

A1

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

GABRIELS HORN RD

W SH 29

RO
NA

LD
W

RE
AG

AN
BL

VD

VIA D E SIENNA BLVD

KAUFFMAN LOOP
KA

UF
FM

AN
 LO

OP
KAUFF MAN LO

OP

W SH 29

CR
 26

7

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

CR 268

RI
DG

E 
VI

EW
 D

R

LA
KE

 S
ID

E 
DR

PA
RK

 P
LA

CE
 D

R

MO
NT

AL
CI

NO
 L

N

BRADLEY RANCH RD

PENNA LN

OA
K 

PL
AZ

A 
DR

OA
K 

ME
AD

OW
 D

R

CR 274

WATERFORD LN

ARREZO LN

CORTONA LN

GROSSETO LN

LA GROTTA LN

MAGONA TRL

GABRIELS LOOP

SANTA MARIA ST

WEST VIEW DR

FOSINI CV

MA
RT

IN
O 

TR
L

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 400

Feet

COMP PLAN 15-CPA-006

Exhibit A
Ronald Reagan Blvd & Gabriel's Horn Rd

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Toll Road
Arterial
Collector
Arterial
Collector

City Limits

Neighborhood 
Center Node

Neighborhood
Center Node

Town
Center Node

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Community
Center Node





  AGENDA ITEM # 13 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
August 06, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 15-Z-014: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of two parcels of land located at 18130 Ronald 
Reagan Blvd; 58.675 acres more or less; WCAD Parcels R489942 
and R021710.  Currently, the property is zoned Interim SFR-1-B 
(Single Family Rural).  The applicant is proposing to zone the 
property to SFC-2-A (Single Family Compact) and LC-2-A (Local 
Commercial), Leander, Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Jones & Carter, Inc on behalf of Pamela Christianson. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: The Planning & Zoning Commission unanimously recommended 

approval at the July 23, 2015 meeting. 
 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3.   Aerial Map 
 4. Proposed Zoning Map 
 5.   Letter of Intent 
 6.  Ordinance 
 7.  Minutes–Planning & Zoning Commission July 23, 2015 
 
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 07/30/2015 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 15-Z-014 

RED OAK VALLEY 
 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Pamela Christianson 
 
Current Zoning: Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) 
 
Proposed Zoning: SFC-2-A (Single-Family Compact) 
 LC-2-A (Local Commercial) 
  
Size and Location: The property is located at 18130 Ronald W. Reagan Blvd and includes 

approximately 58.675 acres. 
 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH OCL Undeveloped Land – Proposed Rancho Sienna Neighborhood 

EAST Interim SFR-1-B Undeveloped Property Zoned for Single-Family 

SOUTH OCL Undeveloped Property 

WEST GC-3-C 
SFR-1-B 

Undeveloped Commercial Property 
Large Lot Single-Family 

        

  

1 
 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 
USE COMPONENTS:   

SFC – SINGLE FAMILY COMPACT:   
Features:  5,500 sq. ft. lot min.; 1,100 sq. ft. living area min. 
Intent:  Development of single-family detached dwellings on small lots and for other compatible 

and complimentary uses. The purpose of this component is to provide regulations to maintain 
and protect the City's single-family residences and neighborhoods in areas with small lot sizes.  
Such components are generally intended to offer variety in housing opportunities and in the 
fabric of the neighborhoods, and to be developed on a moderate scale with a maximum district 
size of seventy-five (75) acres. 

 
LC – LOCAL COMMERCIAL:   
Features: Any use in LO plus retail sales and services, restaurants, banks, nursery or greenhouse, 

grocery sales, pharmacies, fitness centers, dance and music academies, artist studio, colleges 
and universities, bed and breakfast.  Hours of operation: 5:00 a.m. to 10:00 Sun.-Thurs., 5:00 
a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Fri. and Sat. 

Intent:  Development of small scale, limited impact commercial, retail, personal services and 
office uses located in close proximity to their primary customers, which cater to the everyday 
needs of the nearby residents, and which may be located near residential neighborhoods.  
Access should be provided by a collector or higher classification street. 

 
SITE COMPONENTS:   

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with HC and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS:   

TYPE A:   
Features:  85% masonry; 5 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   

2 
 



Attachment # 1                 

(1) The Type A architectural component is intended to be utilized for high quality developments or to 
provide variety as an additional option for portions of a residential development and may be 
utilized in or adjacent to single-family uses.   

(2) This component is intended to be utilized for single-family development that backs up to, or sides 
to, a major thoroughfare. 

(3) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 
for harmonious land use transitions by applying this component to a less restrictive use or site 
component adjacent to a more restrictive use or site component.  This standard may be utilized to 
help ensure compatibility for non-residential uses, multi-family, two-family, townhouse or small 
lot residential development with adjacent property that is more restricted.   

(4) This component is intended to be utilized for buildings requiring heights greater than those 
provided in other architectural components.   

(5) This component may be utilized for any high profile development, for any property in a prominent 
location or at an important gateway to the community. 

(6) This component is not intended to become an involuntary standard for the majority of a single-
family subdivision, especially with SFR, SFE, SFS, SFU and SFC components. 

 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Provide for the coordinated and diverse growth and physical expansion of the City of 

Leander. 
 Plan for future development that is compatible with existing residential neighborhoods. 

 
 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant has submitted a request for a zoning change the zoning to the SFC-2-A (Single-
Family Compact) and LC-2-A (Local Commercial) to allow for a single-family and commercial 
development at this location.  This property is surrounded by the proposed Rancho Sienna 
Subdivision to the north, large lot single family to the east and south, and undeveloped land 
zoned for single-family and commercial to the west.   
 
This property was subject to a voluntary annexation that was completed on November 6, 2014.  
The Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) district was established with the annexation of the 
property.  This case is associated with a Comprehensive Plan Amendment to add a Community 
Center Node at the future intersection of Ronald W. Reagan Blvd and Gabriel’s Horn Road.   
 
This property is currently designated as residential neighborhood as part of the Future Land Use 
Plan.  Residential neighborhoods are the predominate land use within the City and it's ETJ.  
Neighborhoods are primarily composed of single-family detached housing and include other 
compatible uses including parks, schools, and places of worship.  Neighborhoods may be low to 
moderate density depending upon the topography and the feasibility of providing organized 
sewer service.  Areas with steep topography, flood plain or other natural features that are 
intended to be preserved and served by on-site sewage systems will be the lowest density while 
areas that are relatively flat and where organized sewer systems are feasible will be of medium 

3 
 



Attachment # 1                 

density.  Residential neighborhoods provide connections to each other and to neighborhood, 
community and town center nodes.  A variety of lot and house sizes are encouraged within 
residential neighborhoods. 
 
The proposed SFC use component permits detached dwellings on small lots that are a minimum 
of fifty feet wide.  The intent of this use component is to offer a variety of housing opportunities 
and to maintain and protect the City’s single-family neighborhoods.  A six foot masonry wall and 
a ten foot landscape lot will be required for single-family lots located adjacent to Ronald W. 
Reagan Blvd. 
 
The LC use component permits the development of small scale, limited impact commercial, 
retail, personal services, and office uses located in close proximity to residential neighborhoods.  
The hours of operation are limited to 5:00 a.m. to 10:00 Sunday through Thursday and 5:00 a.m. 
to 11:00 p.m. Friday and Saturday. 
 
The Type 2 site component is intended to be paired with residential and non-residential districts 
that are located adjacent to residential neighborhoods.  This site component does not allow 
outdoor storage or display, overhead commercial doors, outdoor fueling, or outdoor animal 
boarding.  The building size is also limited to 60,000 square feet. 
 
The Type A architectural component requires that all structures are 85% masonry and include a 
minimum five design features for buildings less than 50,000 square feet. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested SFC-2-A and LC-2-A districts with the condition 
that the Comprehensive Plan Amendment is also approved.  This zoning district provides for the 
development of both commercial and residential uses along Ronald W. Reagan Blvd.  The 
request meets the intent statements of the Composite Zoning Ordinance and the goals of the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 

4 
 



! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

REAGAN'S OVERLOOK

PALMERA RIDGE

RANCHO SIENNA

PARKERTRACT

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B 2B2B 2B2B

2B

2B2B 2B 2B 2B2B

2B 2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B2B 2B2B 2B 2B 2B

2B

2B

2B 2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B 2B2B

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

VISTA HEIGHTS DR

BRADLEY RANCH RD

RI
DG

E 
VI

EW
 D

R

CR 274

VIA DE SIENNA BLVD

LA GROTTA LN

SANTA MARIA ST

MO
NT

AL
CI

NO
 L

N

FOSINI CV

UNITY DR

UM
BE

R L
N

SAN MATTEO ST

RA
NC

HO
 T

RL

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±

0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-014  Attachment #2 Current Zoning Map - Red Oak Valley

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

REAGAN'S OVERLOOK

PALMERA RIDGE

RANCHO SIENNA

PARKERTRACT

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B 2B2B 2B2B

2B

2B2B 2B 2B 2B2B

2B 2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B2B 2B2B 2B 2B 2B

2B

2B

2B 2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B 2B2B

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

VISTA HEIGHTS DR

BRADLEY RANCH RD

RI
DG

E 
VI

EW
 D

R

CR 274

VIA DE SIENNA BLVD

LA GROTTA LN

SANTA MARIA ST

MO
NT

AL
CI

NO
 L

N

FOSINI CV

UNITY DR

UM
BE

R L
N

SAN MATTEO ST

RA
NC

HO
 T

RL

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±

0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-014  Attachment #3 Proposed Zoning Map - Red Oak Valley

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

BRADLEY RANCH RD

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-Z-014 Attachment #4
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Red Oak Valley

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 5



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO # 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING OF A PORTION OF A TRACT 
FROM INTERIM SFR-1-B (SINGLE-FAMILY RURAL) TO SFC-2-A 
(SINGLE-FAMILY COMPACT) AND LC-2-B (LOCAL OFFICE); 
MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED 
MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following tract of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property.”  That certain portion of a parcel of land being 58.675 acres, more or 
less, located at 18130 Ronald W. Reagan Blvd, Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more 
particularly described in Exhibit “A”, legally described as 58.675 acres out of the G. Fisk Survey, 
Abstract No. 5; identified by tax identification numbers R489942 and R021710; more particularly 
described in document number 2009014393 recorded in the Williamson County Official Public 
Records. 
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) to SFC-2-A (Single-Family 
Compact) and LC-2-A (Local Commercial) as shown in Exhibits “A” and “B”.  
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
  



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 6th day of August, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 20th day of August, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



rstover
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

REAGAN'S OVERLOOK

PALMERA RIDGE

RANCHO SIENNA

PARKERTRACT

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B 2B2B 2B2B

2B

2B2B 2B 2B 2B2B

2B 2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B2B 2B2B 2B 2B 2B

2B

2B

2B 2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B 2B2B

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

VISTA HEIGHTS DR

BRADLEY RANCH RD

RI
DG

E 
VI

EW
 D

R

CR 274

VIA DE SIENNA BLVD

LA GROTTA LN

SANTA MARIA ST

MO
NT

AL
CI

NO
 L

N

FOSINI CV

UNITY DR

UM
BE

R L
N

SAN MATTEO ST

RA
NC

HO
 T

RL

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±

0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-014  Exhibit B Zoning Map - Red Oak Valley

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

SFC-2-A

LC-2-A







  AGENDA ITEM # 14 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
August 06, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 14-Z-034: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of several parcels of land generally located to the 
northeast of the intersection of CR 279 and Collaborative Way, to 
the north of the Savanna Ranch Subdivision; 262 acres more or 
less; WCAD Parcels R031696, R031697, R031695 and R392814.  
Currently, the property is zoned Interim SFR-1-B (Single Family 
Rural).  The applicant is proposing to zone the property to PUD 
(Planned Unit Development), Leander, Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: David Singleton on behalf of Deerbrooke Land Austin, 

LLC.  
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: The Planning & Zoning Commission unanimously recommended 

approval of the request at the July 23, 2015 meeting. 
 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3.   Aerial Map 
 4. Proposed Zoning Map 
 5.  Proposed PUD 
 6.   Letter of Intent 
 7.  Ordinance 
 8.  Minutes–Planning & Zoning Commission July 23, 2015 
 
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 07/24/2015 
 
  



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-034 

DEERBROOKE PUD 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Deerbrooke Land Austin, LLC. 
 
Current Zoning: Interim SFR-1-B (Single Family Rural).   
    
Proposed Zoning: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
  
Size and Location: The property is generally located to the northeast of the intersection of CR 

279 and Collaborative Way, to the north of the Savanna Ranch 
Subdivision; and includes approximately 262 acres in size. 

 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH OCL Large Lot Single Family & Undeveloped Land located outside 
the City Limits 

EAST OCL Large Lot Single Family & Undeveloped Land located outside 
the City Limits 

SOUTH SFU-2-B LISD Campus 

WEST OCL Large Lot Single Family & Undeveloped Land located outside 
the City Limits 

        

  

 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 
USE COMPONENTS:   

PUD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: 
The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) district is to design unified 
standards for development in order to facilitate flexible, customized zoning and subdivision 
standards which encourage imaginative and innovative designs for the development of 
property within the City.  The intent of this zoning request is to provide for a walkable, 
pedestrian friendly neighborhood. The contents of this PUD further explain and illustrate the 
overall appearance and function desired for this community. A Conceptual Site Layout and 
Land Use Plan has been attached to this PUD, Exhibit B, to illustrate the design intent for the 
property. The Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan is intended to serve as a guide to 
illustrate the general community vision and design concepts and is not intended to serve as a 
final document. The Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan depicts a mix of residential 
products and open space areas that are contemplated within the community.  The intent of 
this zoning district is to cohesively regulate the development to assure compatibility with 
adjacent single-family residences, neighborhoods, and commercial properties within the 
region. 

  
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Provide for a variety of sustainable housing options for all age groups and economic 

levels.  Determine ways to successfully integrate this variety within neighborhoods so as 
to accommodate the different needs of families throughout their life cycle.  Create more 
desirable and livable neighborhoods while respecting the goal of maintaining stable real 
estate values and housing marketability. 

 Establish high standards for development. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting the PUD (Planned Unit Development) district in order to allow for 
the development of a mixed residential community that will include a variety of housing types as 
well as condominium regime residential development.  The proposal includes detached 
residential lot widths ranging from as narrow as forty (40’) feet to over eighty (80’) feet wide.  
The applicant has incorporated the mixture of residential districts in a well integrated 
neighborhood plan providing a variety of lot sizes within the same neighborhood.    
 
The PUD proposal includes the following base zoning districts:   
 SFE-2-B (Single-Family Estate)  
 SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban) 
 SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban) 
 SFC-2-B (Single-Family Compact) 

 



Attachment # 1                 

 SFL-2-B (Single-Family Limited) 
 MF-2-B (Multi-Family)  

 
The table below identifies the proposed development standards for the residential zoning 
districts,  setbacks, and lot sizes for this project.  The primary difference between the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance and the proposed PUD is the lot size and the setbacks associated with the 
SFL-2-B district and the lot size associated with the SFS-2-B and SFE-2-B districts.  The 
ordinance currently requires the lot width to be 41 feet and the minimum lot size to be 4,100 
square feet for properties zoned SFL-2-B.  The applicant is requesting to reduce the lot size for  
SFS-2-B by 600 square feet and the SFE-2-B lots by 1,600 square feet.  The MF-2-B district is 
limited to single-family condominiums/cluster product with a maximum of 130 units.  
Traditional style apartment complexes are not permitted. 
 

 
DETACHED 
40 ft. & wider 

lot 
(SFL base) 

DETACHED 
50 ft. & wider 

lot 
(SFC base) 

DETACHED 
60 ft. & wider 

lot (SFU 
base) 

DETACHED 
70 ft. & 
wider lot 

(SFS base) 

DETACHED 
80 ft. & wider 

lot 
(SFE base) 

CLUSTER 
(Setbacks 

are for 
perimeter) 

Lot 
Area 

(min.) 
4,000 s.f. 5,500 s.f. 7,200 s.f. 8,400 s.f. 10,400 s.f. n/a 

Lot 
Width 
(min.) 

40 ft. 50 ft. 60 ft. 70 ft. 80 ft. n/a 

Front 
Setback 
(min.) 

20 ft. 20 ft. 20 ft. 20 ft. 20 ft. 20 ft. 

Side 
Setback 
(min.) 

5 ft. or 0 ft. & 
10 ft. 5 ft. 5 ft. 5 ft. 5 ft. 

10 ft. 
building 

separation 
Corner 
Lot -
Street 
Side 

Setback 
(min.) 

15 ft. 15 ft. 15 ft. 15 ft. 15 ft. 20 ft. 

Rear 
Setback 
(min.) 

10 ft. 10 ft. 15 ft. 15 ft. 15 ft. 20 ft. 

Lot 
Depth 
(min.) 

100 ft. 105 ft. 110 ft. 115 ft. 120 ft. n/a 

 
The proposed condominium/cluster development will comply with the single-family garage 
standards and landscape requirements.  They have also requested a waiver to the Riparian 
Corridor Setbacks.  Currently, the ordinance requires a 100 foot setback from centerline of any 
riparian corridor.  They have proposed to average the total riparian corridor setback to facilitate 
the placement of water quality improvements.  They will compensate for any encroachments by 
adding more land to the setback in other areas.  

 



Attachment # 1                 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested PUD.  The proposed PUD promotes more flexibility 
with the location of the single-family districts and incorporates a mixture of cluster 
condominium style homes.  This application effectively utilizes composite zoning to incorporate 
a variety of land uses while maintaining high form standards.  The requested PUD meets the 
intent statements of the Composite Zoning Ordinance and the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 



SAVANNA RANCH,SEC 1

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 2

TOM GLENN
HS

4C

5D

CR 279

LIVE OAK RD

OA
K 

GR
OV

E 
RDCR 280

OAK CREEK RD

COLLABORATIVE WAY

TERRY LN

HA
LS

EY
 D

R

ARVADA DR

WOLCOTT DR

HARTMAN DR

MATHESON DR

RE
D 

OA
K 

LN
MOCKINGBIRD HILL

KERSEY DR

PI
TK

IN
 D

R

BYRON CIR

CH
IM

NE
Y 

DR

FARVIEW CIR

OL
NE

Y 
DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±

0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-034  Attachment #2 Current Zoning Map - Deerbrooke PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

City Limits
Subject Property
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



CR 279

LIVE OAK RD

OA
K G

RO
VE

 R
D

COLLABORATIVE WAY

CR 280

OAK CREEK RD

TERRY LN

RE
D 

OA
K L

N

KERSEY DR

BYRON CIR
MOCKINGBIRD HILL

FARVIEW CIR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 14-Z-034 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Deerbrooke Subdivision

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



SAVANNA RANCH,SEC 1

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 2

TOM GLENN
HS

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

4C

5D

CR 279

LIVE OAK RD

OA
K 

GR
OV

E 
RDCR 280

OAK CREEK RD

COLLABORATIVE WAY

TERRY LN

HA
LS

EY
 D

R

ARVADA DR

WOLCOTT DR

HARTMAN DR

MATHESON DR

RE
D 

OA
K 

LN
MOCKINGBIRD HILL

KERSEY DR

PI
TK

IN
 D

R

BYRON CIR

CH
IM

NE
Y 

DR

FARVIEW CIR

OL
NE

Y 
DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±

0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-034  Attachment #4 Proposed Zoning Map - Deerbrooke PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

City Limits
Subject Property
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



  ATTACHMENT 5  

Exhibit A 
 

Deerbrooke Planned Unit Development 
 
 

A. Purpose and Intent 
The Deerbrooke PUD is composed of approximately 262 acres, as described in 
Exhibit C (Field Notes). The development of this property is planned as a high quality, 
residential community with a variety of residential product types. 
 
Deerbrooke has been designed to create walkable, pedestrian friendly neighborhoods. 
The contents of this PUD further explain and illustrate the overall appearance and 
function desired for this community. A Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 
has been attached to this PUD, Exhibit B, to illustrate the design intent for the 
property. The Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan is intended to serve as a 
guide to illustrate the general community vision and design. The Conceptual Site 
Layout and Land Use Plan depicts a mix of residential products and open space areas 
that are contemplated within the community. 

 
 
B. Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 

The Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan (Exhibit B) is a conceptual 
development plan intended to visually convey the design intent for the Deerbrooke 
community. The design of the community is not final, and is subject to refinement 
during the platting and site planning stages. This PUD zoning document does not 
constitute plat or site plan approval of the attached plan. 
 
The Deerbrooke project is comprised of a mix of various single-family detached and 
cluster products. Deerbrooke will include a cohesive network of open spaces, 
including parks, water quality areas, floodplain and trail corridors. The open space 
and trails system combined with the sidewalk network will be critical in establishing 
a walkable community. 
 
The intent for this development is to save as many of the existing trees as possible. 
On each lot where native trees are not present or preserved in the front yard, the 
builder will install (2) - 2” caliper trees and 10 shrubs in the front yard during the 
construction of each residential unit. [No additional trees are required to be planted on 
a lot if at least two (2) native trees with a minimum diameter of 4” measured 18” 
above finished grade are preserved on the lot.] 

 
 
C. Applicability and Base Zoning 

All aspects regarding the development of this PUD shall comply with the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance, except as established in this exhibit, 
titled Exhibit A. 
 



 
For the purpose of establishing development standards for the PUD, base zoning 
districts have been selected from the Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance for the 
various residential products proposed within the PUD. 

 
 For Lots 80’ and wider: Base Zoning District SFE- 2-B (Single Family Estate) 
 For Lots 70’ and wider: Base Zoning District SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban) 
 For Lots 60’ and wider: Base Zoning District SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban) 
 For Lots 50’- 59’: Base Zoning District SFC-2-B (Single-Family Compact) 
 For Lots 40’- 49’: Base Zoning District SFL-2-B (Single-Family Limited) 
 For Single Family Condominium Cluster: MF-2-B (Multi-Family) 

 
This PUD allows the flexibility to mix the various residential products and define 
boundaries for each lot type during the platting process. Each plat or site plan 
submitted to the City will identify the use at the time of Final Plat or Site Plan 
Submittal. All neighborhoods within the PUD will comply with the modified 
development standards of this PUD. In the case that this PUD does not address a 
specific City requirement, the Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance shall apply. In 
the event of a conflict between this PUD and the base-zoning district found in the 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance, the PUD shall be the controlling document. 

 
 
D. Residential Product Type Requirements 

To ensure a variety and mix of residential product types within Deerbrooke, the 
following standards have been established: 

 
  1.  Single-Family Condominium (Cluster) 
    Maximum of 130 units 
  2.  SFL Single-Family Limited-40’ lots 
    Maximum of 20 units   

  3. SFC Single-Family Compact – 50’ lots  
    Maximum of 250 units  

  4. SFU Single-Family Urban-60’ lots  
    Minimum of 100 units  
  5. SFS Single-Family Suburban-70’ lots 

    Minimum of 75 units  
  6. SFE Single-Family Estate-80’ lots 

    Minimum of 50 units  
 
 
E. Lot Design Standards 

Residential Areas: 
Deerbrooke will include a variety of residential product types and sizes. The detached 
residential has been broken into six categories based upon lot width and size.  Cluster 
housing has been designated as an individual category. Detailed design standards are 
included within this PUD as Table 1, and are based upon the type of residential 

 
Deerbrooke – Planned Unit Development   Page 2 of 4 
 
 



product being constructed. 
 
Table 1 Development Standards 
 

 
DETACHED 
40 ft. & wider 

lot 
(SFL base) 

DETACHED 
50 ft. & wider 

lot 
(SFC base) 

DETACHED 
60 ft. & wider 

lot (SFU 
base) 

DETACHED 
70 ft. & 
wider lot 

(SFS base) 

DETACHED 
80 ft. & wider 

lot 
(SFE base) 

CLUSTER 
(Setbacks 

are for 
perimeter) 

Lot 
Area 

(min.) 
4,000 s.f. 5,500 s.f. 7,200 s.f. 8,400 s.f. 10,400 s.f. n/a 

Lot 
Width 
(min.) 

40 ft. 50 ft. 60 ft. 70 ft. 80 ft. n/a 

Front 
Setback 
(min.) 

20 ft. 20 ft. 20 ft. 20 ft. 20 ft. 20 ft. 

Side 
Setback 
(min.) 

5 ft. or 0 ft. & 
10 ft. 5 ft. 5 ft. 5 ft. 5 ft. 

10 ft. 
building 

separation 
Corner 
Lot -
Street 
Side 

Setback 
(min.) 

15 ft. 15 ft. 15 ft. 15 ft. 15 ft. 20 ft. 

Rear 
Setback 
(min.) 

10 ft. 10 ft. 15 ft. 15 ft. 15 ft. 20 ft. 

Lot 
Depth 
(min.) 

100 ft. 105 ft. 110 ft. 115 ft. 120 ft. n/a 

* Minimum dwelling sizes shall comply with the standards detailed in the related 
underlying zoning districts. 
 
 
F. Single-Family Condominium Cluster 

The parcels contemplated for cluster housing are limited to a total number of units not 
to exceed 130 and maximum of density of 18 units per acre. If a cluster product is 
proposed, the site will be processed as a single lot site plan. The cluster product shall 
be developed as detached single-family units developed in a condo regime. The units 
will be sold as condominium units with common open space areas that shall be 
maintained by a separate Condominium Homeowners Association.  
 
Building envelopes on cluster lots shall be a minimum of thirty-feet by seventy-feet 
(30’x70’) and the minimum dwelling size shall comply with the standards detailed in 
the SFL zoning District of the Composite Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Architectural Standards for single family districts established in Article VIII of the 

 
Deerbrooke – Planned Unit Development   Page 3 of 4 
 
 



Composite Zoning Ordinance shall apply to the lots developed as part of the Single-
Family Condominium Cluster housing.   
 
Single-Family Condominium Cluster Landscape Standards: 
1. The project shall comply with the applicable Landscape Requirements for single-

family districts as listed in Article VI of the Composite Zoning Ordinance.  In 
addition, this residential type shall comply with the multi-family provisions 
regarding Tree Preservation and Protection. 

2. Minimum landscape requirements per unit shall be: (2) - 2” significant trees (oak, 
elm, pecan, walnut, hickory, cherry, cypress, redbud and any rare species) 
measured 18” above finished grade immediately after planting, (5) – 1-gallon 
shrubs and (5) – 5-gallon shrubs in the front yard. [No additional trees are 
required to be planted on a lot if at least two (2) native trees with a minimum 
diameter of 4” measured 18” above finished grade are preserved in the front yard 
of the lot] 

 
 
G. Garage / Parking Standards 

1. Homes built on a Single Family Condominium Cluster lot shall have a minimum 
of a single car garage.  

2. Homes built on SFL 40’ fee-simple lots shall have a minimum of a single car 
garage with driveways at least 18-feet long and 9-feet wide (to provide an 
additional off-street parking space).  Alley loaded homes are not required. 

3. The garage placement standards established in Article VIII of the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance shall apply to all development. 

4. All other lots shall comply with the garage and parking standards as stated in the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance.  

 
 
H. Fencing 

All lots that back onto parks or floodplain areas shall utilize 6 foot, wrought iron or 
decorative tubular metal view fencing. 

 
 
I. Flag Lots 

In order to provide a legal lot for the water quality ponds within Deerbrooke, the 
minimum flag lot width shall be fifteen (15) feet. This provision shall not apply to 
residential lots. 

 
 
J. Riparian Corridor Setbacks 

Riparian Corridor Standards shall apply to the PUD.  Riparian corridor setbacks may 
be shifted as necessary to facilitate placement of required water quality improvements, 
and averaged so as the total riparian corridor setback area is equal to or greater than 
the riparian corridor setbacks as stated in the Subdivision Ordinance. 

 
Deerbrooke – Planned Unit Development   Page 4 of 4 
 
 



CivilE, LLC
8240 N. Mopac Expy
Suite 125
Austin, TX  78759

Office: 512-402-6878
Fax: 512-402-6947

Texas Registered Engineering Firm F-15581

  



N




































rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 6



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING SEVERAL PARCELS OF LAND 
FROM  INTERIM SFR-1-B (SINGLE-FAMILY RURAL) TO PUD 
(PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; 
AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcels of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property:”  That certain parcels of land being 262 acres, more or less, located in 
Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “C”, generally 
located to the northeast of the intersection of CR 279 and Collaborative Way; legally described as 
262 acres more or less out of the Charles Cochran Survey, Abstract 134, more particularly described 
in Document Numbers 2014074595, 2014074596, 2014074597, and 2015001331 Official Public 
Records of Williamson County, Texas, and identified by tax identification numbers R031695, 
R031696, R031697, and R392814.  
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) to PUD (Planned Unit 
Development) known as the Deerbrooke PUD.  The PUD shall be developed and occupied in 
accordance with this Ordinance, the PUD plan attached as Exhibits “A”, “B”, and “C” which are 
hereby adopted and incorporated herein for all purposes, and the Composite Zoning Ordinance to 
the extent not amended by this Ordinance.  In the event of a conflict between the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance and the requirements for the Property set forth in this Ordinance, this 
Ordinance shall control.   



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 6th day of August, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 20th day of August, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



  ATTACHMENT 5  

Exhibit A 
 

Deerbrooke Planned Unit Development 
 
 

A. Purpose and Intent 
The Deerbrooke PUD is composed of approximately 262 acres, as described in 
Exhibit C (Field Notes). The development of this property is planned as a high quality, 
residential community with a variety of residential product types. 
 
Deerbrooke has been designed to create walkable, pedestrian friendly neighborhoods. 
The contents of this PUD further explain and illustrate the overall appearance and 
function desired for this community. A Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 
has been attached to this PUD, Exhibit B, to illustrate the design intent for the 
property. The Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan is intended to serve as a 
guide to illustrate the general community vision and design. The Conceptual Site 
Layout and Land Use Plan depicts a mix of residential products and open space areas 
that are contemplated within the community. 

 
 
B. Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 

The Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan (Exhibit B) is a conceptual 
development plan intended to visually convey the design intent for the Deerbrooke 
community. The design of the community is not final, and is subject to refinement 
during the platting and site planning stages. This PUD zoning document does not 
constitute plat or site plan approval of the attached plan. 
 
The Deerbrooke project is comprised of a mix of various single-family detached and 
cluster products. Deerbrooke will include a cohesive network of open spaces, 
including parks, water quality areas, floodplain and trail corridors. The open space 
and trails system combined with the sidewalk network will be critical in establishing 
a walkable community. 
 
The intent for this development is to save as many of the existing trees as possible. 
On each lot where native trees are not present or preserved in the front yard, the 
builder will install (2) - 2” caliper trees and 10 shrubs in the front yard during the 
construction of each residential unit. [No additional trees are required to be planted on 
a lot if at least two (2) native trees with a minimum diameter of 4” measured 18” 
above finished grade are preserved on the lot.] 

 
 
C. Applicability and Base Zoning 

All aspects regarding the development of this PUD shall comply with the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance, except as established in this exhibit, 
titled Exhibit A. 
 



 
For the purpose of establishing development standards for the PUD, base zoning 
districts have been selected from the Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance for the 
various residential products proposed within the PUD. 

 
 For Lots 80’ and wider: Base Zoning District SFE- 2-B (Single Family Estate) 
 For Lots 70’ and wider: Base Zoning District SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban) 
 For Lots 60’ and wider: Base Zoning District SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban) 
 For Lots 50’- 59’: Base Zoning District SFC-2-B (Single-Family Compact) 
 For Lots 40’- 49’: Base Zoning District SFL-2-B (Single-Family Limited) 
 For Single Family Condominium Cluster: MF-2-B (Multi-Family) 

 
This PUD allows the flexibility to mix the various residential products and define 
boundaries for each lot type during the platting process. Each plat or site plan 
submitted to the City will identify the use at the time of Final Plat or Site Plan 
Submittal. All neighborhoods within the PUD will comply with the modified 
development standards of this PUD. In the case that this PUD does not address a 
specific City requirement, the Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance shall apply. In 
the event of a conflict between this PUD and the base-zoning district found in the 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance, the PUD shall be the controlling document. 

 
 
D. Residential Product Type Requirements 

To ensure a variety and mix of residential product types within Deerbrooke, the 
following standards have been established: 

 
  1.  Single-Family Condominium (Cluster) 
    Maximum of 130 units 
  2.  SFL Single-Family Limited-40’ lots 
    Maximum of 20 units   

  3. SFC Single-Family Compact – 50’ lots  
    Maximum of 250 units  

  4. SFU Single-Family Urban-60’ lots  
    Minimum of 100 units  
  5. SFS Single-Family Suburban-70’ lots 

    Minimum of 75 units  
  6. SFE Single-Family Estate-80’ lots 

    Minimum of 50 units  
 
 
E. Lot Design Standards 

Residential Areas: 
Deerbrooke will include a variety of residential product types and sizes. The detached 
residential has been broken into six categories based upon lot width and size.  Cluster 
housing has been designated as an individual category. Detailed design standards are 
included within this PUD as Table 1, and are based upon the type of residential 

 
Deerbrooke – Planned Unit Development   Page 2 of 4 
 
 



product being constructed. 
 
Table 1 Development Standards 
 

 
DETACHED 
40 ft. & wider 

lot 
(SFL base) 

DETACHED 
50 ft. & wider 

lot 
(SFC base) 

DETACHED 
60 ft. & wider 

lot (SFU 
base) 

DETACHED 
70 ft. & 
wider lot 

(SFS base) 

DETACHED 
80 ft. & wider 

lot 
(SFE base) 

CLUSTER 
(Setbacks 

are for 
perimeter) 

Lot 
Area 

(min.) 
4,000 s.f. 5,500 s.f. 7,200 s.f. 8,400 s.f. 10,400 s.f. n/a 

Lot 
Width 
(min.) 

40 ft. 50 ft. 60 ft. 70 ft. 80 ft. n/a 

Front 
Setback 
(min.) 

20 ft. 20 ft. 20 ft. 20 ft. 20 ft. 20 ft. 

Side 
Setback 
(min.) 

5 ft. or 0 ft. & 
10 ft. 5 ft. 5 ft. 5 ft. 5 ft. 

10 ft. 
building 

separation 
Corner 
Lot -
Street 
Side 

Setback 
(min.) 

15 ft. 15 ft. 15 ft. 15 ft. 15 ft. 20 ft. 

Rear 
Setback 
(min.) 

10 ft. 10 ft. 15 ft. 15 ft. 15 ft. 20 ft. 

Lot 
Depth 
(min.) 

100 ft. 105 ft. 110 ft. 115 ft. 120 ft. n/a 

* Minimum dwelling sizes shall comply with the standards detailed in the related 
underlying zoning districts. 
 
 
F. Single-Family Condominium Cluster 

The parcels contemplated for cluster housing are limited to a total number of units not 
to exceed 130 and maximum of density of 18 units per acre. If a cluster product is 
proposed, the site will be processed as a single lot site plan. The cluster product shall 
be developed as detached single-family units developed in a condo regime. The units 
will be sold as condominium units with common open space areas that shall be 
maintained by a separate Condominium Homeowners Association.  
 
Building envelopes on cluster lots shall be a minimum of thirty-feet by seventy-feet 
(30’x70’) and the minimum dwelling size shall comply with the standards detailed in 
the SFL zoning District of the Composite Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Architectural Standards for single family districts established in Article VIII of the 

 
Deerbrooke – Planned Unit Development   Page 3 of 4 
 
 



Composite Zoning Ordinance shall apply to the lots developed as part of the Single-
Family Condominium Cluster housing.   
 
Single-Family Condominium Cluster Landscape Standards: 
1. The project shall comply with the applicable Landscape Requirements for single-

family districts as listed in Article VI of the Composite Zoning Ordinance.  In 
addition, this residential type shall comply with the multi-family provisions 
regarding Tree Preservation and Protection. 

2. Minimum landscape requirements per unit shall be: (2) - 2” significant trees (oak, 
elm, pecan, walnut, hickory, cherry, cypress, redbud and any rare species) 
measured 18” above finished grade immediately after planting, (5) – 1-gallon 
shrubs and (5) – 5-gallon shrubs in the front yard. [No additional trees are 
required to be planted on a lot if at least two (2) native trees with a minimum 
diameter of 4” measured 18” above finished grade are preserved in the front yard 
of the lot] 

 
 
G. Garage / Parking Standards 

1. Homes built on a Single Family Condominium Cluster lot shall have a minimum 
of a single car garage.  

2. Homes built on SFL 40’ fee-simple lots shall have a minimum of a single car 
garage with driveways at least 18-feet long and 9-feet wide (to provide an 
additional off-street parking space).  Alley loaded homes are not required. 

3. The garage placement standards established in Article VIII of the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance shall apply to all development. 

4. All other lots shall comply with the garage and parking standards as stated in the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance.  

 
 
H. Fencing 

All lots that back onto parks or floodplain areas shall utilize 6 foot, wrought iron or 
decorative tubular metal view fencing. 

 
 
I. Flag Lots 

In order to provide a legal lot for the water quality ponds within Deerbrooke, the 
minimum flag lot width shall be fifteen (15) feet. This provision shall not apply to 
residential lots. 

 
 
J. Riparian Corridor Setbacks 

Riparian Corridor Standards shall apply to the PUD.  Riparian corridor setbacks may 
be shifted as necessary to facilitate placement of required water quality improvements, 
and averaged so as the total riparian corridor setback area is equal to or greater than 
the riparian corridor setbacks as stated in the Subdivision Ordinance. 

 
Deerbrooke – Planned Unit Development   Page 4 of 4 
 
 



CivilE, LLC
8240 N. Mopac Expy
Suite 125
Austin, TX  78759

Office: 512-402-6878
Fax: 512-402-6947

Texas Registered Engineering Firm F-15581

  



N








































AGENDA ITEM # 15 

 
Executive Summary 

August 6, 2015 
 
 
 

      Agenda Subject: Consider recommendation and appointment to the Economic  
      Development Committee 

  

Background:  The Board Selection Committee interviewed Mr. Marc Wicks and has 
Made a recommendation to place him on the Mayor’s Economic Development 
Committee 
 

Origination:    
 
Recommendation:  N/A 

 
Attachments:    Application for Marc Wicks 

 
Prepared by:  Debbie Haile TRMC, City Secretary    









AGENDA ITEM # 16 

 
Executive Summary 

August 6, 2015 
 
 
 

      Agenda Subject: Consider appointment of Council Member to the Comprehensive Plan 
Steering Committee 

  

Background:  Council Member Stephenson currently serves on the Comprehensive 
Plan Steering Committee.  She has asked to be replaced as she will be unable to attend 
future meetings  
 

Origination:    
 
Recommendation:  N/A 

 
Attachments:    N/A 

 
Prepared by:  Debbie Haile TRMC, City Secretary    



AGENDA ITEM # 17 

 
Executive Summary 

 
August 6, 2015 

 
 
Subject: Discussion and possible action to appoint a Councilmember to a CAMPO steering 
committee for a sub-regional transportation planning study. 
 
Background: CAMPO will be creating a steering committee to work with their consultant team 
on a sub-regional transportation study of western Travis and southwestern Williamson Counties.  
They have requested a representative from the City Council to serve on the steering committee. 
 
Financial Consideration: None 
  
Recommendation: Staff recommends appointing a Councilmember to this steering committee 
 
Attachments: Email from Ashby Johnson, Executive Director of CAMPO 
 
Prepared by: Tom Yantis, Assistant City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1

Tom Yantis

From: Johnson, Ashby [Ashby.Johnson@campotexas.org]
Sent: Wednesday, July 29, 2015 3:32 PM
To: Tom Yantis
Cc: Tindall, Phillip
Subject: Western Travis and Southeastern Williamson Counties Mobility Study

Hi Tom, 

 

CAMPO will be kicking off a major subregional study in the next 45 days.  The study will probably run for about 10 

months.  The purpose of the study is to identify mobility issues in Western Travis and Southeastern Williamson Counties 

and make short-, medium-, and long-term recommendations to improve mobility.  The CAMPO study will be a follow on 

to the ongoing TxDOT studies on SH 360 and FM 620.  We will not repeat TxDOT’s work but will incorporate their 

findings as a basis for ours and move beyond their study.  We would very much like to have representation from 

Leander. 

 

The CAMPO study will have a Stakeholders’/Steering Committee composed of local elected officials.  Chairman Conley 

will appoint members to the Stakeholders’ Committee at the August or September Policy Board meeting.  Currently, 

Commissioner Brigid Shea and Commissioner Gerald Daugherty will be the co-chairs of the Stakeholders’ Committee.  

Other potential members are:  Judge Sarah Eckhardt (Travis County), Commissioner Cynthia Long (Williamson County), 

Commissioner Will Conley (Hays County), Judge James Oakley (Burnet County), and Joe Bain (City of Lakeway).  I’m also 

asking for representation from the City of Bee Cave. 

 

In addition to the Stakeholders’/Steering Committee, there will also be a committee composed of key staff from each 

participating locality that will serve to help CAMPO staff develop the study document. This study will be done through a 

consultant contract that will be primarily managed by CAMPO staff.  One of the first responsibilities of the Technical 

Committee will be to help CAMPO rank and score the consultant proposals. 

 

I know that it will be necessary to take an item like this to council for formal appointment.  We will be discussing this 

item at the August 10, 2015 meeting and Chairman Conley may choose to appoint some of the Stakeholders’ Committee 

members at that time.  He will also have the opportunity to appoint members to the committee at the Policy Board’s 

September 14, 2015 meeting. 

 

Please let me know if this is an effort that Leander would like to participate in as a stakeholder and on the technical 

committee.  A response to this email message or a phone call (512-974-2275) will suffice for the moment.  Feel free to 

call me if you have any questions or need additional information. 

 

Thanks, 

 

Ashby 

 

 

Ashby Johnson, Executive Director 

Capital Area MPO (CAMPO) 

P.O. Box 1088 

Austin, TX  78767 

512/974-2656 (v) 

512/974-6385 (f) 

ashby.johnson@campotexas.org 

 



AGENDA ITEM # 18 

 
 

Executive Summary 

August 6, 2016 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS PERTAINING TO THE AMENDED AND 
RESTATED WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN APPLICATION FILED WITH 
THE TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY BY THE 
LOWER COLORADO RIVER AUTHORITY; MAKING FINDINGS AND 
DETERMINATIONS RELATING THERETO; AND DECLARING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Background:  This resolution gives continued Council consent to representation of its 
interests by and through the Steering Committee of the Highland Lakes Firm Water 
Customer Cooperative (HLFWCC) in proceedings before the TCEQ concerning the 
Lower Colorado River Authority’s (LCRA’s) Amended and Restated Water Management 
Plan (WMP) in order to fully protect the interests of the City and other members of the 
Cooperative.  Council previously approved the Interlocal Agreement forming the 
HLFWCC on March 7, 2013 and also approved Resolution 13-005-00 on May 2, 2013 
supporting the HLFWCC’s efforts relating to the WMP.  The proposed resolution 
supports withdrawing a request for a contested case hearing of the 2012 version of the 
WMP Application while allowing similar representation concerning the Amended and 
Restated WMP Application.        
 
Origination:  Pat Womack, Public Works Director 
 
Financial Consideration:  None  
 
Recommendation:  Staff requests approval of the Resolution  
 
Attachments:  Resolution and Resolution 13-005-00  

 
Prepared by:  Pat Womack, Public Works Director 



RESOLUTION NO. 15-XXX-00 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LEANDER, TEXAS PERTAINING TO THE AMENDED AND 
RESTATED WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN APPLICATION 
FILED WITH THE TEXAS COMMISSION ON 
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY BY THE LOWER COLORADO 
RIVER AUTHORITY; MAKING FINDINGS AND 
DETERMINATIONS RELATING THERETO; AND DECLARING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Leander (“CITY”) is a member of the Highland Lakes 

Firm Water Customer Cooperative (“HLFWCC”); 
 
WHEREAS, by Resolution dated May 22, 2013, the HLFWCC Steering 

Committee determined that it was in the best interest of its member entities for the 
HLFWCC to participate to the fullest extent allowed by law in the proceedings before the 
Lower Colorado River Authority, Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
(“TCEQ”), and State Office of Hearing Examiners (and subsequent legal proceedings, if 
necessary) in order to ensure that member entities of the HLFWCC, through the 
HLFWCC, can protect their interests as firm water customers, and further specifically 
determined that those interests were best served by the submittal by HLFWCC of public 
comments, request for party status, and request for a contested case hearing on the March 
12, 2012 application filed by the Lower Colorado River Authority (“LCRA”) with the 
TCEQ (the “Application”) seeking to amend LCRA’s water rights permit and certificates 
of adjudication by amending the Water Management Plan (the “WMP”), which 
application was designated by the TCEQ as Application No. 5838A; 

 
WHEREAS, on May 2, 2013, the CITY concurred with the HLFWCC Steering 

Committee’s determinations and approved the submittal of public comments, request for 
party status, and request for a contested case hearing on the Application;  

 
WHEREAS, on May 24, 2013 the HLFWCC Steering Committee submitted 

public comments on the Application and requested party status and a contested case 
hearing on the Application;  

 
WHEREAS, on June 3, 2013, based on comments submitted by the HLFWCC 

Steering Committee and other interested persons, the Executive Director of the TCEQ 
determined that further evaluation of the Application was necessary; 

 
WHEREAS, in May 2014, the Executive Director’s staff issued a report with 

recommendations that required changes to the Application; 
 
WHEREAS, on October 31, 2014, LCRA submitted a revised and supplemental 

WMP application, and subsequently has also submitted several additional supplements 

City of Leander-HLFWCC WMP Resolution 
 



and updates to the Application, all which retain the TCEQ designation of Application No. 
5838A (collectively, the “Amended and Restated Application”);  

 
WHEREAS, the HLFWCC Steering Committee has reviewed the Amended and 

Restated Application and determined that the provisions of its May 22, 2013 resolution 
apply equally to the Amended and Restated Application;  

 
WHEREAS, the purpose of this Resolution is to clarify that the CITY’s May 2, 

2013 Resolution also applies to the Amended and Restated Application – specifically, to 
clarify that the CITY has determined that, with regard to the Amended and Restated 
Application, it approves the submittal by the HLFWCC Steering Committee of public 
comments, request for party status, and request for a contested case hearing on the 
Amended and Restated Application, and consents to the CITY’s representation in all 
proceedings involving the WMP by the HLFWCC Steering Committee. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS THAT: 
 

Section 1. The statements set out in the preamble to this resolution are hereby 
found to be true and correct and are approved and adopted. 
 

Section 2. All provisions of the CITY’s May, 2, 2013 Resolution remain in 
full force and effect and apply equally to the Amended and Restated Application.   
 

Section 3.  The CITY hereby approves withdrawal of HLFWCC’s May 24, 
2013 public comments and request for a contested case hearing on the Application, and 
approves submittal of public comments and request for a contested case hearing on the 
Amended and Restated Application in substantially the form approved by a majority of 
the Steering Committee members. 

 
Section 4. The City Council hereby directs the HLFWCC Steering Committee 

to continue to work to resolve its issues related to the Amended and Restated Application 
and authorizes modification or withdrawal of the HLFWCC’s public comments or 
request for a contested case hearing if a majority of the Steering Committee determines 
that it is in the best interest of a majority of the HLFWCC to do so. However, even if the 
HLFWCC modifies or withdraws its public comments or request for contested case 
hearing, nothing in this Resolution will prevent the CITY from participating in 
proceedings on the Amended and Restated Application or any other matter related to the 
WMP on its own behalf. 

 
Section 5. The meeting at which this resolution was approved was conducted 

in strict compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, 
Chapter 551. 
 

Section 6. This resolution is effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 

City of Leander-HLFWCC WMP Resolution 
 



City of Leander-HLFWCC WMP Resolution 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 6th day of August 2015 at a Meeting of the City 
Council of the City of Leander, Texas. 
 
 

 
 
       
 

CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 
By:       
 Christopher Fielder, Mayor 
 
 
Date:       

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By:       
Debbie Haile, TRMC, City Secretary 
 
 
Date:       
 
 

City of Leander-HLFWCC WMP Resolution 
 



 
CERTIFICATION 

 
STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS 
 
I, Debbie Haile, being the Secretary of the City of Leander do certify that the foregoing is 
a true and correct copy of the above-captioned Resolution approved by the City Council 
of the City of Leander.  
 
Witness my hand and seal of office this ______ day of ______________________, 2015. 
 

 
 

By        
      Debbie Haile, TRMC, City Secretary 

 

City of Leander-HLFWCC WMP Resolution 
 







AGENDA ITEM # 19 
 

 

Executive Summary 

August 6, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Water Supply Update and Consideration of implementing a 
Twice-a-Week Outdoor Watering Schedule 
 
 Background:  The City of Leander is currently following a Once-a-Week (Stage 3) 
outdoor watering schedule and has been since March 1, 2014.  (Mandatory twice-a-week 
watering began on September 2, 2011.)  Recent rains in the Lower Colorado River 
watershed have significantly increased the combined water supply in Lakes Travis and 
Buchanan from 767,185 acre-feet on May 1st to 1,567,229 acre-feet of combined storage 
on July 29th for a combined storage of 78% full.  Recently both lakes have begun to drop 
slightly.  Based on a combined storage above 1.4 million acre-feet, the attached Drought 
Contingency Plan (DCP) allows voluntary twice-a-week outdoor watering.  The attached 
Leander Water Use Graph shows the monthly water use for the last five and a half years.  
Water use generally remains at or below 2011 levels, without adjusting for recent strong 
residential growth in the City.  2014’s water use was nearly 24% less than the LCRA-
approved pro rata baseline amount, which does consider recent growth. 
 
Origination:  Patrick A. Womack, P.E. Public Works Director 
 
Financial Consideration:  Undetermined 
 
Recommendation:   Staff recommends implementing a voluntary Twice-a-Week 
outdoor watering schedule (Stage 1). 
 
Attachments: City of Leander Water Use Table 

Highland Lakes Storage Chart (As of 7/1/2015) 
DCP 

 
Prepared by:  Patrick A. Womack, P.E. Public Works Director 



Purchased 

Water 

(Gallons) January February March April May June July August September October November December Year (Gallons)

 Year to Year 

Increase or 

Decrease (-)

2015 95,000,000 103,000,000 124,000,000 100,000,000 129,000,000 107,000,000 112,000,000 770,000,000

2014 88,000,000 99,000,000 101,000,000 95,000,000 112,000,000 157,000,000 140,000,000 173,000,000 174,000,000 128,000,000 149,000,000 96,000,000 1,512,000,000 3.2%

2014  Prorata BL* 92,183,248 106,097,086 98,960,949 147,382,407 181,466,422 185,083,368 221,937,116 290,072,560 226,173,179 163,837,883 133,859,591 132,653,942 1,979,707,751 *

2013 89,247,000 89,655,000 135,000,550 115,888,888 99,992,000 113,302,000 174,852,000 147,537,000 164,000,000 117,000,000 109,000,000 109,000,000 1,464,474,438 -4.1%

2012 74,000,000 84,001,100 82,000,000 95,000,000 127,715,000 154,080,000 161,000,000 143,360,000 188,590,000 208,980,000 104,490,000 104,490,000 1,527,706,100 -2.9%

2011 74,239,000 84,256,500 77,754,500 116,705,500 143,499,000 147,525,000 178,000,000 233,000,000 139,000,000 176,000,000 122,000,000 82,000,000 1,573,979,500 36.0%

2010 71,171,000 59,341,000 71,792,000 82,229,000 117,077,000 115,961,000 108,838,000 153,513,000 97,477,000 110,413,000 88,777,000 80,849,000 1,157,438,000

City of Leander Water Use 2010-2015

June 2014 
157,000,000 

June 2015 
107,000,000 

0

50,000,000

100,000,000

150,000,000

200,000,000

250,000,000

300,000,000

350,000,000

January February March April May June July August September October November December

G
al

lo
n

s 
 

City of Leander Water Use 
2010-2015 

2015 2014 2014  Prorata BL* 2013 2012 2011 2010

Sept. 2011 Began 
2/Week Watering 

March 2014 Began 
 1/Week Watering 

31.9% decrease from June 2014 to June 2015 
(following a slight increase in May 14- May 2015). 

*23.6% Decrease in water use from 2014  
LCRA Pro rata Baseline  1,979,707,751 gallons 
(4,860.3 ac-ft) compared to 2014 water use 
(1,512,000,000 gallons or 4,640 ac-ft) during 
1/Week watering  schedule.  Initial Baseline 
Year was Sept. 2010 - August 2011.  



















































1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

2.0

2.1

2.2

(m
ill

io
n

a
c
re

-f
e
e
t)

Highland Lakes Storage *

What could happen 2010 Water Management Plan
Trigger Points

Where we've been
2010 Water Management Plan

Trigger Points
Where we've been

2010 Water Management Plan
Trigger Points

Where we've been

Lakes Buchanan and Travis full at 2.01 million acre-feet (a-f) 1.9 million a-f - On Jan. 1 or July 1 - Interruptible
94% Total Combined Capacity - Interruptible supplies ceased for
all customers except four major irrigation operations.

1.4 million a-f - On Jan. 1 - Interruptible
Begin gradual curtailment of interruptible supply to four
major irrigation operations. Curtailment increases with
lower storage levels. Environmental releases for instream
flows are reduced to meet critical needs.

1.4 million a-f - Any time - Firm Demands
Request firm customers to implement voluntary water use
reduction measures to achieve a 5 percent reduction in use.

1.7 million a-f - On Jan. 1 - Bay and Estuary
Reduce bay and estuary releases to meet 150 percent of
critical needs (limited by Storable Inflows).

1.1 million a-f - On Jan. 1 - Bay and Estuary
Environmental releases for bay and estuaries are reduced to
meet critical needs.

What could
happen

2010 Water Management Plan
trigger points

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

1.0

Jul 2014 Oct 2014 Jan 2015 Apr 2015 Jul 2015 Oct 2015 Jan 2016

V
o

lu
m

e

Note: One acre-foot equals 325,851 gallons.

Where we've been

FUTUREPAST

Date: July 1, 2015

600,000 a-f - "Drought Worse Than Drought of
Record" declaration - Cease Interruptible and
Curtail Firm - If the Board issues a "Drought Worse Than
Drought of Record" declaration under the 2010 Water
Management Plan, begin curtailment of firm supply after ceasing
interruptible supply (timing based on duration of drought).

900,000 a-f - Any time - Firm Demands
Request firm customers to implement mandatory water use
restrictions to achieve a 10-20 percent reduction in use. Meet
with customers to develop a curtailment plan should drought
worsen.

Forecast - Average Conditions

Forecast - Drought Conditions

Historic Lake Storage

Forecast - Wet Conditions

Forecast - Extreme Drought Conditions

J
a
n

u
a
ry

1

* Projections assume Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) will approve emergency orders in 2015 that are similiar to the emergency orders approved by TCEQ in 2014,
which suspended releases of interruptible stored water for customers in the Gulf Coast, Lakeside and Pierce Ranch irrigation divisions through the 2014 irrigation season and reduced
instream flow requirements during the 2014 blue sucker spawning season.



AGENDA ITEM # 20 

 
Executive Summary 

August 6, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:  An ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas annexing 126.098 acres of land, 
more or less, known as the Bradley tract, into the corporate limits of the City, including the 
abutting roadways and rights-of-way, at the request of the property owner; approving a service 
plan for the annexed area; making findings of fact; providing a severability clause; and 
providing an effective date. 
  
Background:  The City Council approved the resolution accepting the petition for voluntary 
annexation for the subject tracts at its May 7, 2015 meeting.  The properties includes 
approximately 126.098 acres north of the South San Gabriel River and east of Ronald Reagan 
Blvd.  The resolution set the two public hearings for July 2, 2015 and July 16, 2015.  The second 
and final reading of the ordinance is scheduled for August 20, 2015. 
 
This is a voluntary annexation. 
     
Origination:  Applicants 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the first reading of the ordinance 
 
Attachments:  

1. Annexation Ordinance 
2. Location map 
3. Property owner request for annexation 
4. Annexation resolution 
5. Annexation schedule 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 
 
 7/29/15 

 



 ORDINANCE NO. ________________ 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ANNEXING 126.098 ACRES 

OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, INTO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY, 
INCLUDING THE ABUTTING ROADWAYS AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY, AT THE 
REQUEST OF THE PROPERTY OWNER; APPROVING A SERVICE PLAN FOR THE 
ANNEXED AREA; MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas, is a home rule municipality authorized by State law to 
annex territory lying adjacent and contiguous to the City; 
 
 WHEREAS, the owner(s) of the property, as hereinafter described, made written request for the City 
to annex such property in compliance with the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code;  
 
 WHEREAS, the property is adjacent and contiguous to the present city limits; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council heard and has decided to grant the owner’s request that the City annex 
said property; 
 
 WHEREAS, two separate public hearings were conducted prior to consideration of this Ordinance in 
accordance with §43.063 of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code;  
 
 WHEREAS, the hearings were conducted and held not more than forty (40) nor less than twenty (20) 
days prior to the institution of annexation proceedings; 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the public hearings was published not more than twenty (20) nor less than ten 
(10) days prior to the public hearings; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City intends to provide services to the property to be annexed according to the 
Service Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LEANDER, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1.  That all of the above premises and findings of fact are found to be true and correct and are 
incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 
 
SECTION 2.  All portions of the following described property, including the abutting roadways and 
rights-of-way (hereinafter referred to as the “Annexed Property”), not previously annexed into the City, 
are hereby annexed into the corporate limits of the City of Leander: 
 
  All that certain tract or parcel of land being 126.098  acres, more or less, being part 

of the Greenleaf Fisk Survey, Abstract No. 5 and the Bartholomew Manlove 
Survey, Abstract No. 420, located in Williamson County, Texas, and being more 
particularly shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes.    



 
 

 
SECTION 3.  That the Service Plan submitted herewith is hereby approved as part of this Ordinance, 
made a part hereof and attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 
 
SECTION 4.  That the future owners and inhabitants of the Annexed Property shall be entitled to all of 
the rights and privileges of the City as set forth in the Service Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, and are 
further bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in full force and effect and all those 
which may be hereafter adopted. 
 
SECTION 5.  That the official map and boundaries of the City, heretofore adopted and amended be and 
hereby are amended so as to include the Annexed Property as part of the City of Leander. 
 
SECTION 6.  That the Annexed Property shall be temporarily zoned District “SFR-1-B” as provided in 
the City Zoning Ordinance, as amended, until permanent zoning is established therefore. 
 
SECTION 7.   That if any provision of this Ordinance or the application of any provision to any person 
or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of the 
ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the 
provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
SECTION 8.  That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
SECTION 9.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance 
is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this 6th day of August, 2015. 
 
FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this 20th day of August, 2015. 
     
 

ATTEST:      CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 

 

______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 



 
 
 
 

 



Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation proceedings 
for tracts of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is exempt 
from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently within 
the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the same terms 
and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on the 
effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police services 

now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 



provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall be 
temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request of the 
landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider 
rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by the landowner(s) 
or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the plans 
and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services will be 
provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water service, 

water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions thereof, by the 
utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for the subject properties, 
or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction the 
subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance with all the 
ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of 
water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the subject properties’ owner shall 
construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line extension and construction of such 
facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject properties as required in City 
ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the subject properties and any off-site 
improvements, water service will be provided by the City utility department on the same terms, 
conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the 
City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  
The system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual acceptance 
and maintenance policies.  New water line extensions will be installed and extended upon request 
under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The 
ordinances of the City in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs 
and request for service.  The continued use of a water well that is in use on the effective date of 
the annexation and is in compliance with applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted and 
such use may continue until the subject properties’ owner requests and is able to connect to the 
City’s water utility system. 



 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) (a) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of 

wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable 
portions thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject properties, or portions 
thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance with all the ordinances, 
regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of wastewater 
service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility system, the subject properties’ owner shall 
construct the internal wastewater lines and pay the costs of line extension and construction of 
facilities necessary to provide wastewater service to the subject properties as required in City 
ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the wastewater lines within the subject properties and any off-
site improvements, wastewater service will be provided by the City utility department on the same 
terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of 
the City, subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to 
time.  The wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its 
usual policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be installed and extended upon 
request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The 
ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and 
request for service.  The continued use of a septic system that is in use on the effective date of 
the annexation and is in compliance with all applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted 
and such use may continue until the subject property owner requests and is able to connect to 
the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
  (b) This paragraph shall apply, in addition to paragraph 2B(ii)(a), in the event the City 

contracts with City of Liberty Hill, Texas to provide wholesale wastewater service to an area that 
includes the subject property (the “Wholesale Wastewater Agreement”). The landowners, on 
behalf of themselves and the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, assigns and subsequent 
purchasers of the subject property, agree to pay three hundred fifty dollars ($350.00) per living 
unit equivalent (the “System Reservation Fee”), as that term is defined in the Wholesale 
Wastewater Agreement, for the purpose of reserving capacity in the South San Gabriel Plant, as 
that term is defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, at the time that the landowner 
submits a preliminary plat for the subject property, or any portion thereof, and acknowledges and 
agrees that payment of the System Reservation Fee shall be a condition of preliminary plat 
approval.  Further, the landowners, on behalf of themselves and the landowners’ respective 
grantees, successors, assigns, and subsequent purchasers of the subject property, agree that each 
lot, tract, parcel or building site within the subject property that will be provided with wastewater 
service by the City shall pay the Connection Fee set forth in the Wholesale Wastewater 
Agreement.  The Connection Fee shall be payable with respect to a lot, tract, parcel, or building 
site at the time the building permit for each building or structure is applied for, or if no building 
permit is required, then upon the date application is made to the City for connection to the City’s 
wastewater system.  The System Reservation Fee and the Connection Fee shall be in addition to 
any other fee, rates, and charges charged by the City for wastewater service to similarly situated 
customers.  When evaluating the application of City policies, rules, and ordinances to similarly 



situated areas and customers of the City, land and customers located within the area served by the 
City pursuant to the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement are similarly situated areas and customers 
of the City, subject to individual development agreements that may be applicable to such land. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject property and 
other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  The maintenance of 
the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and following 
installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city ordinance, 
including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other traffic control devices 
and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed public streets, roadways and 
rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 

construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need therefore 
is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings and 

other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate study and 
traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established 

policies of the City; 
 

(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The property 
owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to service the 
property.    

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be initiated 
after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject property or 
redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as a developer in a 
similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or redevelopment.  No 
additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject property the same as 
similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 



(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the Annexation 
Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is attached.  
 
 

 



RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

RI
DG

E V
IE

W 
DR

VISTA HEIGHTS DR

BRADLEY RANCH RD

CR 274

SANTA MARIA ST

LA GROTTA LN

HI
GH

 LO
NE

SO
ME

 TR
L

RONALD W
 REAGAN BLVD

Ë
0 400 800

Feet

Subject Parcel
WCAD Parcel Boundaries
Leander City Limits
Leander ETJ

Subject Parcel

Bradley - 126.098 Ac Voluntary Annexation

Note:
Some variations may exist between survey
information and parcel database.



STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 
 REQUEST & PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 FOR ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY 
 
 WHEREAS, the undersigned is the owner of certain tracts of property located within 
Williamson County, Texas, such property being more particularly described hereinafter by true and 
correct legal description (referred to herein as the “subject property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the undersigned has sought the annexation of the subject property by the City 
of Leander, Texas, (hereinafter sometimes referred to as “City”), in order to obtain the benefits of 
City services to the subject property by the City;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is contiguous and adjacent to the corporate limits of the 
City;  
 
 WHEREAS, the City, pursuant to §43.021, Tex. Loc. Gov’t. Code and the request of the 
property owner, is authorized to annex the subject property; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the undersigned agrees and consents to the annexation of the subject property 
by the City and further agrees to be bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in 
force and effect within the corporate limits of the City and all those which may be hereafter adopted. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the undersigned by this Petition and Request:  
 
 SECTION ONE:  Requests the City Council of the City to commence annexation 
proceedings and to annex into the corporate limits of the City of Leander, Texas, of all portions of 
the subject property, including the abutting streets, roadways, and rights-of-way, not previously 
annexed into the City and further described as follows: 
 
 All those certain tracts or parcels of land being 126.098  acres, more or less, being 

part of the Greenleaf Fisk Survey, Abstract No. 5 and the Bartholomew Manlove 
Survey, Abstract No. 420, located in Williamson County, Texas, and being more 
particularly shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 
 SECTION TWO:  Requests that after annexation the City provide such services as are 
legally permissible and provided by the City, including sanitation, water and general governmental 
services as set forth in the municipal services plan. 
 
 SECTION THREE:  Acknowledges and represents having received, read and understood 
the attached “draft” Service Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, (proposed to be applicable to and 
adopted for the subject property) and that such “draft” Service Plan is wholly adequate and 
acceptable to the undersigned who hereby requests the City Council to proceed with the annexation 



and preparation of a final Municipal Service Plan and publish notice and hold the requisite public 
hearings thereon, in accordance with the applicable laws of the State of Texas. 
  
 SECTION FOUR:  Acknowledges that the undersigned understands and agrees that all city 
services to the subject property will be provided by the City on the same terms and conditions as 
provided to other similarly situated areas of the City and as provided in the Municipal Service Plan. 
 
 SECTION FIVE:  Agrees that a copy of this Request and Petition may be filed of record in 
the offices of the City of Leander and in the real property records of Williamson County, Texas, and 
shall be notice to and binding upon all persons or entities now or hereafter having any interest in the 
subject property. 
 
 FILED, this ___ day of _________________ 2015, with the City Secretary of the City of 
Leander, Williamson County, Texas. 
 
       
      Petitioner: Development Solutions Bradley, LLC 

   
      By: ____________________________ 
      Name: __________________________ 
      Title: ___________________________   
     
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
    
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this 
day personally appeared _________________________________, _______________________ of 
Development Solutions Bradley, LLC and Owner of the subject property and Petitioner herein, 
known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and 
acknowledged that they had authority to bind the entity and that they executed the same for the 
purposes therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the __day of ___________ 2015. 
 
(SEAL)   

     _____________________________________ 
                  Notary Public - State of Texas 
 
 
    



 

Exhibit “A” 
 

DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 
 

+/- 126.098 ACRES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation 
proceedings for tracts of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is 
exempt from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently 
within the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the 
same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on 
the effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police 

services now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 



 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall 
be temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request 
of the landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will 
consider rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by 
the landowner(s) or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the 
plans and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services 
will be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions 
thereof, by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for 
the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility 
in whose jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time 
to time for the extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the 
subject properties’ owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line 
extension and construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject 
properties as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the 
subject properties and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided by the City 
utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all 
similarly situated areas and customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations 
and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The system will be accepted and 
maintained by the City in accordance with its usual acceptance and maintenance policies.  
New water line extensions will be installed and extended upon request under the same costs 
and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City 
in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and request for 



service.  The continued use of a water well that is in use on the effective date of the 
annexation and is in compliance with applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted 
and such use may continue until the subject properties’ owner requests and is able to 
connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) (a) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of 

wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or 
applicable portions thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in 
whose jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time 
to time for the extension of wastewater service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility 
system, the subject properties’ owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay 
the costs of line extension and construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater 
service to the subject properties as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the 
wastewater lines within the subject properties and any off-site improvements, wastewater 
service will be provided by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions and 
requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject 
to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The 
wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual 
policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be installed and extended upon 
request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the 
City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the 
costs and request for service.  The continued use of a septic system that is in use on the 
effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with all applicable rules and 
regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject property owner 
requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
  (b) This paragraph shall apply, in addition to paragraph 2B(ii)(a), in the event 

the City contracts with City of Liberty Hill, Texas to provide wholesale wastewater service 
to an area that includes the subject property (the “Wholesale Wastewater Agreement”). The 
landowners, on behalf of themselves and the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, 
assigns and subsequent purchasers of the subject property, agree to pay three hundred fifty 
dollars ($350.00) per living unit equivalent (the “System Reservation Fee”), as that term is 
defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, for the purpose of reserving capacity in 
the South San Gabriel Plant, as that term is defined in the Wholesale Wastewater 
Agreement, at the time that the landowner submits a preliminary plat for the subject 
property, or any portion thereof, and acknowledges and agrees that payment of the System 
Reservation Fee shall be a condition of preliminary plat approval.  Further, the landowners, 
on behalf of themselves and the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, assigns, and 
subsequent purchasers of the subject property, agree that each lot, tract, parcel or building 
site within the subject property that will be provided with wastewater service by the City 



shall pay the Connection Fee set forth in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement.  The 
Connection Fee shall be payable with respect to a lot, tract, parcel, or building site at the 
time the building permit for each building or structure is applied for, or if no building permit 
is required, then upon the date application is made to the City for connection to the City’s 
wastewater system.  The System Reservation Fee and the Connection Fee shall be in 
addition to any other fee, rates, and charges charged by the City for wastewater service to 
similarly situated customers.  When evaluating the application of City policies, rules, and 
ordinances to similarly situated areas and customers of the City, land and customers located 
within the area served by the City pursuant to the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement are 
similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject to individual development 
agreements that may be applicable to such land. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject 
property and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  
The maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other 
traffic control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed 
public streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, 
as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage 

facilities, construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the 
need therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street 

markings and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by 
appropriate study and traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with 

established policies of the City; 
 

(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The 
property owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to 
service the property.    



 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject 
property or redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as 
a developer in a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or 
redevelopment.  No additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject 
property the same as similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the 
Annexation Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service 
Plan is attached.  

 



RESOLUTION NO.  15-007-00     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, ACCEPTING THE 
PETITION FOR ANNEXATION OF 126.098 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, OF 
LAND LOCATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS; SETTING AN 
ANNEXATION SCHEDULE; PROVIDING FOR OPEN MEETINGS AND 
OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, the owner of certain property located within Williamson County, Texas, has 
petitioned the City of Leander, Texas, (herein the “City”), a home-rule City, for annexation of said 
property, more particularly described herein (the “subject property”),  into the City limits; 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is contiguous and adjacent to the corporate limits of the City 
and the owners have made application for annexation;  
 
 WHEREAS, after review and consideration of such petition for annexation, the City Council 
finds that the property is exempt from the City’s annexation plan pursuant to § 43.052 (h)(2) of the 
Local Government Code; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the petitioner has agreed and consented to the annexation of the subject property 
by the City and further agreed to be bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in 
force and effect within the corporate limits of the City and all those which may be hereafter adopted;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.     
 
  Section 2.  Proceedings.  The petition for annexation of the subject property, including the 
abutting streets, roadways, and rights of way, not previously annexed into the City and the draft services 
plan shown in Exhibit “B”, submitted by Petitioner, are hereby accepted:   
 
 All those certain tracts or parcels of land being 126.098  acres, more or less, being part 

of the Greenleaf Fisk Survey, Abstract No. 5 and the Bartholomew Manlove Survey, 
Abstract No. 420, located in Williamson County, Texas, and being more particularly 
shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all 
purposes.    

 
Two public hearings are set for the dates of July 2, 2015 and July 16, 2015.  Notice of such hearings 
shall be posted and the hearings shall be open to the public to accept public comment on the annexation 
request. 
 

  

 

 



Section 3. Severability. Should any section or part of this Resolution be held 
unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect and 
to this end the provisions of this Resolution are declared to be severable. 

 
Section 4.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 

which this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 7th day of May, 2015. 

 
 
ATTEST:      THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

  

  

  

 

 



 

 

  

 

 



Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation 
proceedings for tracts of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is 
exempt from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently within 
the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the same terms 
and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on the 
effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police services 

now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 

  

 

 



 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall be 
temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request of the 
landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider 
rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by the 
landowner(s) or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the 
plans and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services will 
be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions thereof, 
by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility in whose 
jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance 
with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the 
extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the subject 
properties’ owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line extension and 
construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject properties as 
required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the subject properties 
and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided by the City utility department on 
the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and 

  

 

 



customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect 
from time to time.  The system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with 
its usual acceptance and maintenance policies.  New water line extensions will be installed and 
extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated 
customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City in effect at the time a request for service is 
submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a water well 
that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with applicable 
rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject 
properties’ owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) (a) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of 

wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable 
portions thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject properties, or portions 
thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction the 
subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance with all the 
ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of 
wastewater service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility system, the subject properties’ 
owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay the costs of line extension and 
construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater service to the subject properties as 
required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the wastewater lines within the subject 
properties and any off-site improvements, wastewater service will be provided by the City 
utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly 
situated areas and customers of the City, subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies 
of the City in effect from time to time.  The wastewater system will be accepted and maintained 
by the City in accordance with its usual policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions 
will be installed and extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other 
similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for 
service is submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a 
septic system that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with 
all applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the 
subject property owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
  (b) This paragraph shall apply, in addition to paragraph 2B(ii)(a), in the event the 

City contracts with City of Liberty Hill, Texas to provide wholesale wastewater service to an 
area that includes the subject property (the “Wholesale Wastewater Agreement”). The 
landowners, on behalf of themselves and the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, 
assigns and subsequent purchasers of the subject property, agree to pay three hundred fifty 
dollars ($350.00) per living unit equivalent (the “System Reservation Fee”), as that term is 
defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, for the purpose of reserving capacity in the 

  

 

 



South San Gabriel Plant, as that term is defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, at the 
time that the landowner submits a preliminary plat for the subject property, or any portion 
thereof, and acknowledges and agrees that payment of the System Reservation Fee shall be a 
condition of preliminary plat approval.  Further, the landowners, on behalf of themselves and 
the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, assigns, and subsequent purchasers of the 
subject property, agree that each lot, tract, parcel or building site within the subject property that 
will be provided with wastewater service by the City shall pay the Connection Fee set forth in 
the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement.  The Connection Fee shall be payable with respect to a 
lot, tract, parcel, or building site at the time the building permit for each building or structure is 
applied for, or if no building permit is required, then upon the date application is made to the 
City for connection to the City’s wastewater system.  The System Reservation Fee and the 
Connection Fee shall be in addition to any other fee, rates, and charges charged by the City for 
wastewater service to similarly situated customers.  When evaluating the application of City 
policies, rules, and ordinances to similarly situated areas and customers of the City, land and 
customers located within the area served by the City pursuant to the Wholesale Wastewater 
Agreement are similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject to individual 
development agreements that may be applicable to such land. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject property 
and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  The 
maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other traffic 
control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed public 
streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 

construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need 
therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 

  

 

 



  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings 
and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate 
study and traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established 

policies of the City; 
 

(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The property 
owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to service the 
property.    

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject property or 
redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as a developer in 
a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or redevelopment.  
No additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject property the same 
as similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the 
Annexation Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is 
attached.  
 
 

  

 

 



SCHEDULE FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION  
Bradley Tract +/- 126.098 Acres and Ironwood Tract +/- 13.8481 Acres 

DATE ACTION/EVENT LEGAL AUTHORITY 
May 7, 2015 
 

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Directs 
notification to land owners; and sets two (2) Public 
Hearings July 2, 2015 and July 16, 2015; Council directs 
development of service plan for area to be annexed.  

Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065; 
Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th day 
but before 20th day before institution of 
proceedings.  

By June 1, 2015 NOTICE TO property owners & utility providers  Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.062(a) 
June 17, 2015** 
Publish notice of First 
Public Hearing and 
send school district 
notice 
 
July 1, 2015** 
Publish notice of  
Second Public Hearing  

NEWSPAPER NOTICES RE: FIRST AND SECOND 
PUBLIC HEARINGS; (If applicable, certified Notice to 
Railroad). POST NOTICE OF HEARINGS ON CITY’S 
WEBSITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS 
COMPLETE 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school 
district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for 
publishing the notice of the First Public Hearing.)  

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days 
before 1st and 2nd public hearings.  Loc. 
Gov’t Code, §43.063 (c). 
 
 
 
Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.905; send school 
district notice not less than 10 days nor more 
than 20 days before the First Public Hearing. 

Ten days after the date 
the first notice of 
Public Hearing is 
published 

LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN 
PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days after first 
newspaper notice) 

Site hearing required if 10% of adult 
residents of tracts protest within 10 days after 
1st newspaper notice. Loc. Gov’t Code, § 
43.063 (b) 

July 2, 2015* 1st PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the 1st reading of 
ordinance) REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.  

July 16, 2015* 2nd PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (At least 20 days before 1st reading of ordinance.) 
REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065. 

Institution Date 
August 6, 2015* 

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Date of institution of proceedings.  Not less 
than 20 days from the second public hearing 
nor more than 40 days from the first public 
hearing. 

August 20, 2015; 
Or at a special called 
meeting after the 1st 
First Reading   

SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Not more than 90 days after 1st reading of 
Ordinance § 43.064. 

Within 30 days of 
Second Reading  

CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary 
changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is 
compatible with mapping format used by registrar 

Elec. Code §42.0615 

Within 60 days of 
Second Reading 

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF 
ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:  
 

1. County Clerk 
2. County Appraisal District 
3. County Tax Assessor Collector 
4. 911 Addressing 
5. Sheriff’s Office 
6. City Department Heads 
7. State Comptroller 
8. Franchise Holders 

 

*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule.  Please advise if deviation. 
**Newspaper notices to paper by 5p.m. the preceding Wednesday. 
 



AGENDA ITEM # 21 

 
Executive Summary 

August 6, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:  An ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas annexing 13.8481 acres of land, 
more or less, known as the Ironwood tracts, into the corporate limits of the City, including the 
abutting roadways and rights-of-way, at the request of the property owner; approving a service 
plan for the annexed area; making findings of fact; providing a severability clause; and 
providing an effective date. 
  
Background:  The City Council approved the resolution accepting the petition for voluntary 
annexation for the subject tracts at its May 7, 2015 meeting.  The properties include two tracts of 
land totaling approximately 13.8481 acres at the southeast corner of SH 29 and Ronald Reagan.  
The resolution set the two public hearings for July 2, 2015 and July 16, 2015.  The applicant has 
requested delaying the second and final reading of the ordinance for up to 90 days as allowed by 
statute.  The 2nd reading will occur on or before November 5, 2015. 
 
This is a voluntary annexation. 
     
Origination:  Applicants 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the first reading of the ordinance 
 
Attachments:  

1. Annexation Ordinance 
2. Location map 
3. Property owner request for annexation 
4. Annexation resolution 
5. Annexation schedule 
6. Applicant Request for delay of 2nd reading 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 
 
 7/29/15 

 



 ORDINANCE NO. ________________ 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ANNEXING 13.8481 ACRES 

OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, INTO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY, 
INCLUDING THE ABUTTING ROADWAYS AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY, AT THE 
REQUEST OF THE PROPERTY OWNER; APPROVING A SERVICE PLAN FOR THE 
ANNEXED AREA; MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas, is a home rule municipality authorized by State law to 
annex territory lying adjacent and contiguous to the City; 
 
 WHEREAS, the owner(s) of the property, as hereinafter described, made written request for the City 
to annex such property in compliance with the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code;  
 
 WHEREAS, the property is adjacent and contiguous to the present city limits; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council heard and has decided to grant the owner’s request that the City annex 
said property; 
 
 WHEREAS, two separate public hearings were conducted prior to consideration of this Ordinance in 
accordance with §43.063 of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code;  
 
 WHEREAS, the hearings were conducted and held not more than forty (40) nor less than twenty (20) 
days prior to the institution of annexation proceedings; 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the public hearings was published not more than twenty (20) nor less than ten 
(10) days prior to the public hearings; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City intends to provide services to the property to be annexed according to the 
Service Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LEANDER, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1.  That all of the above premises and findings of fact are found to be true and correct and are 
incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 
 
SECTION 2.  All portions of the following described properties, including the abutting roadways and 
rights-of-way (hereinafter referred to as the “Annexed Property”), not previously annexed into the City, 
are hereby annexed into the corporate limits of the City of Leander: 
 
  All that certain tract or parcel of land being 10.2941 acres, more or less, situated in 

the Greenlief Fisk Survey, Abstract No. 5, located in Williamson County, Texas, 
and being more particularly shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 



  All that certain tract or parcel of land being 3.555 acres, more or less, being part of 
the Greenlief Fisk Survey, Abstract No. 5, located in Williamson County, Texas, 
and being more particularly shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 
SECTION 3.  That the Service Plan submitted herewith is hereby approved as part of this Ordinance, 
made a part hereof and attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 
 
SECTION 4.  That the future owners and inhabitants of the Annexed Property shall be entitled to all of 
the rights and privileges of the City as set forth in the Service Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, and are 
further bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in full force and effect and all those 
which may be hereafter adopted. 
 
SECTION 5.  That the official map and boundaries of the City, heretofore adopted and amended be and 
hereby are amended so as to include the Annexed Property as part of the City of Leander. 
 
SECTION 6.  That the Annexed Property shall be temporarily zoned District “SFR-1-B” as provided in 
the City Zoning Ordinance, as amended, until permanent zoning is established therefore. 
 
SECTION 7.   That if any provision of this Ordinance or the application of any provision to any person 
or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of the 
ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the 
provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
SECTION 8.  That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
SECTION 9.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance 
is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this 6th day of August, 2015. 
 
FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this 20th day of August, 2015. 
     
 

ATTEST:      CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 

 

______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 



 
Exhibit “A” 

 
Property Description: +/- 13.8481 acres (10.2941 acres & 3.555 acres) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation proceedings 
for tracts of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is exempt 
from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently within 
the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the same terms 
and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on the 
effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police services 

now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 



provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall be 
temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request of the 
landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider 
rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by the landowner(s) 
or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the plans 
and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services will be 
provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water service, 

water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions thereof, by the 
utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for the subject properties, 
or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction the 
subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance with all the 
ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of 
water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the subject properties’ owner shall 
construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line extension and construction of such 
facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject properties as required in City 
ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the subject properties and any off-site 
improvements, water service will be provided by the City utility department on the same terms, 
conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the 
City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  
The system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual acceptance 
and maintenance policies.  New water line extensions will be installed and extended upon request 
under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The 
ordinances of the City in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs 
and request for service.  The continued use of a water well that is in use on the effective date of 
the annexation and is in compliance with applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted and 
such use may continue until the subject properties’ owner requests and is able to connect to the 
City’s water utility system. 



 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) (a) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of 

wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable 
portions thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject properties, or portions 
thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance with all the ordinances, 
regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of wastewater 
service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility system, the subject properties’ owner shall 
construct the internal wastewater lines and pay the costs of line extension and construction of 
facilities necessary to provide wastewater service to the subject properties as required in City 
ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the wastewater lines within the subject properties and any off-
site improvements, wastewater service will be provided by the City utility department on the same 
terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of 
the City, subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to 
time.  The wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its 
usual policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be installed and extended upon 
request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The 
ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and 
request for service.  The continued use of a septic system that is in use on the effective date of 
the annexation and is in compliance with all applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted 
and such use may continue until the subject property owner requests and is able to connect to 
the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
  (b) This paragraph shall apply, in addition to paragraph 2B(ii)(a), in the event the City 

contracts with City of Liberty Hill, Texas to provide wholesale wastewater service to an area that 
includes the subject property (the “Wholesale Wastewater Agreement”). The landowners, on 
behalf of themselves and the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, assigns and subsequent 
purchasers of the subject property, agree to pay three hundred fifty dollars ($350.00) per living 
unit equivalent (the “System Reservation Fee”), as that term is defined in the Wholesale 
Wastewater Agreement, for the purpose of reserving capacity in the South San Gabriel Plant, as 
that term is defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, at the time that the landowner 
submits a preliminary plat for the subject property, or any portion thereof, and acknowledges and 
agrees that payment of the System Reservation Fee shall be a condition of preliminary plat 
approval.  Further, the landowners, on behalf of themselves and the landowners’ respective 
grantees, successors, assigns, and subsequent purchasers of the subject property, agree that each 
lot, tract, parcel or building site within the subject property that will be provided with wastewater 
service by the City shall pay the Connection Fee set forth in the Wholesale Wastewater 
Agreement.  The Connection Fee shall be payable with respect to a lot, tract, parcel, or building 
site at the time the building permit for each building or structure is applied for, or if no building 
permit is required, then upon the date application is made to the City for connection to the City’s 
wastewater system.  The System Reservation Fee and the Connection Fee shall be in addition to 
any other fee, rates, and charges charged by the City for wastewater service to similarly situated 
customers.  When evaluating the application of City policies, rules, and ordinances to similarly 



situated areas and customers of the City, land and customers located within the area served by the 
City pursuant to the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement are similarly situated areas and customers 
of the City, subject to individual development agreements that may be applicable to such land. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject property and 
other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  The maintenance of 
the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and following 
installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city ordinance, 
including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other traffic control devices 
and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed public streets, roadways and 
rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 

construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need therefore 
is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings and 

other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate study and 
traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established 

policies of the City; 
 

(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The property 
owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to service the 
property.    

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be initiated 
after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject property or 
redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as a developer in a 
similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or redevelopment.  No 
additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject property the same as 
similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 



(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the Annexation 
Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is attached.  
 
 

 



W SH 29

CR 26
8

KAUFFMAN LOOP

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

VIA DE SIENNA BLVD

PENNA LN

ARREZO LN

CORTONA LN

CR 267

FLORENZ LN

GROSSETO LN

BONNET BLVD

MAGONA TRL

MA
RT

IN
O 

TR
L

RUFFINO LN

VIA DE SIENNA BLVD

Ë
0 400 800

Feet

Subject Parcels
WCAD Parcel Boundaries
Leander City Limits
Leander ETJ

Subject Parcels

Note:
Some variations may exist between survey
information and parcel database.

Ironwood - 13.8481 Ac Voluntary Annexation



STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 
 REQUEST & PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 FOR ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY 
 
 WHEREAS, the undersigned is the owner of certain tracts of property located within 
Williamson County, Texas, such property being more particularly described hereinafter by true and 
correct legal description (referred to herein as the “subject property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the undersigned has sought the annexation of the subject property by the City 
of Leander, Texas, (hereinafter sometimes referred to as “City”), in order to obtain the benefits of 
City services to the subject property by the City;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is contiguous and adjacent to the corporate limits of the 
City;  
 
 WHEREAS, the City, pursuant to §43.021, Tex. Loc. Gov’t. Code and the request of the 
property owner, is authorized to annex the subject property; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the undersigned agrees and consents to the annexation of the subject property 
by the City and further agrees to be bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in 
force and effect within the corporate limits of the City and all those which may be hereafter adopted. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the undersigned by this Petition and Request:  
 
 SECTION ONE:  Requests the City Council of the City to commence annexation 
proceedings and to annex into the corporate limits of the City of Leander, Texas, of all portions of 
the subject property, including the abutting streets, roadways, and rights-of-way, not previously 
annexed into the City and further described as follows: 
 
 All that certain tract or parcel of land being 10.2941 acres, more or less, situated in 

the Greenlief Fisk Survey, Abstract No. 5, located in Williamson County, Texas, and 
being more particularly shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 
 All that certain tract or parcel of land being 3.555 acres, more or less, being part of 

the Greenlief Fisk Survey, Abstract No. 5, located in Williamson County, Texas, and 
being more particularly shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 
 SECTION TWO:  Requests that after annexation the City provide such services as are 
legally permissible and provided by the City, including sanitation, water and general governmental 
services as set forth in the municipal services plan. 
 



 SECTION THREE:  Acknowledges and represents having received, read and understood 
the attached “draft” Service Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, (proposed to be applicable to and 
adopted for the subject property) and that such “draft” Service Plan is wholly adequate and 
acceptable to the undersigned who hereby requests the City Council to proceed with the annexation 
and preparation of a final Municipal Service Plan and publish notice and hold the requisite public 
hearings thereon, in accordance with the applicable laws of the State of Texas. 
  
 SECTION FOUR:  Acknowledges that the undersigned understands and agrees that all city 
services to the subject property will be provided by the City on the same terms and conditions as 
provided to other similarly situated areas of the City and as provided in the Municipal Service Plan. 
 
 SECTION FIVE:  Agrees that a copy of this Request and Petition may be filed of record in 
the offices of the City of Leander and in the real property records of Williamson County, Texas, and 
shall be notice to and binding upon all persons or entities now or hereafter having any interest in the 
subject property. 
 
 FILED, this ___ day of _________________ 2015, with the City Secretary of the City of 
Leander, Williamson County, Texas. 
 
     Petitioner – 10.2941 Acres 
 
     SEC 29/RR, LP, a Texas Limited Partnership   
     
     By: SEC 29/RR GP, LLC, a Texas Limited Liability  
     Company, its General Partner  
 
     By: ____________________      
     Name: Scot W. Krieger  
     Title: Managing Member 
      
     Petitioner – 3.555 Acres 
  
     SWTWD, Ltd., a Texas Limited Partnership 
 
     By: 8833, GP, LLC, a Texas Limited Liability Company, 
     its General Partner 
      
     By: ____________________ 
     Name: Rodney D. Susholtz 
     Title: Sole Member 
  
     Devon Lea Susholtz 2001 Family Trust   
  
     By: ____________________     
     Name: Devon Susholtz     
     Title: Trustee   



     Ironwood Real Estate, LLC, a Texas Limited Liability  
     Company 
      
     By: _____________________ 
     Name: Scot W. Krieger  
     Title: Managing Member 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF _______________ § 
    
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this 
day personally appeared Scot W. Krieger, managing member of SEC 29/RR GP, LLC, a Texas 
limited liability company, general partner of SEC 29/RR, LP, a Texas limited partnership and 
Owner of the subject property and Petitioner herein, known to me to be the person whose name is 
subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they had authority to bind the entity 
and that they executed the same for the purposes therein expressed and in the capacity therein 
stated. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the __day of ___________ 2015. 
 
(SEAL)   

     _____________________________________ 
                  Notary Public - State of Texas 
 
 
    
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF _______________ § 
    
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this 
day personally appeared Rodney D. Susholtz, sole member of 8833, GP, LLC, a Texas limited 
liability company, general partner of SWTWD, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership and Owner of the 
subject property and Petitioner herein, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to 
the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they had authority to bind the entity and that they 
executed the same for the purposes therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the __day of ___________ 2015. 
 
(SEAL)   

     _____________________________________ 
                  Notary Public - State of Texas 



 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF _______________ § 
    
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this 
day personally appeared Devon Susholtz, Trustee of the Devon Lea Susholtz 2001 Family Trust and 
Owner of the subject property and Petitioner herein, known to me to be the person whose name is 
subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they had authority to bind the entity 
and that they executed the same for the purposes therein expressed and in the capacity therein 
stated. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the __day of ___________ 2015. 
 
(SEAL)   

     _____________________________________ 
                  Notary Public - State of Texas 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF _______________ § 
    
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this 
day personally appeared Scot W. Krieger, managing member of Ironwood Real Estate, LLC, a 
Texas limited liability company and Owner of the subject property and Petitioner herein, known to 
me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that 
they had authority to bind the entity and that they executed the same for the purposes therein 
expressed and in the capacity therein stated. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the __day of ___________ 2015. 
 
(SEAL)   

     _____________________________________ 
                  Notary Public - State of Texas 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit “A” 
 

DESCRIPTIONS OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 
 

 10.2941 ACRES & 3.555 ACRES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation 
proceedings for tracts of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is 
exempt from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently 
within the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the 
same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on 
the effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police 

services now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 



 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall 
be temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request 
of the landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will 
consider rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by 
the landowner(s) or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the 
plans and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services 
will be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions 
thereof, by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for 
the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility 
in whose jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time 
to time for the extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the 
subject properties’ owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line 
extension and construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject 
properties as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the 
subject properties and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided by the City 
utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all 
similarly situated areas and customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations 
and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The system will be accepted and 
maintained by the City in accordance with its usual acceptance and maintenance policies.  
New water line extensions will be installed and extended upon request under the same costs 
and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City 
in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and request for 



service.  The continued use of a water well that is in use on the effective date of the 
annexation and is in compliance with applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted 
and such use may continue until the subject properties’ owner requests and is able to 
connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) (a) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of 

wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or 
applicable portions thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in 
whose jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time 
to time for the extension of wastewater service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility 
system, the subject properties’ owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay 
the costs of line extension and construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater 
service to the subject properties as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the 
wastewater lines within the subject properties and any off-site improvements, wastewater 
service will be provided by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions and 
requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject 
to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The 
wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual 
policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be installed and extended upon 
request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the 
City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the 
costs and request for service.  The continued use of a septic system that is in use on the 
effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with all applicable rules and 
regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject property owner 
requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
  (b) This paragraph shall apply, in addition to paragraph 2B(ii)(a), in the event 

the City contracts with City of Liberty Hill, Texas to provide wholesale wastewater 
service to an area that includes the subject property (the “Wholesale Wastewater 
Agreement”). The landowners, on behalf of themselves and the landowners’ respective 
grantees, successors, assigns and subsequent purchasers of the subject property, agree to 
pay three hundred fifty dollars ($350.00) per living unit equivalent (the “System 
Reservation Fee”), as that term is defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, for 
the purpose of reserving capacity in the South San Gabriel Plant, as that term is defined 
in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, at the time that the landowner submits a 
preliminary plat for the subject property, or any portion thereof, and acknowledges and 
agrees that payment of the System Reservation Fee shall be a condition of preliminary 
plat approval.  Further, the landowners, on behalf of themselves and the landowners’ 
respective grantees, successors, assigns, and subsequent purchasers of the subject 
property, agree that each lot, tract, parcel or building site within the subject property that 



will be provided with wastewater service by the City shall pay the Connection Fee set 
forth in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement.  The Connection Fee shall be payable 
with respect to a lot, tract, parcel, or building site at the time the building permit for each 
building or structure is applied for, or if no building permit is required, then upon the date 
application is made to the City for connection to the City’s wastewater system.  The 
System Reservation Fee and the Connection Fee shall be in addition to any other fee, 
rates, and charges charged by the City for wastewater service to similarly situated 
customers.  When evaluating the application of City policies, rules, and ordinances to 
similarly situated areas and customers of the City, land and customers located within the 
area served by the City pursuant to the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement are similarly 
situated areas and customers of the City, subject to individual development agreements that 
may be applicable to such land. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject 
property and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  
The maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other 
traffic control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed 
public streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, 
as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage 

facilities, construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the 
need therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street 

markings and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by 
appropriate study and traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with 

established policies of the City; 
 



(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The 
property owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to 
service the property.    

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject 
property or redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as 
a developer in a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or 
redevelopment.  No additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject 
property the same as similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the 
Annexation Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service 
Plan is attached.  

 



RESOLUTION NO.  15-006-00    
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, ACCEPTING THE 
PETITION FOR ANNEXATION OF 13.8481 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, OF 
LAND LOCATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS; SETTING AN 
ANNEXATION SCHEDULE; PROVIDING FOR OPEN MEETINGS AND 
OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, the owner of certain property located within Williamson County, Texas, has 
petitioned the City of Leander, Texas, (herein the “City”), a home-rule City, for annexation of said 
property, more particularly described herein (the “subject property”),  into the City limits; 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is contiguous and adjacent to the corporate limits of the City 
and the owners have made application for annexation;  
 
 WHEREAS, after review and consideration of such petition for annexation, the City Council 
finds that the property is exempt from the City’s annexation plan pursuant to § 43.052 (h)(2) of the 
Local Government Code; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the petitioner has agreed and consented to the annexation of the subject property 
by the City and further agreed to be bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in 
force and effect within the corporate limits of the City and all those which may be hereafter adopted;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.     
 
  Section 2.  Proceedings.  The petition for annexation of the subject property, including the 
abutting streets, roadways, and rights of way, not previously annexed into the City and the draft services 
plan shown in Exhibit “B”, submitted by Petitioner, are hereby accepted:   
 
 All that certain tract or parcel of land being 10.2941 acres, more or less, situated in the 

Greenlief Fisk Survey, Abstract No. 5, located in Williamson County, Texas, and being 
more particularly shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 
 All that certain tract or parcel of land being 3.555 acres, more or less, being part of the 

Greenlief Fisk Survey, Abstract No. 5, located in Williamson County, Texas, and being 
more particularly shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 

  

 

 



Two public hearings are set for the dates of July 2, 2015 and July 16, 2015.  Notice of such hearings 
shall be posted and the hearings shall be open to the public to accept public comment on the annexation 
request. 
 

Section 3. Severability. Should any section or part of this Resolution be held 
unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect and 
to this end the provisions of this Resolution are declared to be severable. 

 
Section 4.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 

which this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 7th day of May, 2015. 

 
 
ATTEST:      THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

  

  

  

 

 



Exhibit “A”  
 

SUBJECT PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 

10.2941 ACRES & 3.555 ACRES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     
 

  

 

 



 

Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation 
proceedings for tracts of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is 
exempt from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently within 
the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the same terms 
and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on the 
effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police services 

now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 

  

 

 



 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall be 
temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request of the 
landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider 
rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by the 
landowner(s) or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the 
plans and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services will 
be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions thereof, 
by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility in whose 
jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance 
with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the 
extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the subject 
properties’ owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line extension and 
construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject properties as 
required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the subject properties 

  

 

 



and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided by the City utility department on 
the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and 
customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect 
from time to time.  The system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with 
its usual acceptance and maintenance policies.  New water line extensions will be installed and 
extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated 
customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City in effect at the time a request for service is 
submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a water well 
that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with applicable 
rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject 
properties’ owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) (a) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of 

wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable 
portions thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject properties, or portions 
thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction the 
subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance with all the 
ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of 
wastewater service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility system, the subject properties’ 
owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay the costs of line extension and 
construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater service to the subject properties as 
required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the wastewater lines within the subject 
properties and any off-site improvements, wastewater service will be provided by the City 
utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly 
situated areas and customers of the City, subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies 
of the City in effect from time to time.  The wastewater system will be accepted and maintained 
by the City in accordance with its usual policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions 
will be installed and extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other 
similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for 
service is submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a 
septic system that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with 
all applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the 
subject property owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
  (b) This paragraph shall apply, in addition to paragraph 2B(ii)(a), in the event the 

City contracts with City of Liberty Hill, Texas to provide wholesale wastewater service to an 
area that includes the subject property (the “Wholesale Wastewater Agreement”). The 
landowners, on behalf of themselves and the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, 
assigns and subsequent purchasers of the subject property, agree to pay three hundred fifty 

  

 

 



dollars ($350.00) per living unit equivalent (the “System Reservation Fee”), as that term is 
defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, for the purpose of reserving capacity in the 
South San Gabriel Plant, as that term is defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, at the 
time that the landowner submits a preliminary plat for the subject property, or any portion 
thereof, and acknowledges and agrees that payment of the System Reservation Fee shall be a 
condition of preliminary plat approval.  Further, the landowners, on behalf of themselves and 
the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, assigns, and subsequent purchasers of the 
subject property, agree that each lot, tract, parcel or building site within the subject property that 
will be provided with wastewater service by the City shall pay the Connection Fee set forth in 
the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement.  The Connection Fee shall be payable with respect to a 
lot, tract, parcel, or building site at the time the building permit for each building or structure is 
applied for, or if no building permit is required, then upon the date application is made to the 
City for connection to the City’s wastewater system.  The System Reservation Fee and the 
Connection Fee shall be in addition to any other fee, rates, and charges charged by the City for 
wastewater service to similarly situated customers.  When evaluating the application of City 
policies, rules, and ordinances to similarly situated areas and customers of the City, land and 
customers located within the area served by the City pursuant to the Wholesale Wastewater 
Agreement are similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject to individual 
development agreements that may be applicable to such land. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject property 
and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  The 
maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other traffic 
control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed public 
streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 

construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need 
therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 

  

 

 



  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings 
and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate 
study and traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established 

policies of the City; 
 

(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The property 
owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to service the 
property.    

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject property or 
redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as a developer in 
a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or redevelopment.  
No additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject property the same 
as similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the 
Annexation Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is 
attached.  
 
 

  

 

 



SCHEDULE FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION  
Bradley Tract +/- 126.098 Acres and Ironwood Tract +/- 13.8481 Acres 

DATE ACTION/EVENT LEGAL AUTHORITY 
May 7, 2015 
 

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Directs 
notification to land owners; and sets two (2) Public 
Hearings July 2, 2015 and July 16, 2015; Council directs 
development of service plan for area to be annexed.  

Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065; 
Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th day 
but before 20th day before institution of 
proceedings.  

By June 1, 2015 NOTICE TO property owners & utility providers  Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.062(a) 
June 17, 2015** 
Publish notice of First 
Public Hearing and 
send school district 
notice 
 
July 1, 2015** 
Publish notice of  
Second Public Hearing  

NEWSPAPER NOTICES RE: FIRST AND SECOND 
PUBLIC HEARINGS; (If applicable, certified Notice to 
Railroad). POST NOTICE OF HEARINGS ON CITY’S 
WEBSITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS 
COMPLETE 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school 
district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for 
publishing the notice of the First Public Hearing.)  

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days 
before 1st and 2nd public hearings.  Loc. 
Gov’t Code, §43.063 (c). 
 
 
 
Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.905; send school 
district notice not less than 10 days nor more 
than 20 days before the First Public Hearing. 

Ten days after the date 
the first notice of 
Public Hearing is 
published 

LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN 
PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days after first 
newspaper notice) 

Site hearing required if 10% of adult 
residents of tracts protest within 10 days after 
1st newspaper notice. Loc. Gov’t Code, § 
43.063 (b) 

July 2, 2015* 1st PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the 1st reading of 
ordinance) REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.  

July 16, 2015* 2nd PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (At least 20 days before 1st reading of ordinance.) 
REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065. 

Institution Date 
August 6, 2015* 

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Date of institution of proceedings.  Not less 
than 20 days from the second public hearing 
nor more than 40 days from the first public 
hearing. 

August 20, 2015; 
Or at a special called 
meeting after the 1st 
First Reading   

SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Not more than 90 days after 1st reading of 
Ordinance § 43.064. 

Within 30 days of 
Second Reading  

CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary 
changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is 
compatible with mapping format used by registrar 

Elec. Code §42.0615 

Within 60 days of 
Second Reading 

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF 
ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:  
 

1. County Clerk 
2. County Appraisal District 
3. County Tax Assessor Collector 
4. 911 Addressing 
5. Sheriff’s Office 
6. City Department Heads 
7. State Comptroller 
8. Franchise Holders 

 

*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule.  Please advise if deviation. 
**Newspaper notices to paper by 5p.m. the preceding Wednesday. 
 





AGENDA ITEM # 22 

 
Executive Summary 

 
August 6, 2015 

 
 
Subject: Discussion and possible action regarding the draft annexation service plan for the 
Falcon Oaks Area. 
 
Background:   
 
On March 6, 2014, Council adopted an ordinance amending the City's annexation plan to add 
the Falcon Oaks area to the plan.  Property owners within the area were notified of the inclusion 
of their property in the annexation plan.  Staff notified existing service providers in the area 
requesting an inventory of services currently provided.  No responses were received by the 
deadline and the inventory of services was completed and posted on the City's web site. 
 
Two public hearings on the annexation were conducted on December 18, 2014 and January 15, 
2015. 
 
By State law, the Williamson County Commissioners Court is required to appoint 5 
representatives from the area being annexed to negotiate with the City on the provision of 
services to the area upon annexation.  The Commissioners Court appointed the five 
representatives on December 16, 2014.  The members are: 
(1) Bill Burba; (2) Fred Summers; (3) Salome DonJuan; (4) Owen Couchman; and (5) Kary 
Wesley 
 
City staff met with the appointed representatives to negotiate the services to be provided to the 
area on January 15, 2015, February 12, 2015 and July 1, 2015.  The attached service plan is a 
result of the meetings with the negotiating team.  The key items in the service plan that were 
negotiated include: 

• Process permanent zoning case concurrent with annexation to result in SFE-2-B (Single-
family estate) zoning 

• Allow for manufactured homes to continue to be placed on lots for up to 10 years in 
compliance with the City's standards for manufactured homes 

• Allow for the ability to continue the use of above ground propane tanks for 10 years 
• Allow pre-existing chicken coops to remain without having to comply with the City's 

distance requirements from residential structures 
• Provide only warnings and no citations for nuisance code violations for up to 180 days 

after annexation 
• Conduct a speed study and possibly place stop signs at internal street intersections on 

Eagles Way and Falcon Oaks 
• The installation of street lights at Falcon Oaks and Bagdad and Eagles Way and Bagdad 



AGENDA ITEM # 22 

 
 
Financial Consideration: The extension of wastewater service, upgrades to water service, 
street maintenance and the provision of full municipal services will be required.  Cost estimates 
for these projects have not yet been completed, but will be available prior to final annexation. 
  
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the annexation service plan 
 
Attachments:  

1. Draft annexation service plan 
2. Annexation schedule 

 
Prepared by: Tom Yantis, Assistant City Manager 



MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation 
proceedings for a tract of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is included in the municipal annexation plan; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that are existing are sufficient to service 
the subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently 
within the City limits; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on 
the effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police 

services now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force within the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 

Residential customers using the services of a privately owned solid waste management 
service provider other than the City’s contracted service provider may continue to use such 
services until the second anniversary of the annexation. 

 
 D. Animal control as follows: 

  

 

 



 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall 
be temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request 
of the landowner or staff.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Planning & Zoning 
Commission and the City Council will consider permanent rezoning of the subject property 
to run concurrently with the annexation process.  As a result of negotiations with City staff 
and representatives of the subject property, City staff intends to recommend for 
consideration by the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council to zone the 
residential lots within the subject property as SFE-2-B (single family estate) while 
continuing to allow, for a period of 10 years from the effective date of the annexation, the 
placement of manufactured homes on residential lots within the subject property in 
compliance with the City’s SFU/MH zoning district and related building codes. Upon the 
placement of a new manufactured home, compliant skirting shall be installed within 180 
days.   Above ground propane tank usage within the subject property existing at the time of 
annexation, to include subsequent replacement tanks, shall be permitted for up to 10 years 
after annexation.  Additionally, on the effective date of the annexation, the City intends to 
document all non-conforming uses within the subject property.  Property owners and 
residents within the subject property shall report all legal, non-conforming uses within the 
subject property at the time of annexation.  Notwithstanding paragraph 5 below, such legal, 
non-conforming uses shall be allowed to continue beyond the 10 year term detailed therein.  
Chicken coops existing at the time of the annexation shall not be required to adhere to the 
City’s distance requirements in relation to residential structures. In an effort to gain 
voluntary compliance with the City’s property maintenance regulations, the City’s code 
enforcement department agrees to provide warning notices for up to180 days after the 
annexation for violations of junk, trash and debris within the subject property. 

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  The following municipal services will be provided on a 
schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 

  

 

 



 
 (ii) The subject property currently receives water service from City’s system.  New 

requests for service shall be in accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies 
of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of water service.  If connected to the 
City’s water utility system, the subject property’s owner shall construct the internal water 
lines and pay the costs of line extension and construction of such facilities necessary to 
provide water service to the subject property as required in City ordinances.  Upon 
acceptance of the water lines within the subject property and any off-site improvements, 
water service will be provided by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions 
and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City; 
subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  
Subject to the terms contained herein, the City will perform upgrades to the water system to 
provide fire flow to the annexed area that is the same as similar, large lot subdivisions in the 
City.  The system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual 
acceptance and maintenance policies.  New water line extensions will be installed and 
extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated 
customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City in effect at the time a request for service 
is submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a water 
well that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with 
applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the 
subject property’s owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) Residential homes and businesses within the subject property are currently using on-

site sewer facilities and therefore have service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility 
system, the subject property’s owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay 
the costs of line extension and construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater 
service to the subject property as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the 
wastewater lines within the subject property and any off-site improvements, wastewater 
service will be provided by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions and 
requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject 
to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The 
wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual 
policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be installed and extended upon 
request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the 
City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the 
costs and request for service.  The continued use of on-site sewer facility that is in use on 
the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with all applicable rules and 
regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject property owner 
requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system.  At such time an 
existing on-site sewer facility fails or must be replaced in compliance with Williamson 
County or City Health District standards or other applicable regulations, and connection 

  

 

 



to the City’s wastewater system is available, connection to the City’s wastewater system 
shall be required. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject 
property and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  
The maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other 
traffic control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed 
public streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, 
as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, including the repair and return 

in similar or better condition of roadways disturbed during infrastructure 
improvements and upgrades, installation of drainage facilities, construction of 
curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need therefore is 
determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street 

markings and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by 
appropriate study and traffic standards, to include the consideration of the 
placement of traffic control signs at the intersections of Falcon Oaks and Red 
Hawk, Falcon Oaks and Peregrine, Eagles Way and Red Hawk, and Eagles Way 
and Peregrine; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with 

established policies of the City and to include, but not limited to, new street 
lighting at the intersections of Falcon Oaks and Bagdad and Eagles Way and 
Bagdad; 

 
(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The 

property owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to 
service the property.    

 

  

 

 



(iv)  In addition to the services listed above, the City will provide full municipal 
services to the subject property commensurate with the levels of services provided in 
other parts of the City except if differences in topography, land use, and population 
density constitute a sufficient basis for providing different levels of service, no later than 
two and one-half (2-½) years after the effective date of the full-purpose annexation.  If 
full municipal services cannot be reasonably provided within the aforementioned time 
period, the City will propose a schedule for providing said services within a period of 
four and one-half (4-½) years after the effective date of the annexation.   “Full municipal 
services” are services provided by the City within its full-purpose boundaries, excluding 
gas or electrical service. The City shall provide the services by and of the methods by 
which it extends the services to any other area of the City. 

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  The City will initiate acquisition or construction of capital 
improvements necessary for providing full municipal services adequate to serve the subject 
property.  Any such construction shall be substantially completed within two and one-half (2-½) 
years after the effective date of the full-purpose annexation.  If capital improvements necessary for 
providing full municipal services for the subject property cannot be reasonably constructed within 
the aforementioned time period, the City will propose a schedule for providing said services within 
a period of four and one-half (4-½) years.  Any such construction of capital improvements shall be 
accomplished in a continuous process and shall be completed as soon as reasonably possible, 
consistent with generally accepted local engineering and architectural standards and practices. 
 
(4)  Impact Fees.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this service plan, a landowner within 
the subject property will not be required to fund capital improvements necessary to provide 
municipal services in a manner inconsistent with Chapter 395 of the Local Government Code 
governing impact fees, unless otherwise agreed to by the landowner. 
 
(5)   Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years.  A 
resident or landowner of the subject property may enforce this municipal services plan in 
accordance with Section 43.056(l), Loc. Gov't. Code and shall be entitled to all rights and remedies 
as provided therein.   
 
(6)      Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the 
Annexation Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service 
Plan is attached.  

 
 

 
 

  

 

 



SCHEDULE FOR ANNEXATION APPLICABLE ONLY TO PROPERTY  
INCLUDED IN AN ANNEXATION PLAN - FALCON OAKS SUBDIVISION  

 
STEP 

 
DATE 

 
ACTION/EVENT 

 
1 

 
March 6, 2014 

 
COUNCIL BY WRITTEN ORDINANCE amended Annexation Plan to include 
Falcon Oaks Subdivision 
(Loc. Gov't Code §§ 43.051 & 43.052) 

2 After adoption of 
Annexation Plan 
Amendment 

POST AND MAINTAIN ANNEXATION PLAN ON CITY'S WEBSITE  
(Loc. Gov't Code §43.052(j)) 

 
3 
 

 
By June 4, 2014 

NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNERS AND SERVICE PROVIDERS of 
inclusion of property in Annexation Plan (If applicable, Notice to Railroad)   
(Loc. Gov't Code §43.052(f))  
INCLUDE REQUEST TO SERVICE PROVIDERS for information necessary 
to compile inventory of services and facilities in Step 4 
[Note:  Service Providers have 90 days to provide the requested information, 
unless the City and the service provider agree to an extension.] 
(Loc. Gov't Code § 43.053(c) – (f)) 

 
4 

By the 60th day after 
receiving information 
from service providers 
(November 1, 2014 latest 
possible deadline if 
notice sent June 4th, 
unless agreed to extend 
the period for providing 
the information) 
 
[Generally 8 months 
after adoption of the 
Annexation Plan] 

 
COMPLETE INVENTORY OF SERVICES AND FACILITIES provided by 
services provides to the area in the Annexation Plan.  MAKE INVENTORY 
AVAILABLE for public inspection. (Loc. Gov’t Code, § 43.053(g)) 
 
City may monitor the services provided in the area proposed for annexation and 
verify the inventory information provided by the service provider. (Loc. Gov’t 
Code, § 43.053(h)) 
 
[Note:  If service providers do not provide the requested information within 90 
days or by the agreed extension deadline, the City is not obligated to include the 
service in the inventory] (Loc. Gov’t Code, § 43.053(c)) 

5 Before the public 
hearings in Step 7 
 
[Generally 10 months 
after amendment of the 
Annexation Plan] 

COMPLETE A DRAFT SERVICE PLAN for extension of municipal services 
to the area in the Annexation Plan 
(Loc. Gov't Code § 43.056(j)) 
 

6 Not less than 10 days 
nor more than 20 days 
before each public 
hearing 

NEWSPAPER NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS  
NOTICE BY CERTIFIED MAIL TO SERVICE PROVIDERS and, if 
applicable, to the Railroad  
SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school district of possible impact) 
POST NOTICE ON WEB SITE and MAINTAIN UNTIL COMPLETE  
(Loc. Gov't Code § 43.0561(c)) 

7 By the 90th day after the 
Inventory complete and 
made available to the 
public (January 30, 2015 
latest possible deadline, 
unless extension to 
provide the service 
information) 
[Generally 11 months 
after adoption of the 
Annexation Plan] 

HOLD TWO PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 [Note:  The Council has some flexibility in scheduling these hearings.  For 
example, Council could hold the public hearings at two consecutive, regularly 
scheduled meetings, as long as both hearings are held before the 90th day after 
completion of the Inventory in Step 4.] (Loc. Gov’t Code, § 43.0561(a)) 
 
At least one hearing must be held in the area proposed for annexation if a suitable 
site is available and more than 20 adult, permanent residents of the area to be 
annexed file a written protest within 10 days after the date of publication of the 
hearing notice.  (Loc Gov't Code § 43.0561(b)) 



 
8 

 
After the public 
hearings 

 
NEGOTIATE WITH PROPERTY OWNERS FOR THE PROVISION OF 
SERVICES TO THE ANNEXED AREA  
(Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.0562 -- 43.0564 (a)).   
County commissioner's court shall select five representatives to negotiate with the 
City for provision of services.  (Loc. Gov't Code §43.0562(b)).  The City may 
negotiate and enter a written agreement with the representatives for the provision 
and funding of services to the area.  (Loc. Gov't Code §43.0563(a)).  If the parties 
cannot reach an agreement, either party may request arbitration in writing before 
the 60th day after the service plan is completed in Step 9.  (Loc. Gov't Code 
§43.0564(a)) 

 
9 

 
By the 10th month after 
completion of the 
Inventory in Step 4. 
(August 31, 2015 latest 
possible deadline) 
 
[Generally 18 months 
after adoption of the 
Annexation Plan] 

 
COMPLETE MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN for extension of municipal 
services to the area in the Annexation Plan 
(Loc. Gov't Code § 45.056(a)) 
 

 
10 

 
Institution Date 
March 9, 2017 
 
[Property may be annexed 
not earlier than March 6, 
2017 and not later than 
April 5, 2017] 

 
FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE  
[Note:  Property included in the Annexation Plan cannot be annexed sooner 
than the third anniversary of the date the property is included in the Annexation 
Plan, and must be annexed no later than the 31st day after the third anniversary 
of the date the property was included in the Annexation Plan.] 
(Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.052(c) & (g)) 

 
11 

 
March 16, 2017 
 
[Property may be annexed 
not earlier than March 6, 
2017 and not later than 
April 5, 2017] 

 
SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE  
[See note in Step 10] 

 
12 
 

 
By April 14, 2017 

CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary changes to County Voter 
Registrar in a format that is compatible with mapping format used by registrar 
Election Code §42.0615 
 
CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:  
 

1. County Clerk 
2. County Appraisal District 
3. County Tax Assessor Collector 
4. 911 Addressing 
5. Sheriff’s Office 
6. City Department Heads 
7. State Comptroller 

      8. Franchise Holders 
 



AGENDA ITEM # 23 

 
Executive Summary 

 
August 6, 2015 

 
 
Subject: Consideration of an Agreement between the City of Leander and the City of Liberty Hill 
Regarding the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction Release of the Caughfield Tract. 
 
Background: Leander and Liberty Hill entered into an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for 
Urban Planning, Watershed Protection and the Release of Extraterritorial Jurisdiction dated 
effective as of October 5, 2006 (the “Interlocal Agreement”) under which Liberty Hill and 
Leander agreed that Liberty Hill’s development regulations would apply to certain property. 
 
The Caughfield tract is one of the properties subject to the 2006 agreement and this agreement 
would release the Caughfield tract from Leander's ETJ as well as release the recently 
purchased San Gabriel River park property from Liberty Hill's planning jurisdiction and 
incorporate it into Leander's ETJ. 
 
  
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the agreement 
 
Attachments: ETJ agreement (to be provided as a supplement to the packet) 
 
Prepared by: Tom Yantis, Assistant City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM #24a 

 
Executive Summary 

 
August 6, 2015 

 
 
Subject: Consideration of a Development, ETJ Release, and Consent Agreement for the 
Caughfield Tract. 
 
Background: The City received a petition for the creation of a municipal utility district (MUD) on 
approximately 186.71 acres known as the Caughfield tract.  The Texas legislature authorized 
the creation of the MUD (Williamson County Municipal Utility District No. 33) subject to the City 
of Leander granting its consent. 
 
The property lies within an area that is subject to an agreement between the City of Leander 
and the City of Liberty Hill that allows Liberty Hill to apply its development regulations.  The 
agreement between the City's contemplates that this property will be released from Leander's 
ETJ and incorporated into Liberty Hill's. 
 
The agreement provides for the developer to dedicate easements necessary for the installation 
of a regional waste-water force-main through the property and for the future construction of the 
South San Gabriel River Trail along the property's San Gabriel River frontage.  Additionally, the 
agreement provides for the developer to provide street access to the City's recently purchased 
park property on the San Gabriel River and to stub water, wastewater and reuse water lines to 
the park property.  The developer also agrees to align Arterial A1 on the property with its 
western terminus on the Wedemeyer property and extend Arterial A1 through the property to 
U.S. 183. 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the Development, ETJ Release and Consent 
Agreement. 
 
Attachments:  

1. Agreement with exhibits (to be provided as a supplement to the packet) 
2. Location map 

 
Prepared by: Tom Yantis, Assistant City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CR
 26

6

US
 18

3 N
B

CR
 26

7

W SH 29
US

 18
3 S

B

US 183

RIVA RIDGE DR

SOUTH GABRIEL DR

CR
 27

0

RI
VE

R 
RU

N

S BAKER CIR

N BAKER CIR

BR
AU

N 
PA

RK
WA

Y

BU
RB

A 
LN

HIGH GABRIEL EAST

W BAKER CIR

CRIDER LN

WHITEWING DR

DRAPER LN

ARROYO CIR

US 183 SB

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±

0 1,250
Feet

LOCATION MAP Location Map - Caughfield Tracts

CITY MAPË

Caughfield Tracts
City Limits
Leander ETJ

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



AGENDA ITEM # 24b 

 
Executive Summary 

August 6, 2015 

Agenda Subject:  An ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas giving consent to the creation of 
a municipal utility district on the Caughfield tract. 
  
Background:  The City received a request from Caughfield Ranch, Ltd. to create a MUD on the 
approximately 186.71 acre Caughfield tract which is located in the northwest portion of the 
City's ETJ. 
 
The ordinance will be accompanied by a Consent Agreement which will be considered 
concurrently with this item. 
     
Origination:  Applicant: Caughfield Ranch, Ltd. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the resolution.   
 
Attachments:  

1. MUD Consent ordinance (to be provided as a supplement to the packet) 
2. Landowner petition 
3. Location map 

 
Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 7/30/15 

 



CR
 26

6

US
 18

3 N
B

CR
 26

7

W SH 29
US

 18
3 S

B

US 183

RIVA RIDGE DR

SOUTH GABRIEL DR

CR
 27

0

RI
VE

R 
RU

N

S BAKER CIR

N BAKER CIR

BR
AU

N 
PA

RK
WA

Y

BU
RB

A 
LN

HIGH GABRIEL EAST

W BAKER CIR

CRIDER LN

WHITEWING DR

DRAPER LN

ARROYO CIR

US 183 SB

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±

0 1,250
Feet

LOCATION MAP Location Map - Caughfield Tracts

CITY MAPË

Caughfield Tracts
City Limits
Leander ETJ

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.























AGENDA ITEM # 25 

 
Executive Summary 

 
August 6, 2015 

 
 
Subject: Consider Interlocal Agreement with Williamson Co. for the Construction of the Bagdad 
Heritage Trail 
 
Background: The 2013 Williamson County Bond Election included funding for the construction 
of the Bagdad Heritage Trail from Benbrook Ranch Park to CR 280.  The 10’ wide concrete trail 
will be constructed on the east side of Bagdad in the right-of-way. The estimated cost of the trail 
is $438,480 and County Bonds will cover 90% of that amount ($394,632). 
 
Please note that the City will be responsible for construction cost overruns up to 5% of the 
engineer’s final cost estimate prior to bid opening.  If the lowest responsible bid exceeds the 
engineer’s final estimate by more than 5% it may be necessary to amend the Interlocal 
Agreement to add or allocate funding by mutual agreement of both parties. 
 
Prior to moving forward with on the project an Interlocal Agreement with Williamson County is 
needed. The proposed agreement is attached for your consideration.      
 
Financial Consideration: $43,848 (10% City Share) 
  
Recommendation: Staff respectfully recommends Council approval the Interlocal Agreement 
with Williamson County for the construction of the Bagdad Heritage Trail from Benbrook Ranch 
Park to CR 280. 
 
Attachments: Proposed Interlocal Agreement 
 
Prepared by:  Stephen Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 



      
 
 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
 

THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into effect 
this ________day of __________, 2015, by and between WILLIAMSON COUNTY (the 
“County) and the CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS (the “City”), political subdivisions of the State 
of Texas and are sometimes collectively referred to as “the Parties”. 

 
RECITALS: 

 
 WHEREAS, V.T.C.A., Government Code, Chapter 791, the Texas Interlocal 
Cooperation Act, provides that any one or more public agencies may contract with each other for 
the performance of governmental functions and for the joint use of facilities or services for the 
promotion and protection of the health and welfare of the inhabitants of this State and the mutual 
benefit of the parties; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City and the County desire to cooperate in the cost sharing of the 
funding of improvements to a trail project in Leander; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the trail project contemplated in this Interlocal Agreement is shown in 
Exhibit A and includes the construction of a 10 foot wide reinforced concrete trail on the east 
side of Bagdad Road from the end of the current trail in Benbrook Ranch Park to CR 280, as 
shown on Exhibit “A” (“Project”); and      
 

WHEREAS, the Project is on the City, County and Capital Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (“CAMPO”) long range roadway plans and is needed to convey the existing and 
future traffic volumes in this fast growing region; and   

 
WHEREAS, the total estimated cost of the Project is $438,480 and includes engineering, 

surveying, geotechnical, environmental, right-of-way acquisition, design, construction, 
construction inspection and construction testing (“Projects Costs”); and  
 

WHEREAS, the County has committed to providing a total funding towards the Project 
in the amount of 90% of the Project Costs, but in no event more than $394,632 and the City has 
committed funding the balance of the  Project; and 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein 
contained, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 

I. 
General 

 
 All of the references in the Recitals above are hereby adopted in full. 



Page 2 

 
 
 

II. 
Terms and Conditions 

 
 

1. The term “Design” for the purposes of this Agreement means engineering, surveying, 
geotechnical, environmental, and compliance with local, state, and federal statutes and 
regulations including but not limited to those that relate to the ADA or accessibility for 
the physically-challenged, and any other governmental codes, permits or approvals, 
professional or technical services required to produce bidding documents, plans and 
specifications for the Project. 
 

2. The term “Right-of-Way Acquisition” means all engineering, surveying, appraisal, legal, 
title company and other services required to acquire in fee simple the parcels of land 
necessary to construct the Project 

 
3. The term “Construction” means the provision of all materials, equipment, labor, 

surveying, testing and inspection necessary to construct the Project according to the plans 
and specifications approved by the City and County. 

 
4. The City agrees to serve as Project Manager on behalf of the City and the County and 

administer all aspects of Design, Right-Of-Way Acquisition and Construction for Project, 
including consultant selection with approval by County staff, preparation of construction 
plans, competitive bidding, construction and inspection of the Improvements.   

 
5. Upon the City’s approval of each invoice for Projects Costs, the City will transmit a copy 

of the invoice to the County.  Each invoice shall identify all Projects Costs incurred by 
the City relating to the Project. Each invoice submitted by the City for reimbursement 
will clearly describe the work done for which reimbursement is sought, will not seek 
reimbursement or payment for any costs or expenses other than Projects Costs.  Upon 
request of the County, the City agrees to make available documentation in reasonable 
detail evidencing all Projects Costs for which reimbursement is sought. Upon timely 
receipt, proper documentation and approval of each invoice, County shall make a good 
faith effort to pay the amount which is due and payable within thirty (30) days of the 
County Auditor’s receipt.  Payment not mailed within 30 calendar days of receipt by the 
County Auditor will accrue interest at the rate set forth in Government Code Section 
2251.025(b). 

 
6. The City agrees that the funds provided pursuant to this Agreement are to be utilized 

solely for the Project. The City agrees to make available to the County any and all 
documentation required by the County to verify that said sum has been utilized solely for 
the Project. 
 

7. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the City will be responsible for construction cost 
overruns up to 5 percent of the engineer’s final cost estimate prior to bid opening for the 
Project. If the lowest responsible bid for any project exceeds the engineer’s final estimate 
by more than 5 percent, it may be necessary to amend this Agreement to add or re-
allocate funding of individual projects by mutual Agreement of both Parties.   



Page 3 

 
8. All professional and other services for the Project shall be procured in accordance with all 

applicable State laws. 
 

9. The County shall be included in the City’s process for selection of all professional 
services and shall have the right of final approval of all professional services prior to 
contract execution. 

 
10. The City shall schedule periodic progress meetings with the County of not less than one 

per month, unless otherwise agreed by both Parties, and the County shall on an 
administrative basis have the right to review and approve all construction documents 
prior to finalization by the consultant. 
 

11. The County is not liable for and it shall be the City’s sole responsibility, at its own cost 
and expense from its share of the project funding, to pay for the design, installation, 
construction, repair, replacement, removal, upgrade and maintenance of all irrigation and 
landscaping, including but not limited to, plantings of grass and bushes, and the 
installation of water features, if any, that are related to any of the Project.   

12. To the extent allowed by law, the Parties each agree to hold harmless, defend, and 
indemnify the other Party, its officers, agents, directors, servants, representatives and 
employees, from and against any and all suits, actions, legal proceedings, demands, costs, 
expenses, losses, damages, fines, penalties, liabilities and claims of any character, type or 
description, including but not limited to any and all expenses of litigation, court costs, 
attorney’s fees and all other costs and fees incident to any work done as a result of the 
Design and Construction of the Project, except to the extent arising from the Party’s gross 
negligence or intentional action.  In no event shall either Party be liable to the other for 
special or consequential damages, statutory or otherwise.  Nothing herein shall be 
construed to waive or limit either Party’s legal or equitable defenses or immunities.  

II. 
Miscellaneous 

 
1. The Parties agree that in the event any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of 

competent jurisdiction to be in contradiction of any laws of the State or the United States, 
the parties will immediately rectify the offending portions of this Agreement. The 
remainder of the Agreement shall be in full force and effect. 

 
2. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto, and 

supersedes all their oral and written negotiations, agreements and understandings of every 
kind. The Parties understand, agree and declare that no promise, warranty, statement or 
representation of any kind whatsoever, which is not expressly stated in this Agreement, 
has been made by any party hereto or its officers, employees or other agents to induce 
execution of this Agreement.  

 
3. This Agreement shall be performable in Williamson County, Texas. 

 
4. This Agreement is not intended to create, nor should it be construed as creating, a 

partnership, association, joint venture, or trust. 
 



Page 4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
         WILLIAMSON COUNTY 
 
 

                                                                                __________________________ 
                             Dan A. Gattis 

         County Judge  
         Williamson County, Texas 

ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
Nancy Rister, County Clerk 
 
       CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 

         __________________________      
                _____________, Mayor   
                                                City of Leander, Texas 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
City Secretary 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 

 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM # 26 

 

 

Executive Summary 

August 6, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between 
City of Leander and Williamson County  
 
Background:   The City and the County desire to cooperate in the cost sharing of the 
funding of improvements to a roadway project in Leander known as Bagdad Road North 
 
The road project contemplated in this Interlocal Agreement as shown in Exhibit A 
consists of the widening of Bagdad Road from Old 2243 North to CR 280. 
 
The Project is on the City, County and Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 
(“CAMPO”) long range roadway plans and is needed to convey the existing and future 
traffic volumes in this fast growing region. 
  
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  The total estimated cost of the project is $13,000,000 and 
includes engineering, surveying, geotechnical, environmental, right-of-way acquisition, 
construction, construction inspection and construction testing. 
 
The County has committed to providing a total funding towards the Project in the amount 
of 50% of the Project Costs, but in no event more than $4,903,000 and the City has 
committed funding the balance of the Project. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement 
between City of Leander and Williamson County. 
 
Attachments:   Interlocal Agreement between City of Leander and Williamson County 

 
Prepared by:  Terri A. Crauford, P.E., Assistant City Engineer  













AGENDA ITEM # 27 

 

 

Executive Summary 

August 6, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between 
City of Leander and Williamson County  
 
Background:   The City and the County desire to cooperate in the cost sharing of the 
funding of improvements for the Old 2243 (Hero Way) Project. The Project contemplated 
in this Interlocal includes the widening of Hero Way, also known as Old 2243, from US 
183 to Lakeline Blvd.  
 
The Project is on the City, County and Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 
(“Campo”) long range roadway plans and is needed to convey the existing and future 
traffic volumes in this fast growing region.  
  
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  The total estimated cost of the project is $24,000,000 and 
includes engineering, surveying, geotechnical, environmental, right-of-way acquisition, 
construction, construction inspection and construction testing. 
 
The County has committed to providing a total funding towards the Project in the amount 
of 50% of the Project Costs, but in no event more than $9,150,000 and the City has 
committed funding the balance of the Project. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the Interlocal Agreement between 
City of Leander and Williamson County. 
 
Attachments:   Interlocal Agreement between City of Leander and Williamson County 

 
Prepared by:  Terri A. Crauford, P.E., Assistant City Engineer  













AGENDA ITEM # 28 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Executive Summary 

August 6, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:   Consider Variance to Construction Noise Ordinance for NE 
Construction to allow for Early Morning Concrete Pours for the Village at Leander 
Station located on the corner of Hero Way and Mel Mathis Blvd.  
 
 
Background:   
 

NE Construction is requesting 3AM concrete pours to maximize the daylight hours for 
concrete finishing and minimize the likelihood of the concrete trucks getting delayed in 
traffic. Potential pour dates are located in the letter request attached.  
 
NE Construction has notified the only resident on the west side of the property and has 
agreed to take all reasonable precautions to reduce early morning disturbances. 
 
 
 

Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  Not Applicable 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends a variance to construction noise ordinance to NE 
Construction for early concrete pours for the Village at Leander Station project  
 
Attachments:   Letter Request, Location Map 
 
Prepared by:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E. CFM, City Engineer 
 



                       
 

July 29, 2015 

Cecil Leach 
NE Construction LLP 
420 Southfork Dr.  
Lewisville, TX 75057 
972-880-9142 
 
 
City of Leander 
PO Box 319 
Leander TX 78646 
512-528-2766 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
We are currently building a 225 unit apartment complex name Village at Leander Station 
located at 1680 Hero Way.  We are requesting a variance to place concrete prior to the 
normal working hours allowed and enforced by the City of Leander.   
 
Our property is located on the corner of Hero Way and Mel Mathis Blvd.  Mr. Jeff Musgrove 
owns approximately 150 acres.  There is only one neighbor on the west side of this property 
who is Mrs. Virginia Naumann.  We have visited with Mrs. Naumann about placing concrete 
in the early morning hours and she confirmed she is ok with this taking place. 
 
We are anticipating 26 concrete pours during the phase of construction.  We will be 
beginning August the 7th and ending October the 2nd.  Please see the attached schedule for 
further verification.  Please keep in mind these are milestone dates and can fluctuate within a 
day or so of the actual placement date due to unforeseen instances.  (major rain event, 
inspection process with engineers, city inspections etc.)  We are requesting 3AM pours since 
we are in the middle of the summer time which will give our labor force time to finish and 
for us to meet our ACI specifications.  
 
If you have any questions please feel free to contact me at 972-880-9142. 
 
Thanks, 
 
 
 
Cecil Leach 
NE Construction Superintendent 
 
 

420 Southfork Drive • Lewisville, TX 75057 • Office: (972) 221-0095 • Fax: (972) 221-0098 



                       
 
*Potential Pour Dates: 
 
8/7/15 – Bldg 1 (1st pour) 
8/11/15 – Bldg 2 (1st pour) 
8/13/15 – Bldg 1 (2nd pour) 
8/17/15 – Bldg 2 (2nd pour) 
8/19/15 – Bldg 4 (1st pour) 
8/21/15 – Bldg 5  
8/25/15 – Bldg 4 (2nd pour) 
8/26/15 – Bldg 6 (1st pour) 
8/27/15 – Bldg 3 (1st pour) 
8/31/15 – Bldg 6 (2nd pour) 
9/2/15 – Bldg 3 (2nd pour) 
9/4/15 – city approach pour 
9/7/15 – 2 garage pours 
9/8/15 – paving pour 
9/11/15 – paving pour 
9/15/15 – other city approach pour 
9/17/15 – trash compactor pour 
9/18/15 – paving pour 
9/21/15 – paving pour 
9/23/15 – 2 garage pours 
9/25/15 – paving pour 
9/28/15 – paving pour 
9/30/15 – paving pour 
10/2/15 – final paving pour 
 
*Please keep in mind this is all potential schedule dates to start at 3AM 

 

 

420 Southfork Drive • Lewisville, TX 75057 • Office: (972) 221-0095 • Fax: (972) 221-0098 



HERO WAY

ME
L M

AT
HI

S A
VE

183A

C
R

 279

RM 2243

S
 U

S
 1

83

U
S

 183

RM 2243

±

0 250
Feet

NOISE ORDINANCE VARIANCE Location Map - Village at Leander Station

CITY MAPË

Proposed Work Area

City Limits

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



AGENDA ITEM # 29 

 
Executive Summary 

 August 6, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:   Consider Award of Bid for the Utility Billing Customer Service Area 

Renovation Project to Majestic Services, Inc. 

 

Background:    Four vendors submitted bids on July 16th for the Utility Billing Customer 

Service Area Renovation project.  A project budget of $140,000 was approved by City 

Council on June 4, 2015.  The low bid for the project is $135,000 (Base Bid, with no 

alternates) and was submitted by Majestic Services, Inc.  Staff has vetted the respondent 

and recommends award. 

 

Origination:       Joy Simonton, Purchasing Agent  

 
Financial Consideration:  $140,000 included in the FY 2015-16 General Fund Capital 

Projects (40-04-8321).  Also, per the City’s Public Arts Ordinance, an amount equal to 

1% of the construction bid shall be transferred to the Public Arts Fund. 

 
Recommendation:     Approve Award to Majestic Services, Inc. 

 
Attachments:    Purchasing Agent recommendation; Bid Tabulation and Matrix  

 
Prepared by: Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 

  Joy Simonton, Purchasing Agent  













































 

 

  

INTEROFFICE MEMO 

 

DATE: July 23, 2015 

TO: Robert Powers 

FROM: Joy Simonton 

RE: Recommendation for Award for Solicitation #S15-024 Utility Billing Customer Service Area 
Renovation 

 

The Purchasing Division recommends Majestic Services, Inc. for the award of a construction agreement 
for the Utility Billing Customer Service Area Renovation for $135,000 in accordance with the City’s 
solicitation and evaluation process.   

Four (4) responses were received.     

 

Joy Simonton, Purchasing Agent 

 

 

CC: FILE 



Bid Info: City of Leander 

Utility Customer Service Area Remodel

Solicitation No. #S15-024

Opening: 06/16/2015

Max Points

Majestic Services, Inc. ICHOR Construction, Inc.

T-Star Services

American Constructors, 

Inc.

$135,000.00 $144,678.00 $189,793.00 $218,000.00

$17,130.00 $16,489.00 $9,950.00 $16,120.00

$19,500.00 $20,666.00 $17,458.00 $14,156.00

-$6,000.00 -$2,500.00 -$5,510.00 -$8,260.00

$135,000.00 $144,678.00 $189,793.00 $218,000.00

Yes/No Yes Yes No Yes

Founded 2010; regularly 

provides specified services.

Founded 2010,  regularly 

provides specified services.

No historical information on 

respondent is available.

Founded 1982, regularly 

provides specified services.

Pass/Fail Pass Pass Pass Pass

60 75 70 65

55 70 10 55

Pass/Fail Pass N/A Fail N/A

See reference scoring sheets. Not checked at this time. None provided. Not checked at this time

AWARD

EVALUATION CRITERIA

Proposed Fee  

Deduct Alternate 3 (full access, no business interruptions)

References

Base project price

Reference scores

Respondent qualifications

Base project days to deliver

Add Alternate 1 (add storefront vestibule)

Respondent is regularly involved in the delivery of similar projects.

TOTAL

Days to deliver

Deduct alternate 3 days to deliver

Add Alternate 2 (remove and replace existing storefront)



AGENDA ITEM # 30 

 
Executive Summary 

 August 6, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:   Resolution Approving the Brushy Creek Regional Utility Authority 

Proposed Annual Operating Budget for Fiscal Year 2015-16.  

 
Background:    The BCRUA board approved the proposed annual operating budget at its 

board meeting on July 15, 2014.  The total BCRUA operating budget reflects a decrease 

from the prior year by $80,970 from $1,680,027 to $1,599,057.  Leander's share of the 

budget is $748,425, or 46.8%.  The City's debt service component has increased by 

$303,590 from $5,743,721 to $6,047,311. 

 

Origination:       BCRUA  

 
Financial Consideration:  $800,000 included in the FY 2015-16 Utility Fund Operating 

Budget and $6,047,311 in the Utility Fund Debt Service Budget. 

 
Recommendation:     Approve Resolution 

 
Attachments:    Resolution, BCRUA Resolution and Budget Detail 

 
Prepared by: Robert G. Powers, Finance Director    







FY 2016 Budget - Final Draft

CODE FY 2016 BCRUA Op Budget

Non-Operating 

Expenses

Fixed 

Operating 

Expenses for 

Cities not 

Receiving 

Water

Fixed 

Operating 

Expenses for 

Cities 

Receiving 

Water

Variable 

Operating 

Expenses FY2015 3.31.15 Act FY 2016 Cedar Park Leander Round Rock

7510.00 100% 15,600.00$     4,416.86$       15,600.00$     2,335.32$       7,363.20$       5,901.48$       

7300.00 100% 4,500.00         308.00            8,200.00         1,227.54         3,870.40         3,102.06         Simplex Grinnell/Elevator Inspect-License/Misc Repairs

7100.00 100% 111,700.00     55,838.79       111,700.00     16,721.49       52,722.40       42,256.11       GM $106.7K, Admin $5K

9300.00 Capital Outlay 100% 25,000.00       -                 25,000.00       3,742.50         11,800.00       9,457.50         Chemical Feed System Improvements

9305.00 Desks, Files, Kitchen Appliances, etc. 100% 2,000.00         -                 2,000.00         299.40            944.00            756.60            

7215.00 Grounds Maint/Building Maint 100% 20,000.00       1,070.10         23,000.00       3,443.10         10,856.00       8,700.90         HVAC $4.5K, Mowing $15K, Misc $3.5K

7220.00 Irrigation Water at Plant-WW-Solid Waste 100% 10,000.00       3,005.24         11,000.00       1,646.70         5,192.00         4,161.30         $1,045.44 CTR/$750.00 Month W/WW

7225.00 TCEQ Admin 100% 100.00            -                 100.00            14.97              47.20              37.83              Annual PWS Fee Less 25 Connections = $100

7230.00 Safety Equip 100% 2,500.00         959.93            3,500.00         523.95            1,652.00         1,324.05         Basic PPE for Employees

7235.00 Treated/Raw Main Maint 100% 48,500.00       -                 20,000.00       2,994.00         9,440.00         7,566.00         

7470.00 Audit Fees/Invest/Bank 100% 51,000.00       31,666.60       51,000.00       7,634.70         24,072.00       19,293.30       

7680.00 Legal Services 100% 40,000.00       7,029.30         40,000.00       5,988.00         18,880.00       15,132.00       

7710.00 Computers & Equipment 33% 67% 7,500.00         543.34            10,500.00       4,271.18         4,918.01         1,310.81         Computer/Network Equip/Dahill Contract

7240.00 SCADA/Services 33% 67% 10,000.00       395.00            10,000.00       4,067.79         4,683.82         1,248.39         Misc Contract Services/Hardware 

7715.00 Communication/Phones 33% 67% 6,400.00         2,339.43         7,000.00         2,847.45         3,278.67         873.87            

7245.00 Intake Barge Repair/Maint 33% 67% 104,000.00     43,998.75       20,000.00       8,135.58         9,367.64         2,496.78         

7430.00 Accounting/Finanace/Personnel 33% 67% 45,000.00       18,440.02       45,000.00       18,305.06       21,077.19       5,617.76         

7101.00 Plant Superintendent 1 FTE 33% 67% 112,291.92     59,414.17       116,223.12     47,277.12       54,436.82       14,509.18       1 FTE, Base X 1.5

7105.00 Administration Assistant (operations) 33% 67% -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

7110.00 Small Tools/Equipment 33% 67% 5,000.00         -                 7,500.00         3,050.84         3,512.87         936.29            

7115.00 Office/Building Supplies 33% 67% 6,000.00         557.59            7,000.00         2,847.45         3,278.67         873.87            General Office Supplies/Paper/Toner/Pens…

7120.00 Plant Winterization Supplies 33% 67% 1,000.00         -                 2,000.00         813.56            936.76            249.68            

7720.00 Miscellaneous Expenses 33% 67% 1,000.00         17.00              2,000.00         813.56            936.76            249.68            

7000.00 Plant Operators 3 FTE 100% 195,212.16     100,772.24     200,091.84     106,728.99     93,362.85       -                 3 FTEs, Base X 1.5

7005.00 Maintenance Technician 100% -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

7010.00 Treatment Materials/Supplies 100% 30,000.00       825.22            30,000.00       16,002.00       13,998.00       -                 Misc repair parts/services

7015.00 Vehicle Repairs/Maint 100% 4,000.00         81.55              4,000.00         2,133.60         1,866.40         -                 2 Truck/1 UTV/Backhoe

7020.00 Contract Services (Lab Services) 100% 11,300.00       -                 15,000.00       8,001.00         6,999.00         -                 Annual/1/4 TCEQ Sampling, VOC,TOC, Bact's

7020.50 Laboratory Supplies 100% 20,500.00       -                 20,000.00       10,668.00       9,332.00         -                 Equipment Maint/Reagents/Misc Supplies for Lab

7025.00 Fuel and Oil 100% 5,000.00         -                 5,000.00         2,667.00         2,333.00         -                 2 Trucks/1 UTV's Gas/Backhoe

7030.00 Janitorial Facility Maint 100% 5,600.00         -                 6,900.00         3,680.46         3,219.54         -                 1 X Clean per week @ $575.00 Mo, Misc Supplies

7035.00 Equip Facility Maint 100% 25,000.00       361.92            25,000.00       13,335.00       11,665.00       -                 Misc Maint/Repairs

7040.00 Schools/Training 100% 7,500.00         -                 7,500.00         4,000.50         3,499.50         -                 

7045.00 License and Membership Dues 100% 2,000.00         111.00            2,000.00         1,066.80         933.20            -                 TWUA/AWWA etc…

7050.00 Uniforms 100% 3,600.00         1,358.68         3,200.00         1,706.88         1,493.12         -                 Uniforms

7200.00 Power-Pumping Raw/Treated/Lift Stations 100% 500,000.00     22,185.65       500,000.00     266,700.00     233,300.00     -                 

7205.00 Chemicals 100% 155,000.00     -                 185,000.00     98,679.00       86,321.00       -                 

7210.00 Sludge Disposal 100% 23,500.00       -                 23,500.00       12,534.90       10,965.10       -                 $550.00 per Roll Off .75 per week

9310.00 Contingency 46,489.20       24,438.40       46,489.20       6,592.17         21,970.80       17,926.24       

Total Annual 1,663,793$     380,135$        1,612,004$     693,498$        754,525$        163,982$        

Reserve Operating Account 403,001$        173,375$        188,631$        40,996$          

LESS: FY15 Reserve Budget (415,948)        (176,135)        (194,731)        (45,083)          

Reserve Adjustment for FY16 (12,947)          (2,760)            (6,100)            (4,087)            

Round Rock Fee in Lieu of Min. Take (121,682) 121,682

Total Operating Budget 1,599,057       569,056          748,425          281,577          

FY 2016 Debt Service Budget 11,809,880$   1,443,112$     6,047,311$     4,319,457$     

Total Operating and Debt Service Budget 13,408,937$   2,012,168$     6,795,736$     4,601,034$     

Insurance

Security/Fire/Elevator

Gen Manager-Admin Services



BCRUA Project Reserved Capacity Allocation Round Rock Fee in Lieu of Minimum Take Calculation
Cedar Park 14.97%

Leander 47.20% BCRUA FY16 Gallons Treated (5MGD x 365) 1,825,000,000

Round Rock 37.83%

BCRUA FY16 WTP O&M Expenses (minus amount paid by RR) 1,448,022

Capacity Allocation for Cities Receiving Water

Cedar Park 53.34% BCRUA Cost per 1,000 gal. $0.79

Leander 46.66%

Round Rock 0.00%

Cedar Park FY14 WTP O&M Expenses (minus raw water) 2,185,155

Ultimate Capacity Allocation

Cedar Park 14.18% Cedar Park FY14 Gallons Treated 4,036,780,000

Leander 47.26%

Round Rock 38.56% Cedar Park Cost per 1,000 gal. $0.54

Difference in BCRUA and CP Cost per 1,000 gal. $0.25

Round Rock Minimum Annual Take in gallons 486,727,500

Round Rock Fee in Lieu of Minimum Take $121,682



 
 RESOLUTION NO. 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEANDER 
APPROVING THE BUDGET OF THE BRUSHY CREEK REGIONAL 
UTILITY AUTHORITY FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-16. 
  
WHEREAS, on July 15, 2015, the Board of the BCRUA approved an Annual Operating 

Budget for fiscal year 2015-16; and 
 

WHEREAS, the By Laws of the BCRUA require the City Councils of the Cities of 
Leander, Round Rock and Cedar Park, to approve the Annual Operating Budget to be considered 
by and/or approved by the BCRUA Board; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Leander supports the Annual Operating 

Budget approved by the BCRUA Board. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF LEANDER, THAT: 
 
 Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 

Section 2.  Approval of the Annual Operating Budget of the BCRUA.  The City 
Council approves the Annual Operating Budget for the Brushy Creek Regional Utility Authority 
for Fiscal Year 2015-16, as set forth in Exhibit “A” hereto, and as approved by the BCRUA 
Board. 
 
 Section 3.  Effective Immediately. This resolution shall be effective immediately from 
and after its passage. 
 

Section 4.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting 
at which this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, 
Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 
  
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of August, 2015. 
 
 
ATTEST      THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________  _________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

 



AGENDA ITEM # 31 

 
Executive Summary 

 August 6, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:   Authorize Interlocal Cooperative Purchasing Agreement with the City 

of Austin. 

 

Background:    The City’s Purchasing Agent recently reached out to the City of Austin’s 

Purchasing Department to obtain the proposed interlocal agreement whereby each City 

would be able to “piggyback” off each other’s purchasing contracts if and when it would 

be advantageous to do so.  Obviously, the City of Austin is a very large volume 

purchaser, so having this agreement in place increases our ability to obtain the most 

competitive pricing available to the City. 

 

Origination:    Joy Simonton, Purchasing Agent  

 
Financial Consideration:   

 
Recommendation: Authorize Mayor to execute Interlocal Purchasing Cooperative 

Agreement with the City of Austin 

 
Attachments:    Interlocal Purchasing Agreement  

 
Prepared by: Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 

  Joy Simonton, Purchasing Agent  



INTERLOCAL PURCHASE AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS AND THE CITY OF AUSTIN, TEXAS  

 
 

This Interlocal Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into between the City of Leander, 
Texas, and the City of Austin, Texas, Texas, acting by and through their respective governing bodies, 
pursuant to and under authority of the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of the Texas 
Government Code and Chapter 271 of the Texas Local Government Code (“Chapter 271”), for the 
purpose of participating in cooperative purchasing.  The undersigned Local Governments may be 
referred to in this Agreement individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”   
 

RECITALS:  
 
WHEREAS, this Agreement is authorized by Chapter 791 of the Texas Gov’t Code and Subchapter 
F of Chapter 271; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Parties are local governments as that term is defined in Section 271.101(2) of the 
Texas Local Gov’t Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 271.102 of the Texas Local Gov’t Code authorizes local governments to 
participate in a cooperative purchasing program with another local government or local cooperative 
organization; and  
 
WHEREAS, a local government that purchases materials, supplies, goods, services or equipment 
pursuant to a cooperative purchasing program with another local government satisfies the 
requirement of the local government to seek competitive bids for the purchase of the goods or 
services; and  
 
WHEREAS, local governments in the State of Texas have the ability to realize substantial savings 
and economies of scale by cooperatively procuring materials, supplies, goods, services or equipment; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into a cooperative purchasing program which will allow 
Parties to purchase materials, supplies, goods, services or equipment pursuant to Subchapter F of  
Chapter 271; and    
 
WHEREAS, the Parties, acting by and through their respective governing bodies adopt the foregoing 
premises as findings of said governing bodies; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, inducements, covenants, 
agreements, conditions and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which is acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:    
 

 
ARTICLE I 
PURPOSE 

 
1. The purpose of this Agreement is to establish a cooperative purchasing program between the 

Interlocal Purchase Agreement Between the City of Leander, TX and City of Austin 1 



Parties which will allow the Parties to realize savings when purchasing materials, supplies, goods, 
services or equipment, and which will facilitate the Parties’ ability to satisfy state laws requiring the 
Parties to seek competitive bids for the purchase of goods and services.  Each Party, in contracting 
for the purchase of supplies, materials, equipment, and services agrees, at its discretion, to extend 
contracts for shared use to the extent permitted by law and agreed upon by those parties and vendors. 
This Agreement is not intended to create, nor should it be construed as creating a partnership, 
association, joint venture, or trust. 

 
ARTICLE II  

TERM  
 
2. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date on which all Parties have executed this 
Agreement (“Effective Date”).  This Agreement shall renew annually, and remain in full force and 
effect unless superseded by a supplemental agreement or terminated as provided in this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE III 
TERMINATION 

 
3. A Party may withdraw its participation from this Agreement by providing thirty (30) days prior 
written notice to the other Parties.  However, termination of this Agreement by a Party shall not 
terminate an existing contract between a Party and a vendor, although the terms of the existing 
contract may not be revised once the withdrawal has occurred. 
 

ARTICLE IV  
PURCHASING  

 
4. Each Party shall designate a person to act on their behalf in all matters relating to the cooperative 
purchasing program.  All purchases shall be effected by a purchase order from the purchasing party 
and directed to the vendor(s).  The Parties will make payments directly to vendors under the contracts 
made under Chapter 271, Subchapter F.  The purchasing party shall be responsible for its own 
ordering, inspections, and acceptance of goods and services. The purchasing Party will be 
responsible for the vendors’ compliance with provisions relating to the quality of items and terms of 
delivery.  The originating contracting Party is not responsible or liable for the performance of any 
vendor used by a purchasing Party as a result of this Agreement. The purchasing party shall not use 
this Agreement as a method for obtaining additional concessions or reduced prices for similar goods 
or services. 
 

ARTICLE V 
CURRENT REVENUE 

 
5. The Parties represent that all payments, expenditures, contributions, fees, costs, and disbursements, 
if any, required of it hereunder or required by any other agreements, contracts and documents 
executed, adopted, or approved pursuant to this Agreement, which shall include any exhibit, 
attachment, addendum or associated document, shall be paid from current revenues available to the 
paying Party.  The Parties hereby warrant that no debt is created by this Agreement and that any debt 
created through a purchase shall be the sole obligation of the purchasing Party and no obligation or 
liability for such debt shall be a liability or obligation of the other Parties.  

 
 

Interlocal Purchase Agreement Between the City of Leander, TX and City of Austin 2 



ARTICLE VI  
FISCAL FUNDING  

 
6. The financial obligations of the Parties, if any, under this Agreement are contingent upon the 
availability and appropriation of sufficient funding.  Any Party may withdraw from this Agreement 
without penalty in the event funds are not available or appropriated.  However, no Party will be 
entitled to a refund of amounts previously contributed in the event of withdrawal for lack of funding.  
 

ARTICLE VII  
MISCELLANEOUS  

 
7A. Notice:  Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder shall be deemed received 
when sent in the United States Mail, Postage Prepaid, Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested, or 
by hand-delivery or facsimile transmission addressed to the respective Party at the address set forth 
opposite the signature of the Party. 
 
7B. Amendment:  This Agreement may be amended by the mutual written agreement of all of the 
Parties.  
 
7C. Severability:  In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall 
for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, 
illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect the other provisions, and the Agreement shall be 
construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained in this 
Agreement.  
 
7D. Governing Law:  The validity of this Agreement and any of its terms and provisions, as well as 
the rights and duties of the Parties, shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas.  Venue for 
any action concerning this Agreement shall lie in Travis County, Texas.   
 
7E. Entire Agreement:  This Agreement represents the entire agreement among the Parties with 
respect to the subject matter covered by this Agreement.  There is no other collateral, oral or written 
agreement between the Parties that in any manner relates to the subject matter of this Agreement.    
 
7F.  Recitals:  The recitals to this Agreement are incorporated herein. 
 
7G.  Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original constituting one and the same instrument. 
 
7H.  No Assignment:  The Parties may not assign or transfer their rights under this Agreement. 
 
7I.  Compliance with Law:  Each Party is responsible for complying with any additional or varying 
laws and regulations regarding purchases. 
 
7J.  No Waiver of Rights:  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend 
any legal defense available at law or equity to a Party, including the defense of sovereign immunity.  
Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to create any legal rights or claims on behalf of a person 
not a party to this Agreement. 
 
 

Interlocal Purchase Agreement Between the City of Leander, TX and City of Austin 3 



EXECUTED this 6th day of August, 2015. 

 
 
       CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
       By: __________________________________ 
 
       Name: _______________________________  
       Title: ________________________________  
       Date Signed: __________________________  
        
       Address for Notice: 
 
       Joy Simonton 
       Purchasing Agent 
       City of Leander 
       PO Box 319 
       Leander, TX   78646 
        
ATTEST: 
 
By: _____________________________________  
 Secretary or other designated individual (if required) 
 
 
 
EXECUTED this _______ day of ___________________, 2015. 
 
 
       CITY OF AUSTIN, TEXAS 
 
       By: __________________________________ 
 
       Name: _______________________________  
       Title: ________________________________  
       Date Signed: __________________________  
        
       Address for Notice: 
       James Scarboro 

Purchasing Officer 
P. O. Box 1088 
Austin, TX  78767-8845 

 
FOR CITY, APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By: ______________________________________  
 City Attorney 
 

Interlocal Purchase Agreement Between the City of Leander, TX and City of Austin 4 



AGENDA ITEM # 32 

 
Executive Summary 

 
August 6, 2015 

 
 
Subject: Consideration of a Policy for Naming City Buildings & Facilities 
 
Background: At present there is no naming policy for City buildings or facilities other than parks 
and recreation facilities. At the direction of the Council has been drafted for Council 
consideration. This policy is similar to the Parks & Recreation Facility Naming Policy. 
 
Financial Consideration: None 
  
Recommendation: Staff respectfully recommends Council approval of the proposed policy for 
Naming City Buildings & Facilities. 
 
Attachments:  Proposed Policy for Naming City Buildings & Facilities 
 
Prepared by:  Stephen Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 



POLICY FOR NAMING CITY BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 
Approved by the City Council _____________________ 

 
 
PURPOSE 

• To establish uniform procedures for naming City buildings and facilities. 
• To provide consistent guidelines for citizens, citizen groups and City staff. 
• To establish procedures for naming City buildings and facilities... 

 
PROCEDURES FOR NAMING CITY BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 
1. Written nominations to name a buildings or facilities shall be submitted to the City Manager.  The City 

Manager shall forward nominations to the City Council and/or the appropriate advisory board or 
commission for consideration, and to make a recommendation to the Council and to the City  
Secretary to verify that the signers are registered Leander voters. 

2. Written nominations shall include the following information: 
i) A petition signed by at least 50 registered City voters stating reasons for the proposed action. 

Petitions must clearly state the intent of the nomination and include printed names, signatures, 
addresses, zip codes and telephone numbers of each signer; 

ii) Evidence of community support;  
3. If the petition is referred to an advisory board or commission the naming nomination should be presented 

to the board/commission at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 
4. The board or commission shall: 

i) Review the nomination in accordance with the policy 
ii) Determine if there is a need to solicit further public input 
iii) Research, review and study supporting documentation 
iv) Through a majority vote agree on a recommendation and forward it to the Council. 

5. The naming process may also begin with a majority vote of a board or commission, or at the request of the 
Council. 

 
NAMING CRITERIA 
The recommended name shall meet at least one of the following criteria. 

1. Consideration may be given to geographic location, adjacent streets or subdivision name. 
2. Consideration may be given to prominent characteristics or physical features of the site (lake, river, 

creek, canyon or topography). 
3. Consideration may be given to a historic feature or event. 
4. Consideration may be given to naming the building or facility after a family, individual, or business that 

donated a significant portion of the property, or funds to construct the facility. 
5. Consideration may be given to the previous property owner if the property owner sells the property 

significantly below fair market value. The naming agreement should be negotiated at the time of 
purchase. 

6. Consideration may be given to honor individuals or businesses that have made significant or worthy 
contributions to the City of Leander or a prominent American who is or was a resident of Leander. 

7. City structures may be dedicated to the memory of worthy individuals through the placement of plaques 
without naming or renaming the entire park. 

 
GENERAL CRITERIA 

1. Consideration must first be given to existing legal agreements or promises that were made when the 
park or facility was originally named. 

2. Buildings and facilities previously named for individuals should not be renamed. 
3. Buildings and facilities may be named for either deceased or living persons.   
4. Buildings and facilities shall not be given the same name as an existing school or public facility unless 

they are adjacent to an existing named school or public facility. 
5. Recommendations to name buildings and facilities should not be publicized until after receiving 

approval by the Council. 
6. This policy shall not be construed to limit authority of the City Council to name any city buildings or 

facilities at any time and under any conditions the Council deems appropriate.  
 



AGENDA ITEM # 33 

 
Executive Summary 

August 6, 2015 
 
 
 

      Agenda Subject: Consider recommendation to the Williamson County Children’s 
Advocacy Center for appointment to the Board of Directors 

  

Background:  Mayor Fielder has served on the Board of Directors of the Williamson 
County Children’s Advocacy Center since being appointed in 2009.  This is a non-voting 
position on the Board. Mayor Fielder has resigned his position on this Board as of the 
end of July 2015.  Council is being asked to make a recommendation for his 
replacement on the Board. 
 
Origination:  Mayor Fielder  

 
Recommendation:  N/A 

 
Attachments:    N/A 

 
Prepared by:  Debbie Haile TRMC, City Secretary    


	Agenda
	Item # 4 a-b
	Item # 6
	Item # 7
	Item # 8
	Item # 9
	Item # 10
	Item # 11
	Item # 12
	Item # 13
	Item # 14
	Item # 15
	Item # 16
	Item # 17
	Item # 18
	Item # 19
	Item # 20
	Item # 21
	Item # 22
	Item # 23
	Item # 24a
	Item # 24b
	Item # 25
	Item # 26
	Item # 27
	Item # 28
	Item # 29
	Item # 30
	Item # 31
	Item # 32
	Item # 33



